
 

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 6/2/2021 - Page 1 

 

 

 

Dr. Larry Wallace Jr., Mayor 

Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor Pro Tem, Place 3 

Emily Hill, Place 1 

Anne Weir, Place 2 

Sonia Wallace, Place 4 

Deja Hill, Place 5 

Gene Kruppa, Place 6 

City Council Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, June 02, 2021 at 7:00 PM 

Manor City Hall, Council Chambers, 105 E. Eggleston St. 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER AND ANNOUNCE A QUORUM IS PRESENT 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

PRESENTATIONS 

A. Foster Community Central Texas 
presented by Director, Chelsy Alexander, MSW 

PROCLAMATIONS 

A. Declaring Friday, June 4, 2021, as "National Gun Violence Awareness Day”  

B. Declaring the month of June 2021, as “LGBTQ+ Month” 

C. Declaring the month of June 2021, as “National PTSD Awareness Month”  

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Comments will be taken from the audience on non-agenda related topics for a length of time, not to exceed three 

(3) minutes per person. Comments on specific agenda items must be made when the item comes before the Council. 

To address the City Council, please register and submit the speaker card following the instructions for public 

speaking above. No Action May be Taken by the City Council During Public Comments. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All of the following items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be self-explanatory by the Council and will be 

enacted with one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless requested by the Mayor or a 

Council Member; in which event, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered separately. 

1. Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council Minutes of the May 

19, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting.  
Submitted by: Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 

  

1



 

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 6/2/2021 - Page 2 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The City Council will now Convene into executive session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 Texas 

Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in: 

- Sections 551.087 and 551.071, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of 

Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding Economic Development Negotiations - 

Lagos PID; and Section 551.072 Deliberations regarding Real Property 

OPEN SESSION 

The City Council will now reconvene into Open Session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 Texas 

Government Code and take action, if any, on item(s) discussed during Closed Executive Session. 

REGULAR AGENDA 

2. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the reallocation of bond proceeds between 

authorized improvements in the Lagos Public Improvement District (PID). 
Submitted by: Thomas Bolt, City Manager  

3. Second and Final Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance 

rezoning 43.92 acres, more or less, out of the James Manor Survey No. 40, Abstract 546, and 

being located in the 9900 block of Hill Lane, Manor, TX from Single Family (SF-1) to Light 

Industrial (IN-1).  
Applicant:  GarzaEMC  

Owner: Butler Family Partnership, Ltd. 

Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

4. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a resolution approving and authorizing the 

Rose Hill Public Improvement District Reimbursement Agreement. 
Submitted by: Thomas Bolt, City Manager 

5. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a contract between Travis County and the 

City of Manor for the collection of the Rose Hill Public Improvement District assessments. 
Submitted by: Thomas Bolt, City Manager 

6. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a contract between Travis County and the 

City of Manor for the collection of the Manor Heights Public Improvement District 

assessments. 
Submitted by: Thomas Bolt, City Manager 

7. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on appointment of Planning and Zoning 

Commission and Developer Representative to serve as Community Impact Fee Advisory 

Committee. 
Submitted by: Frank T. Phelan, P.E. City Engineer 

8. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a change order to the construction contract 

for the Cottonwood Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements project. 
Submitted by: Frank T. Phelan, P.E. City Engineer 

  

2



 

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 6/2/2021 - Page 3 

 

 

9. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance adopting an Amended Annual 

Budget for the City of Manor for Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2020 and ending September 

30, 2021.  
Submitted by: Lydia Collins, Director of Finance 

10. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the Annual Audit Financial Statements of the 

City of Manor, Texas for the year ending September 30, 2020.  
Submitted by: Lydia Collins, Director of Finance 

11. Acknowledge the resignation of Planning and Zoning Commissioner Jacob Hammersmith, 

Place No. 2 and declare a vacancy. 
Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

12. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on City Attorney Legal Services for the City of 

Manor (The Knight Law Firm, LLP). 
Submitted by: Mayor Wallace 

13. Acknowledge and acceptance of retirement announcement of City Manager, Thomas Bolt. 
Submitted by: Mayor Wallace 

14. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the Consulting Firm for City Manager’s 

position.   
Submitted by: Tracey Vasquez, HR Manager 

15. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the transition plan for City Manager’s 

position.   
Submitted by: Tracey Vasquez, HR Manager 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

In addition to any executive session already listed above, the City Council reserves the right to adjourn into 

executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as 

authorized by Texas Government Code Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), §551.072 (Deliberations 

regarding Real Property), §551.073 (Deliberations regarding Gifts and Donations), §551.074 (Personnel Matters), 

§551.076 (Deliberations regarding Security Devices) and §551.087 (Deliberations regarding Economic 

Development Negotiations). 

  

3



 

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 6/2/2021 - Page 4 

 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

In accordance with Section 12.04 (Conflict of Interest) of the City Charter, “No elected or appointed officer or 

employee of the city shall participate in the deliberation or decision on any issue, subject or matter before the 

council or any board or commission, if the officer or employee has a personal financial or property interest, direct 

or indirect, in the issue, subject or matter that is different from that of the public at large. An interest arising from 

job duties, compensation or benefits payable by the city shall not constitute a personal financial interest.” 

Further, in accordance with Chapter 171, Texas Local Government Code (Chapter 171), no City Council member 

and no City officer may vote or participate in discussion of a matter involving a business entity or real property in 

which the City Council member or City officer has a substantial interest (as defined by Chapter 171) and action on 

the matter will have a special economic effect on the business entity or real property that is distinguishable from 

the effect on the general public. An affidavit disclosing the conflict of interest must be filled out and filed with the 

City Secretary before the matter is discussed. 

 

POSTING CERTIFICATION 

I, the undersigned authority do hereby certify that this Notice of Meeting was posted on the bulletin board, at the 

City Hall of the City of Manor, Texas, a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times 

and said Notice was posted on the following date and time: Friday, May 28, 2021, by 5:00 PM and remained so 

posted continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting. 

 

  

/s/ Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 

City Secretary for the City of Manor, Texas 

 

NOTICE OF ASSISTANCE AT PUBLIC MEETINGS: 

The City of Manor is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Manor City Hall and the Council 

Chambers are wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or interpretive 

services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary at 512.272.5555 or e-mail 

lalmaraz@cityofmanor.org . 

4

mailto:lalmaraz@cityofmanor.org


Director, Chelsy Alexander, MSW

5

Item A.



Who we are

Mission
• Supporting Communities, Strengthening Families.

History
• Foster Community was born out of the Travis County Collaborative for Children 

(TCCC), an initiative that works to bring system wide change to the way foster 
children in Travis County are cared for during, and after, their time in state custody.

• Launched in the Summer of 2017 under Mission Capitol
• Moved to Partnerships for Children in Fall of 2018

6

Item A.



What we do
Foster Community's vision is to keep children as close to home as possible by increasing and connecting supports 
within supportive communities.

SUPPORT/Connect

• Partners
• Allies
• Adoption Collaborative

EDUCATION/INFORMATION

• Social Media
• Website
• Other (Media)

RECRUIT

• Info Sessions
• Community Engagement 

Resource Service

FOSTER COMMUNITY CARES

• Targeted Community Events

7

Item A.



• 50+ Community Meetings
• 75+ Information Sessions
• 1500+ Info Session Attendees
• 32 Partners (Child Placing Agencies and Resource Organizations)

2020 and Beyond

8

Item A.



• Targeted Community Event 
• Co-Hosts include leaders from the 

communities of the city being served
• Partners and Allies as Exhibitors
• Coalition

Foster Community Cares

9

Item A.



City of Manor

35 Community Members

13 FC Partners

4 Community Leaders

Law Enforcement

10

Item A.



Website & Social Media

11

Item A.



• Supporting Communities, 
Strengthening Families

• Connecting Resources 
to families

• Kinship Support

Transforming Child Welfare-Manor

12

Item A.



If you want to go 
fast, go alone. If 
you want to go far, 
go together.
-African Proverb

13

Item A.



 

                                                                          

PROCLAMATION 

 WHEREAS, every day, more than 100 Americans are killed by gun violence, 
alongside more than 230 who are shot and wounded, and on average there are more than 
13,000-gun homicides every year; and  

 WHEREAS, gun violence prevention is more important than ever as the COVID-19 
pandemic continues to exacerbate gun violence after more than a year of increased gun sales, 
increased calls to suicide and domestic violence hotlines; and  

 WHEREAS, in January 2013, Hadiya Pendleton, was tragically shot and killed at age 
15- just one week after performing at President Obama’s 2nd inaugural parade; and after her 
death, people across the United States stood up, spoke out, and wore orange to raise 
awareness about gun violence; and 

 WHEREAS, Wear Orange originated on June 2, 2015 – what would have been 
Hadiya’s 18th birthday. Now it is observed nationally on the First Friday in June and the 
following weekend each year; and 

  WHEREAS, Americans will raise awareness about gun violence and honor the lives 
of gun violence victims and survivors by wearing orange from June 4-6, 2021.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Dr. Larry Wallace Jr., Mayor of the City of Manor, Texas, 
and on behalf of the Manor City Council, do hereby proclaim Friday, June 4, 2021, as:   

 

“National Gun Violence Awareness Day” 
 

in the City of Manor and encourage all residents to support their community’s efforts to 
prevent the tragic effects of gun violence and to honor and value human lives.  
 
  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed the 
seal of the City of Manor on this 2nd day of June 2021.  
 
 
    
                                                                 
       __________________________ 
       Dr. Larry Wallace Jr., Mayor 
       City of Manor  

    

14

Item A.



 

                                                                                  
 

PROCLAMATION 
 WHEREAS, the City of Manor is a welcoming community and an exceptional place to live, learn, work, play, 
and raise a family; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Manor recognizes the importance of equality and freedom; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the nation was founded upon and is guided by a set of principles that includes that every person 
has been created equal, that each has rights to their life, liberty and pursuit of happiness and that each shall be 
accorded the full recognition and protection of law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Manors’ Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, and Queer+ (LGBTQ+) community 
are a vital part of all fields and professions and contribute to a stronger community; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Manor is dedicated to fostering acceptance of all its citizens and preventing 
discrimination and bullying based on sexual orientation and gender identity; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Manor is strengthened by and thrives upon the rich diversity of ethnic, cultural, racial, gender 
and sexual identities of its residents; all of which contribute to the vibrant character of our City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Centers for Disease Control (CDC) recognizes that LGBT teens are at higher risk to be the 
victims of violence and have increased suicide rates; and 
 
  WHEREAS, it is imperative that young people in the community, regardless of sexual orientation or gender 
identity, feel valued, safe, empowered, and supported by their peers, educators, and community leaders. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Dr. Larry Wallace Jr., Mayor of the City of Manor, Texas, and on behalf of the 
Manor City Council, do hereby proclaim the month of June 2021, as:   
 

 
in the City of Manor and urge citizens to recognize the contributions made by members of the LGBTQ+ 

community and to actively promote the principles of equality and liberty; and BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED 
that the downtown Manor water tower shall be lit in rainbow colors for the month of June 2021.   
 
  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed the seal of the City of 
Manor on this 2nd day of June 2021.  
 
 
 
        __________________________ 
        Dr. Larry Wallace Jr., Mayor 
        City of Manor  

    

15

Item B.



 

                                                                           
 

PROCLAMATION 
 WHEREAS, Posttraumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD) is associated with chemical changes in the 
body’s hormonal system and autonomic nervous system, and is characterized by symptoms including 
flashbacks, nightmares, insomnia, avoidance, hypervigilance, anxiety, and depression; and  
 
 WHEREAS, between 7 and 8 percent of the population will experience PTSD during their 
lifetime; and  
 
 WHEREAS, PTSD can occur after a person experiences trauma including, but not limited to the 
stress of combat, rape, sexual assault, child abuse, bombing, accidents and natural disasters, and 
affects approximately 8 million adults in the United States annually; and 
 
 WHEREAS, despite its treatability, many cases of PTSD remain undiagnosed and untreated due 
to a lack of awareness of this condition and the persistent stigma associated with mental health 
conditions; and 
 
   WHEREAS, raising awareness of this condition is necessary to remove the stigma and to 
encourage those suffering to seek proper and timely treatment that may save their lives.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Dr. Larry Wallace Jr., Mayor of the City of Manor, Texas, and on behalf 
of the Manor City Council, do hereby proclaim the month of June 2021, as:   
 

“National PTSD Awareness Month” 
 
in the City of Manor and encourage all people to reach out to their fellow citizens to provide support 
and remove the stigma associated with this disorder.  
 
  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed the seal of the 
City of Manor on this 2nd day of June 2021.  
 
 
 
        __________________________ 
        Dr. Larry Wallace Jr., Mayor 
        City of Manor  

    

16

Item C.



   1 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 2, 2021 

PREPARED BY: Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 
DEPARTMENT: Administration 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council Minutes of the May 19, 2021, City 
Council Regular Meeting.  

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

 

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable 

FISCAL IMPACT: Not Applicable 

PRESENTATION:  No 

ATTACHMENTS:  Yes  

• May 19, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve the City Council Minutes of the May 19, 2021, 
City Council Regular Meeting. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION:  Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

17

Item 1.



 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR SESSION MINUTES 

MAY 19, 2021 
Via Telephone/Video Conference 

(Zoom Meeting) 
 

City of Manor  Page 1 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The meeting was live streamed on Manor Facebook Live beginning at 7:00 p.m.  

https://www.facebook.com/cityofmanor/  
 
Pursuant to Governor Greg Abbott's temporary suspension of various provisions of the Texas 
Open Meetings Act to allow for telephonic or videoconference meetings of governmental bodies 
that are accessible to the public in an effort to reduce in person meetings that assemble large 
groups of people the City Council meeting scheduled for Wednesday, May 19th, was only open 
to the public via remote access.   
 
The following instructions were provided to the general public.  
 
Instructions for Public Speaking: 
 

• Members of the public that wish to speak during public comments, public hearing or an 
agenda item will need to register in advance by visiting www.cityofmanor.org where a 
registration link will be posted on the calendar entry for each public meeting. You will 
register by filling in the speaker card available for that specific meeting and submitting it 
to publiccomments@cityofmanor.org. Once registered, instructions will be emailed to you 
on how to join the videoconference by calling in.  Your Speaker Card must be received 
two (2) hours prior to scheduled meeting.   

 
Upon receiving instructions to join zoom meeting the following rules will apply:  
 

• All speakers must address their comments to the Mayor rather than to individual Council 
Members or city staff. Speakers should speak clearly into their device and state their name 
and address prior to beginning their remarks.  Speakers will be allowed three (3) minutes 
for testimony.  Speakers making personal, impertinent, profane or slanderous remarks may 
be removed from the meeting.  

 
Mayor Wallace advised that all votes would be conducted by a Roll Call Vote, meaning each 

City Council Member would be called on separately to cast their vote.  
 
 

18

Item 1.

https://www.facebook.com/cityofmanor/
http://www.cityofmanor.org/
mailto:publiccomments@cityofmanor.org


 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
May 19, 2021 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 2 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PRESENT VIA ZOOM: 
 
Dr. Larry Wallace Jr., Mayor  
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
 
Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor Pro Tem, Place 3 
Emily Hill, Place 1  
Anne Weir, Place 2  
Sonia Wallace, Place 4  
Deja Hill, Place 5  
Gene Kruppa, Place 6 
 
CITY STAFF: 
 
Thomas Bolt, City Manager 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 
Ryan Phipps, Chief of Police 
Lydia Collins, Director of Finance 
Scott Dunlop, Assistant Development Services Director  
Tracey Vasquez, HR Manager 
Debbie Charbonneau, Heritage and Tourism Manager 
Michael Pachnick, IT Technician 
Michael Tuley, Director of Public Works 
Veronica Rivera, Legal Counsel 
Gregory Miller, Bond Counsel 
 
REGULAR SESSION – 7:00 P.M.  
 
 With a quorum of the Council Members present via video/telephone conference, the regular 
session of the Manor City Council was called to order by Mayor Wallace at 7:04 p.m. on 
Wednesday, May 19, 2021.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 At the direction of Mayor Wallace, Council Member Emily Hill, led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS     

 
There were no public comments received prior to the meeting.  

  

19

Item 1.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
May 19, 2021 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 3 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. Public Hearing: Conduct a public hearing on an ordinance rezoning 43.92 acres, more or 
less, out of the James Manor Survey No. 40, Abstract 546, and being located in the 9900 
block of Hill Lane, Manor, TX from Single Family (SF-1) to Light Industrial (IN-1). 
Applicant: GarzaEMC Owner: Butler Family Partnership, Ltd. 
 
 The City staff recommended that the City Council conduct the public hearing.  
 
 Mayor Wallace opened the public hearing.  
 
 Assistant Development Services Director Dunlop discussed the proposed ordinance 
rezoning 43.92 acres, more or less, out of the James Manor Survey No. 40, Abstract 546, and 
being located in the 9900 block of Hill Lane, Manor, TX from Single Family (SF-1) to Light 
Industrial (IN-1). 
 
 Darren Huckert with GarzaEMC, LLC, 9442 N. Capital of Texas Hwy., Plaza I, Ste. 340, 
Austin, Texas, submitted a speaker card; however, he did not wish to speak but was available 
to answer any questions posed by the City Council.   
 
 The discussion was held regarding the clarification of IN-1 Land Uses.  
 

MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Kruppa and seconded by Council Member 
Wallace, to close the Public Hearing.    

 
There was no further discussion. 
 
Motion to close carried 7-0  

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
2. Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council Minutes.   

 
• May 5, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting; and  
• May 5, 2021, 2020, City Council Workshop 

3. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the acceptance of the April 2021 
Departmental Reports.    
 
 •  Police – Ryan Phipps, Chief of Police     
 •  Development Services – Scott Dunlop, Asst. Dev. Services Director 
 •  Community Development – Debbie Charbonneau, Heritage and Tourism Manager 
 •  Municipal Court – Sarah Friberg, Court Clerk 
 •  Public Works – Michael Tuley, Director of Public Works 
 •  Finance – Lydia Collins, Director of Finance 
 •  Human Resources – Tracey Vasquez, HR Manager 

20

Item 1.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
May 19, 2021 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 4 
 
 
 
 
 

 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Kruppa and seconded by Council Member 

Deja Hill, to approve and adopt all items on the Consent Agenda.  
 
  The discussion was held regarding new drainage tools that could be effective for the Public 
 Works Department.  
 
  At the direction of Mayor Wallace, Heritage and Tourism Manager Charbonneau spoke on 
 the graduation ceremony of Leadership Manor and thanked everyone that attended.  
 
  The discussion was held regarding the completion of Dairy Queen.   
 
  At the direction of Mayor Wallace, HR Manager Vasquez discussed the new City 
 Manager’s Evaluation/Appraisal Process.  
 
  Mayor Wallace discussed the evaluation/appraisal process and asked for Council’s 
 feedback.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 7-0  
 
REGULAR AGENDA  
 
4. First Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance rezoning 43.92 
 acres, more or less, out of the James Manor Survey No. 40, Abstract 546, and being located in the 
 9900 block of Hill Lane, Manor, TX from Single Family (SF-1) to Light Industrial (IN-1). 
 Applicant:  GarzaEMC Owner: Butler Family Partnership, Ltd. 
 
  The City staff recommended that the City Council approve the first reading of an ordinance 
 rezoning 43.92 acres, more or less, out of the James Manor Survey No. 40, Abstract 546, and 
 being located in the 9900 block of Hill Lane, Manor, TX from Single Family (SF-1) to Light 
 Industrial (IN-1).  
 
  Darren Huckert with GarzaEMC, LLC, 9442 N. Capital of Texas Hwy., Plaza I, Ste. 340, 
 Austin, Texas, submitted a speaker card; however, he did not wish to speak but was available 
 to answer any questions posed by the City Council.   
 
  The discussion was held regarding the clarification of IN-1 Land Uses.  
 
  At the direction of Mayor Pro Tem Harvey, Mr. Huckert with GarzaEMC, LLC discussed 
 the construction project.  
  

21

Item 1.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
May 19, 2021 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 5 
 
 
 
 
 

 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Harvey and seconded by Council Member 

Wallace, to approve the first reading of an ordinance rezoning 43.92 acres, more or 
less, out of the James Manor Survey No. 40, Abstract 546, and being located in the 
9900 block of Hill Lane, Manor, TX from Single Family (SF-1) to Light Industrial 
(IN-1). 

 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 7-0 

5. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Resolution of the City of Manor, 
Texas, Approving and Authorizing the First Amendment to the Manor Heights Public 
Improvement District Reimbursement Agreement (Major Improvement Area). 

  
  The City staff recommended that the City Council approve Resolution No. 2021-13 

approving and authorizing the First Amendment to the Manor Heights Public Improvement 
District Reimbursement Agreement (Major Improvement Area).  

 
  At the direction of City Manager Bolt, Assistant City Attorney Rivera discussed the 

proposed Resolution. 
 
   Gregory D. Miller with Bickerstaff Health Delgado Acosta, 3711 S. MoPac Expressway, 

Bldg. One, Suite 300, Austin, Texas, submitted a speaker card; however, he did not wish to 
speak but was available to answer any questions posed by City Council.   

 
   Talley Williams with Metcalfe Wolff Stuart & Williams, LLC, 221 W. 6th Street, Suite 

1300., Austin, Texas, submitted a speaker card in support of this item; however, she did not 
wish to speak but was available to answer any questions posed by City Council.   

 
  Resolution No. 2021-13: A Resolution of the City of Manor, Texas Approving and 

Authorizing the First Amendment to the Manor Heights Public Improvement District 
Reimbursement Agreement (Major Improvement Area). 

   
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Kruppa and seconded by Council Member 

Weir, to approve Resolution No. 2021-13 Approving and Authorizing the First 
Amendment to the Manor Heights Public Improvement District Reimbursement 
Agreement (Major Improvement Area).  

 
There was no further discussion. 
 
Motion to approve carried 7-0 
 
 
  
 

22

Item 1.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
May 19, 2021 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 6 
 
 
 
 
 

 

6. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Resolution Expressing Intent to 
Finance Expenditures to be Incurred by the City of Manor, Texas.  

  
  The City staff recommended that the City Council approve Resolution No. 2021-14 

approving and authorize the Resolution Expressing Intent to Finance Expenditures to be 
incurred by the City of Manor, Texas.  

 
  At the direction of City Manager Bolt, Assistant City Attorney Rivera discussed the 

proposed Resolution. 
 
   Gregory D. Miller with Bickerstaff Health Delgado Acosta, 3711 S. MoPac Expressway, 

Bldg. One, Suite 300, Austin, Texas, submitted a speaker card; however, he did not wish to 
speak but was available to answer any questions posed by City Council.   

 
   Talley Williams with Metcalfe Wolff Stuart & Williams, LLC, 221 W. 6th Street, Suite 

1300., Austin, Texas, submitted a speaker card in support of this item; however, she did not 
wish to speak but was available to answer any questions posed by City Council.   

 
  Resolution No. 2021-14: Resolution Expressing Intent to Finance Expenditures to be 

Incurred by the City of Manor, Texas.  
   
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Kruppa and seconded by Council Member 

Wallace, to approve Resolution No. 2021-14 approving and authorize the Resolution 
Expressing Intent to Finance Expenditures to be Incurred by the City of Manor, 
Texas.   

 
There was no further discussion. 
 
Motion to approve carried 7-0 
 
 Mayor Wallace adjourned the regular session of the Manor City Council into Executive 
Session at 7:40 p.m. on Wednesday, May 19, 2021, in accordance with the requirements of the 
Open Meetings Law.   
 
 City Attorney Saenz joined the executive session via zoom along with City Manager Bolt.   
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
 The Manor City Council convene into executive session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 
551 Texas Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in – Section 551.074 
(Personnel Matters) Texas Government Code, to deliberate the employment of the City Manager 
at 7:40 p.m. on Wednesday, May 19, 2021.  
 

23

Item 1.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
May 19, 2021 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 7 
 
 
 
 
 

The Executive Session was adjourned at 8:11 p.m. on Wednesday, May 19, 2021. 
   
OPEN SESSION   
 

The City Council reconvened into Open Session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 
Texas Government Code and took action on item(s) discussed during Closed Executive Session at 
8:10 p.m. on Wednesday, May 19, 2021. 
  

Mayor Wallace opened the floor for action to be taken on the items discussed in the Executive 
Session. 

 
 There was no action taken.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 The Regular Session of the Manor City Council Adjourned at 8:11 p.m. on Wednesday,         
May 19, 2021. 
 
 These minutes approved by the Manor City Council on the 2nd day of June 2021.  
 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
__________________________________ 
Dr. Larry Wallace Jr.  
Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________________________ 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 
City Secretary  

24

Item 1.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 2 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 2, 2021 
PREPARED BY: Thomas Bolt, City Manager 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the reallocation of bond proceeds between authorized 
improvements in the Lagos Public Improvement District (PID). 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

On March 20, 2019, the City Council approved the creation of the Lagos PID through Resolution No. 2019-02 and 
approved the Service and Assessment Plan (SAP) on December 18, 2019. The developer is requesting that bond 
proceeds be reallocated between authorized improvements in the Lagos PID as provided for in the attached 
narrative at the time the SAP is amended later this year. 

 
LEGAL REVIEW: Yes, Completed 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
PRESENTATION:   
ATTACHMENTS: Yes 

• Lagos PID - Developer Narrative 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council provide City staff and consultants direction on which 
authorized improvements to reallocate in the upcoming Lagos PID Amended SAP. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

25

Item 2.



Lagos Manor PID 
Major Improvement Area 

 
 
RECITALS: 
 
On March 20, 2019 the City approved Resolution N0. 2019-02 creating the District. 
 
On October 2, 2019, the City Council approved the SAP for the District by approving Ordinance 
No. 556.  Subsequently the Council has and will receive periodic Annual Service Plan Updates 
for their consideration and approval. 
 
On December 18, 2019 the City Council approved and eventually bonds were sold in the 
amount of $3,123,396 per the Special Assessment Revenue Bonds Series 2019 (Lagos – City of 
Manor Public Improvement District Major Improvement Area.) 
 
TRUE-UP NARRATIVE: 
 
The Authorized Improvements per the approved SAP had specific dollar amounts applied to 
anticipated PID Eligible Major Improvements in the amount of $2,637,596.  Below is an update 
on related Major Improvements potential Cost Savings and Cost Overruns: 
 

A. COST SAVINGS - There have been adjustments in the dollar amounts spent and/or 
unable to be spent relative to the proposed Landscaping and Lighting.  The 
anticipated cost savings of improvements that are unable to be constructed or due 
to efficiencies of installation is approximately $315,000.  
 

B. COST OVERRUNS - There have been unexpected overruns on specific roadway 
infrastructure due to the conditions of existing facilities.  The anticipated cost 
related to these overruns is $240,000.  This cost is likely to be more with demand on 
facilities and material costs increasing nationwide. 

 
C. The Developer requests Council consideration to apply areas of Cost Savings to Cost 

Overruns in order to complete the required infrastructure and thus support the 
Lagos Manor PID and City of Manor Infrastructure (more specific to FM 973 
sidewalks and striping improvements as well as Brenham Street/San Marcos Major 
Improvements). This request will not exceed the overall authorized Major 
Improvement amount of funds already approved in the amount of $2,637,596 

 

26

Item 2.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 2, 2021 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
Second and Final Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance rezoning 43.92 acres, more or 
less, out of the James Manor Survey No. 40, Abstract 546, and being located in the 9900 block of Hill Lane, Manor, TX 
from Single Family (SF-1) to Light Industrial (IN-1). 
Applicant:  GarzaEMC  
Owner: Butler Family Partnership, Ltd. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

This property is a portion in the city limits of Manor and majority in Austin’s 2-mile ETJ. It also is more than half impaired 
by the Gilliland Creek floodplain, so the developable area (without approved floodplain modifications) is approximately 
28.50 acres. Our zoning recommends that Light Industrial areas be “along major roadways, but not directly along US Hwy 
290.” On our Thoroughfare Plan, Hill Lane is proposed to be a primary collector (2 lanes at 41’ of pavement in 64’ of 
ROW) and there is an additional primary collector outside the city limits that would connect Hill Lane north to the 
intersection of Gregg Manor and Fuchs Grove. The future roadway sizing would be sufficient to handle traffic and the 
location meets the intent of the criteria to not front along 290 but be in close proximity. 

Planning Commission voted 4-0 to approve.  

The Ordinance for this item is not complete as it lacks a metes and bounds description of the area to be rezoned. The 
applicant had been made aware the Ordinance could not be approved without a metes and bounds descriptions and 
they have been surveying the property to obtain one. Our Zoning Ordinance allows second readings to be held for up to 
90 days, so staff is recommending this Ordinance be postponed until such time a metes and bounds is provided or August 
18th, whichever comes first. 
LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable  
FISCAL IMPACT:  No 
PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• Ordinance 
• Letter of Intent  
• Rezoning Map 
• Area Image 

• Thoroughfare map 
• IN-1 Land Uses 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council postpone the second reading of an ordinance rezoning 43.92 
acres, more or less, out of the James Manor Survey No. 40, Abstract 546, and being located in the 9900 block of Hill Lane, 
Manor, TX from Single Family (SF-1) to Light Industrial (IN-1) until a metes and bounds description of the area to be 
rezoned is provided or the August 18th City Council meeting, whichever comes first. 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval 
X 

 Disapproval  None 

 
27

Item 3.



 
ORDINANCE NO.  _____       

 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 

ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING A PARCEL OF LAND FROM 
SINGLE FAMILY SUBURBAN (SF-1) TO LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (IN-1); 
MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED 
MATTERS.  

 WHEREAS, the owner of the property described hereinafter (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  

 WHEREAS, after giving ten days written notice to the owners of land within three hundred 
feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed 
rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 

   WHEREAS, after publishing notice of the public at least fifteen days prior to the date of such 
hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances of the 
Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to warrant a 
change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MANOR, TEXAS, THAT: 

 SECTION 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and 
are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 

 SECTION 2. Amendment of Ordinance.  City of Manor Code of Ordinances Chapter 14 
Zoning Ordinance ("Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and amended by rezoning the 
Property as set forth in Section 3. 

 SECTION 3. Rezoned Property.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing 
the zoning district for the land and parcel of property described in Exhibit “A” (the “Property”), from 
the current zoning district Single Family Suburban (SF-1) to zoning district Light Industrial (IN-1).  
The Property is accordingly hereby rezoned to Light Industrial (IN-1). 

 SECTION 4. Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 
551, Texas Gov't. Code. 

PASSED AND APPROVED FIRST READING on this the 19th day of May 2021. 

PASSED AND APPROVED SECOND AND FINAL READING on this the __ day of June 2021. 
 

THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS  
 
       ____________________________  
       Dr. Larry Wallace Jr.,  

Mayor  
ATTEST: 
  
____________________________ 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 
City Secretary  

 
 28

Item 3.



  

ORDINANCE NO.  Page 2 
 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Property Legal Description: 
 

 

29

Item 3.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GarzaEMC | Arboretum Plaza I, 9442 Capital of TX HWY N, Suite 315 |  Austin, TX 78759 | 512.298.3284 

www.garzaemc.com | TBPE No. F-14629 

April 16, 2021 

 

 

City of Manor 

Development services 

105 E. Eggleston Street 

Manor, Texas 77865 

 

 

Re:  Hill Lane Rezoning Request 

TCAD Property ID 912584 

 

Dear Sir or Madam, 

 

On behalf of our Client, GarzaEMC is submitting this rezoning request on the referenced property. 

 

The property referenced above that falls within the City of Manor Full Purpose Jurisdiction is requested 

to be rezoned from Single Family Residential – 1 (R-1) to Light Industrial (I-1). 

 

The zoning applicable to the property currently does not provide for a reasonable use due to size of the 

property, site restraints, and the adjacent development and zoning. Through discussions with City of 

Manor Development Services Staff it has been advised that Light Industrial (I-1) would provide a better 

zoning match for the development that is proposed for this site. 

 

With the above consideration, the proposed zoning fits in better with the area as the area is currently 

zoned mostly commercial or within the City of Austin ETJ where there are no zoning restrictions, and all 

known proposed developments are commercial uses. Commercial and Light Industrial share some of the 

same uses so even though there are no properties in the immediate area zoned industrial the zoning still 

fits within the same realm of uses and therefore will not change the character of the area. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Brandon Todd for 

Jonathan McKee 

Vice President 

GarzaEMC, LLC 

30

Item 3.



HILL

LANE

US HWY 290

GR
EG

G 
MA

NO
R

BU
RN

ET

WHEELER
BROWNING

RECTOR

BA
ST

RO
P

TOWNES

EGGLESTON

CA
LD

WE
LL

MURRAY

BOYCE

LEXINGTON

LA
 G

RA
NG

E

PARSONS

TUR WEG

LA
MP

AS
AS

LE
XIN

GTO
N

Zone
A - Agricultural
SF-1 - Single
Family
Suburban
SF-2 - Single
Family
Standard
TF - Two
Family
MF-1 - Multi-
Family 15
MF-2 - Multi-
Family 25

MH-1 -
Manufactured
Home
I-1 -
Institutional
Small
I-2 -
Institutional
Large
GO - General
Office
C-1 - Light
Commercial
C-2 - Medium
Commercial

C-3 - Heavy
Commercial
NB -
Neighborhood
Business
DB - Downtown
Business

IN-1 - Light
Industrial
IN-2 - Heavy
Industrial
PUD - Planned
Unit
Development
ETJ

¹
0 750 1,500 2,250 3,000

Feet

1 inch = 1,231 feet

Subject Property: 
Hill Lane 

P r o p o s e d  Z o n i n g :  P r o p o s e d  Z o n i n g :  
I N - 1  L i g h t  I n d u s t r i a lI N - 1  L i g h t  I n d u s t r i a l

C u r r e n t  Z o n i n g :  C u r r e n t  Z o n i n g :  
S i n g l e  F a m i l y  ( S F - 1 )S i n g l e  F a m i l y  ( S F - 1 )

31

Item 3.



 32

Item 3.



 33

Item 3.



5/7/2021 Sec. 14.02.017 - Non-residential and mixed-use districts land use table. | Code of Ordinances | Manor, TX | Municode Library

https://library.municode.com/tx/manor/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_CH14ZO_ART14.02ZODIRE_DIV3NSIMIEDI_S14.02.017NSIMIED… 1/9

(b) Non-residential uses in non-residential and mixed-use zoning districts.

 EXPAND

Non-Residential 

Uses

Zoning Districts

OS I-1 I-2 GO NB DB C-1 C-2 C-3 IN-1 IN-2

Adult day care P P P P

Adult-oriented

businesses

C/S C/S

Alcoholic beverage

establishment

S P P P P

Amusement

(indoor)

C C C

Amusement

(outdoor)

C C

Antique shop P P P P P

Art studio or gallery P P P P P P P P

Automobile repair

(major)

C C C C

Automobile repair

(minor)

C C C C

Automobile sales

and rental

C C

Automobile

washing

C C

34

Item 3.

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight



5/7/2021 Sec. 14.02.017 - Non-residential and mixed-use districts land use table. | Code of Ordinances | Manor, TX | Municode Library

https://library.municode.com/tx/manor/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_CH14ZO_ART14.02ZODIRE_DIV3NSIMIEDI_S14.02.017NSIMIED… 2/9

Non-Residential 

Uses

Zoning Districts

OS I-1 I-2 GO NB DB C-1 C-2 C-3 IN-1 IN-2

Brewery, micro P P P P

Brewery, regional P P P

Brewpub P P P P

Business support

services

P P P P P

Campground S S S

Cemetery S P P

Child care center

(intermediate)

P P P P P P P P

Child care center

(large)

P P P P P P P P

Club or lodge P P P P P P P P

Commercial off-

street parking

C C C C

Communication

services or facilities

P P P P P

Construction and

equipment sales

(Major)

P P

35

Item 3.

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight



5/7/2021 Sec. 14.02.017 - Non-residential and mixed-use districts land use table. | Code of Ordinances | Manor, TX | Municode Library

https://library.municode.com/tx/manor/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_CH14ZO_ART14.02ZODIRE_DIV3NSIMIEDI_S14.02.017NSIMIED… 3/9

Non-Residential 

Uses

Zoning Districts

OS I-1 I-2 GO NB DB C-1 C-2 C-3 IN-1 IN-2

Construction and

equipment sales

(Minor)

P P P

Construction

services

C C C C

Consumer repair

services

P P P P P

Contractor's shop C C C

Data center P P P

Day camp S P P

Distillery, micro P P P P

Distillery, regional P P P

Event center P P C/S C/S C/S P P

Financial services C C C C C C

Financial services,

alternative

C C

Florist C C C C C

Food court

establishment

C/S C/S C/S

Food preparation C C C C C C

36

Item 3.

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight



5/7/2021 Sec. 14.02.017 - Non-residential and mixed-use districts land use table. | Code of Ordinances | Manor, TX | Municode Library

https://library.municode.com/tx/manor/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_CH14ZO_ART14.02ZODIRE_DIV3NSIMIEDI_S14.02.017NSIMIED… 4/9

Non-Residential 

Uses

Zoning Districts

OS I-1 I-2 GO NB DB C-1 C-2 C-3 IN-1 IN-2

Food sales C C C C C

Funeral services C C C C C C C C C

Game room C/S C/S C/S

Gasoline station

(full-service)

C C

Gasoline station

(limited)

C/S C/S C C

General retail sales

(convenience)

P P P P P P

General retail sales

(general)

P P P P P

Golf course/country

club

S

Governmental

facilities

P P P P P P P P P P P

Hospital services P P P

Hotel C/S C C C C

Industrial use, light P P

Industrial use,

heavy

P

37

Item 3.

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight



5/7/2021 Sec. 14.02.017 - Non-residential and mixed-use districts land use table. | Code of Ordinances | Manor, TX | Municode Library

https://library.municode.com/tx/manor/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_CH14ZO_ART14.02ZODIRE_DIV3NSIMIEDI_S14.02.017NSIMIED… 5/9

Non-Residential 

Uses

Zoning Districts

OS I-1 I-2 GO NB DB C-1 C-2 C-3 IN-1 IN-2

Kennel C C C

Laundry services P P P P

Laundry services

(self)

P P P P P

Liquor sales P P P P P

Medical clinic P P P P P

Metal recycling

entity

C

Mini-storage

warehouse

C C C

Offices, government P P P P P P P P P P P

Offices, medical P P P P P

Offices,

professional

P P P P P

Offices, showroom P P

Offices, warehouse C C C

Off-site accessory

parking

P P P P P P P P P

Pawnshop C/S C/S C/S

38

Item 3.

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight



5/7/2021 Sec. 14.02.017 - Non-residential and mixed-use districts land use table. | Code of Ordinances | Manor, TX | Municode Library

https://library.municode.com/tx/manor/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_CH14ZO_ART14.02ZODIRE_DIV3NSIMIEDI_S14.02.017NSIMIED… 6/9

Non-Residential 

Uses

Zoning Districts

OS I-1 I-2 GO NB DB C-1 C-2 C-3 IN-1 IN-2

Personal

improvement

services

P P P P P

Personal services P P P P P

Printing and

publishing

C C C C C C

Product

development

services (general)

P P P

Product

development

services (hazard)

P

Recreational vehicle

park

C/S C/S

Recreational vehicle

sales, service, and

rental

C C C

Recycling operation

(indoor)

P P

Recycling operation

(outdoor)

C

Religious assembly P P P P P P P P P P P

39

Item 3.

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight



5/7/2021 Sec. 14.02.017 - Non-residential and mixed-use districts land use table. | Code of Ordinances | Manor, TX | Municode Library

https://library.municode.com/tx/manor/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_CH14ZO_ART14.02ZODIRE_DIV3NSIMIEDI_S14.02.017NSIMIED… 7/9

Non-Residential 

Uses

Zoning Districts

OS I-1 I-2 GO NB DB C-1 C-2 C-3 IN-1 IN-2

Research services

(general)

P P P

Research services

(hazard)

P

Restaurant P P P P P P

Restaurant—Drive-

in or drive-through

C C C

School, boarding P P P P P

School, business or

trade

P P P P P

School, college or

university

P P P P

School, private or

parochial

P P P P P

School, public P P P P P

Shooting range,

indoor

P P

Smoke shop or

tobacco store

P P

Theater P P P

40

Item 3.

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight



5/7/2021 Sec. 14.02.017 - Non-residential and mixed-use districts land use table. | Code of Ordinances | Manor, TX | Municode Library

https://library.municode.com/tx/manor/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_CH14ZO_ART14.02ZODIRE_DIV3NSIMIEDI_S14.02.017NSIMIED… 8/9

Non-Residential 

Uses

Zoning Districts

OS I-1 I-2 GO NB DB C-1 C-2 C-3 IN-1 IN-2

Transportation

terminal

C C C C

Truck and trailer

sales and rental

C C C

Truck stop P P

Utility services,

major

C C C

Utility services,

minor

P P P P P P P P P P P

Vehicle storage

facility

C C

Veterinary services,

large

C C

Veterinary services,

small

C C C C C

Wireless

transmission

facilities (WTF),

attached

C C C C C/S C/S C C C C C

Wireless

transmission

facilities (WTF)

monopole

C/S C/S C/S C/S C/S C/S C/S C/S C/S

41

Item 3.

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight



5/7/2021 Sec. 14.02.017 - Non-residential and mixed-use districts land use table. | Code of Ordinances | Manor, TX | Municode Library

https://library.municode.com/tx/manor/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_CH14ZO_ART14.02ZODIRE_DIV3NSIMIEDI_S14.02.017NSIMIED… 9/9

Non-Residential 

Uses

Zoning Districts

OS I-1 I-2 GO NB DB C-1 C-2 C-3 IN-1 IN-2

Wireless

transmission

facilities (WTF),

stealth

C C C C C/S C/S C C C C C

Zoo, private P P

42

Item 3.

hferguson
Highlight

hferguson
Highlight



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 2, 2021 
PREPARED BY: Thomas Bolt, City Manager 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a resolution approving and authorizing the Rose Hill Public 
Improvement District Reimbursement Agreement. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 
On June 25, 2003, the City Council approved the creation of the Rose Hill Public Improvement District (PID) and 
the City entered into a Management Agreement with Kevin McCright on June 26, 2003. An ordinance levying 
assessments on the property located within the Rose Hill PID was approved on July 16, 2003. On September 20, 
2006, the City Council approved the addition of land to the Rose Hill PID and recalculated assessments on the 
property located within the Rose Hill PID. The Management Agreement contained provisions regarding the billing 
and collection of the assessments and reimbursements to the Developer, among other things. The Management 
Agreement terminated on March 18, 2020 due to the resignation of Kevin McCright. The attached resolution is 
presented to you for consideration to approve and authorize the Rose Hill Public Improvement District 
Reimbursement Agreement. 

 
LEGAL REVIEW: Yes, Completed 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
PRESENTATION:   
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• Resolution No. 2021-15 
• Agreement for Billing and Collection Services Between Travis County and the City of Manor Related to 

the Rose Hill Public Improvement District. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve Resolution No. 2021-15 approving and 
authorizing the Rose Hill Public Improvement District Reimbursement Agreement. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

43

Item 4.



  

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-15 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS APPROVING AND 
AUTHORIZING THE ROSE HILL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT  

WHEREAS, the City of Manor (the “City”), pursuant to and in accordance with the terms, 
provisions and requirements of the Public Improvement District Assessment Act, Chapter 372, 
Texas Local Government Code (the “PID Act”), authorized the creation of the "Rose Hill Public 
Improvement District" (the “District”) pursuant to Resolution No. 2003-15 adopted by the Manor 
City Council (the “City Council”) on June 25, 2003; and 

WHEREAS, on September 20, 2006, the City authorized Resolution No. 2006-14 to 
include additional land within the District; and  

WHEREAS, the City entered into a Development Agreement with RH-Manor, Ltd. and 
The Parke at Hawk Hollow, L.P. that stated the intent and expectation of the parties that the City 
would reimburse RH-Manor, Ltd. and The Parke at Hawk Hollow, L.P., or their successors in 
interest, for the costs of the construction of certain public improvements constructed for the benefit 
of the District; and 

 WHEREAS, Continental Homes of Texas, L.P., a Texas limited partnership (“Continental 
Homes”) is, for the purposes of the Development Agreement, the successor in interest to the 
obligations and interests of RH-Manor, Ltd. and The Parke at Hawk Hollow, L.P. under the 
Development Agreement; and  

 WHEREAS, the parties to the Development Agreement entered into a Management 
Agreement with Kevin McCright which was approved and effective June 26, 2003 which directed 
the management of the Rose Hill PID and the reimbursement obligations of the PID; and 

WHEREAS, the Management Agreement terminated on March 18, 2020 due to the 
resignation of Kevin McCright as the PID manager; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines to approve the forms, terms, and/or 
provisions of a PID Reimbursement Agreement to direct the management of the PID and the 
reimbursement obligations of the PID; and  

WHEREAS, this Resolution and the PID Reimbursement Agreement approved by it, are 
in furtherance of the intentions of the parties to the Development Agreement; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MANOR, TEXAS:  

Section 1. Findings. The findings and determinations set forth in the preamble hereof are 
hereby incorporated by reference for all purposes as if set forth in full herein. Capitalized terms 
used in this Resolution and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to them 
in the PID Reimbursement Agreement.  

44

Item 4.



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-15 Page 2 

 

  

 

Section 2. Approval of PID Reimbursement Agreement. The Rose Hill Public Improvement 
District Reimbursement Agreement (the “PID Reimbursement Agreement”), between the City and 
Continental Homes is hereby approved in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, and 
the Mayor of the City (the “Mayor”) or the City Manager of the City (the “City Manager”) is 
hereby authorized and directed to execute the PID Reimbursement Agreement, with such changes 
as may be required to carry out the purposes of this Resolution and approved by the Mayor or City 
Manager, such approval to be evidenced by the execution thereof. The Mayor's or City Manager’s 
signature on the PID Reimbursement Agreement may be attested by the City Secretary.  

Section 3. Additional Actions. The Mayor, Finance Director, City Manager, and City 
Secretary of the City are hereby authorized and directed to take all actions on behalf of the City 
necessary or desirable to carry out the intent and purposes of this Resolution. The Mayor, Finance 
Director, City Manager, and City Secretary of the City are hereby directed to execute and deliver 
any and all certificates, agreements, notices, instruction letters, requisitions, and other documents 
which may be necessary or advisable in the carrying out of the purposes and intent of this 
Resolution.  

Section 4. Governing Law. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America.  

Section 5. Effect of Headings. The section headings herein are for convenience only and 
shall not affect the construction hereof.  

Section 6. Severability. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution or the application thereof 
to other circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and this governing body hereby declares that 
this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid provision.  

Section 7. Construction of Terms. If appropriate in the context of this Resolution, words of 
the singular number shall be considered to include the plural, words of the plural number shall be 
considered to include the singular, and words of the masculine, feminine or neuter gender shall be 
considered to include the other genders.  

  [Execution page follows.]  

45

Item 4.



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-15 Page 3 

 

  

 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of Manor, Texas, at a regular meeting on the 
2nd day of June 2021, at which a quorum was present, and for which due notice was given 
pursuant to Government Code, Chapter 551. 

 

 

       
Dr. Larry Wallace Jr.  
Mayor, City of Manor, Texas  

 

ATTEST:  

 
 
      
Lluvia T. Almaraz 
City Secretary 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

46

Item 4.



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-15 Page 4 

 

  

 

 

47

Item 4.



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-15 Page 5 

 

  

 

EXHIBIT A 

ROSE HILL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 

 
 

48

Item 4.



Page 1 
 

Rose Hill Public Improvement District 
Reimbursement Agreement 

 
This Rose Hill Public Improvement District Reimbursement Agreement (this “Agreement”) is 
entered into by Continental Homes of Texas, L.P., a Texas limited partnership (the “Developer”) 
and the City of Manor, Texas (the “City”), to be effective ___________________, 2021 (the 
"Effective Date"). The Developer and the City are individually referred to as a “Party” and 
collectively as the “Parties.” 
 

SECTION 1. RECITALS 
 
1.1 WHEREAS, the Developer is a Texas limited partnership; 
 
1.2 WHEREAS, the City is a Texas home rule municipality; 
 
1.3 WHEREAS, on June 4, 2003, the City and Developer’s predecessors-in-interest (RH-
Manor, Ltd. and The Parke at Hawk Hollow, L.P.), and the City entered into that certain 
Development Agreement and those certain First Addendum, Second Addendum, Third Addendum 
and Fourth Addendum (collectively, the “Development Agreement”); and 
 
1.4 WHEREAS, on June 25, 2003, the City of Manor City Council (“City Council”) passed, 
approved and authorized the creation of the Rosehill Public Improvement District ("PID" or 
"District") under Resolution No. 2003-15 (“PID Creation Resolution”) covering approximately 
196.236 contiguous acres within the City's corporate limits and which property is described in the 
PID Creation Resolution to finance the costs of certain public improvements for the benefit of 
property within the District pursuant to the authority of Chapter 372 of the Local Government 
Code (“Act”); 
 
1.5 WHEREAS, the Management Agreement between the City and Kevin McCright (“PID 
Manager”) was approved and effective June 26, 2003 which directed the management of the PID 
and the reimbursement obligations of the PID; 
 
1.6 WHEREAS, on July 2, 2003, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 226 (“Method of 
Assessment Ordinance”), which determined the method of assessing individual parcels within the 
PID; 
 
1.7 WHEREAS, on July 16, 2003, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 227 (“Original 
Assessment Ordinance”), which levied Assessments on property located within the PID to finance 
the Authorized Improvements for the benefit of such property; 
 
1.8 WHEREAS, on February 28, 2006, the PID Manager sent the City the 2005 PID 
Management Report, which summarized the Assessment Roll for 2005 (“Service and Assessment 
Plan” or “SAP”); 
 

49

Item 4.



Page 2 
 

1.9 WHEREAS, February 2, 2020, the Manager sent the City the 2019 PID Management 
Report, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A, which summarized the Assessment 
Roll for 2020 (“Updated SAP”);  
 
1.10 WHEREAS, the City Council contemplates adopting an Amended and Restated SAP on or 
before September 30, 2021 (“Amended SAP”); 
 
1.11 WHEREAS, the Updated SAP identifies Authorized Improvements to be designed, 
constructed, and installed by or at the direction of the Parties that confer a special benefit on the 
Assessed Property; 
 
1.12 WHEREAS, the Updated SAP sets forth the Actual Costs of the Authorized Improvements; 
 
1.13 WHEREAS, the Updated SAP determines and apportions the Actual Costs of the 
Authorized Improvements to the Assessed Property, which Actual Costs represent the special 
benefit that the Authorized Improvements confer upon the Assessed Property as required by the 
Act; 
 
1.14 WHEREAS, the Assessment Ordinance levied the Actual Costs of the Authorized 
Improvements as Assessments against the Assessed Property in the amounts set forth on the 
Assessment Roll(s); 
 
1.15 WHEREAS, on September 20, 2006, the City adopted Resolution No. 2006-14 (the 
“Amended Resolution”) which added a certain 53.17 acres of land to the PID and recalculated and 
established the Assessment against lots located within the PID; 
 
1.16 WHEREAS, on October 4, 2006, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 311, which 
assessed cost services and improvements related to the PID; 
 
1.17 WHEREAS, on November 1, 2006, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 313, which 
closed public hearings and levied Assessments; 
 
1.18 WHEREAS, on October 21, 2009, the City adopted and approved Ordinance No. 378 
which reassessed the payment of Assessments regarding the addition of land to the PID, including 
an Assessment Roll, and levied Assessments on all the property, including the additional land, 
within the PID to finance the Authorized Improvements for the benefit of such property; 
 
1.19 WHEREAS, on August 3, 2012, RH-Manor, Ltd. and Developer entered into that certain 
Assignment Agreement for the assignment of the PID and reimbursement rights from RH-Manor, 
Ltd. to Developer;  
 
1.20 WHEREAS, the Management Agreement terminated on March 18, 2020 due to the 
resignation of the PID Manager;  
 
1.21 WHEREAS, on March 18, 2020, the City entered into that certain Agreement For Public 
Improvement District Administration Services with P3Works, LLC (the “PID Administrator”) 

50

Item 4.



Page 3 
 

attached hereto and incorporated herein as if fully set forth as Exhibit B which sets forth the terms 
for the management of the Rose Hill PID (the “PID Administration Agreement”); 
 
1.22 WHEREAS, the Parties are entering into this Agreement to direct the management of the 
PID and the reimbursement obligations of the PID. 
 
1.23 WHEREAS, Assessments, including the Annual Installments thereof, for the Authorized 
Improvements are due and payable as described in the Updated SAP, as will be amended by the 
Amended SAP; 
 
1.24 WHEREAS, Annual Installments shall be billed and collected by the City or it's designee; 
 
1.25 WHEREAS, Assessment Revenue from the collection of Assessments, including the 
Annual Installments thereof, levied against the Assessed Property shall be deposited as provided 
in this Agreement; 
 
1.26 WHEREAS, this Agreement is a "reimbursement agreement" authorized by Section 
372.023(d)(1) of the Act; 
 
1.27 WHEREAS, the foregoing RECITALS: (1) are part of this Agreement for all purposes; (2) 
are true and correct; and (3) each Party has relied upon such Recitals in entering into this 
Agreement; and 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual agreements, covenants, and 
conditions contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the Parties hereto agree 
as follows: 
 

SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS 
 

2.1 "Act" is defined as Chapter 372, Texas Local Government Code, as amended. 
 
2.2 "Actual Costs" are defined as with respect to Authorized Improvements, the actual costs 
paid or incurred by or on behalf of an Owner, including : (1) the costs incurred by or on behalf of 
the Original Owner or Owner (either directly or through affiliates) for the design, planning, 
administration/management, acquisition, installation, construction and/or implementation of such 
Authorized Improvements; (2) the fees paid for obtaining permits, licenses, or other governmental 
approvals for such Authorized Improvements; (3) the costs incurred by or on behalf of the Original 
Owner or Owner for external professional costs, such as engineering, geotechnical, surveying, land 
planning, architectural landscapers, appraisals, legal, accounting, and similar professional 
services; (4) all labor, bonds, and materials, including equipment and fixtures, by contractors, 
builders, and materialmen in connection with the acquisition, construction, or implementation of 
the Authorized Improvements; (5) all related permitting and public approval expenses, 
architectural, engineering, and consulting fees, taxes, and governmental fees and charges and (6) 
costs to implement, administer, and manage the above‐described activities including, but not 
limited to, a construction management fee of up to four percent (4%) of construction costs if 
managed by or on behalf of the owners or developers. 

51

Item 4.



Page 4 
 

 
2.3 “Administrator” is defined as P3Works, LLC, the City or independent firm designated by 
the City who shall have the responsibilities provided in the PID Administration Agreement, the 
Amended SAP, or any other agreement or document approved by the City related to the duties and 
responsibilities of the administration of the District. 
 
2.4 "Agreement" is defined in the introductory paragraph. 
 
2.5 “Amended Resolution” is defined in Section 1.15. 
 
2.6 "Amended SAP" is defined as the Rose Hill Public Improvement District Amended and 
Restated Service and Assessment Plan contemplated to be approved by City Council on or before 
September 30, 2021, as the same may be updated or amended from time to time by City Council 
action in accordance with the Act. 
 
2.7 "Annual Collection Costs" are defined as the actual or budgeted costs and expenses related 
to the creation and operation of the District and the construction of the Authorized Improvements, 
including, but not limited to, costs and expenses for: (1) the Administrator; (2) City staff; (3) legal 
counsel, engineers, accountants, financial advisors, and other consultants engaged by the City; (4) 
calculating, collecting, and maintaining records with respect to Assessments and Annual 
Installments; (5) preparing and maintaining records with respect to Assessment Rolls and annual 
SAP updates; and (6) investing or depositing Assessments and Annual Installments.  After 
Assessments have been collected, these costs are deducted from the amount paid to the Developer. 
 
2.8 "Annual Installment" is defined as the annual installment payment on the Assessment as 
stated in the Amended Resolution which totals $465 for all Lots in the District that have been 
issued a certificate of occupancy and $100 for all Lots in the District which have not been issued 
a certificate of occupancy. 
 
2.9 "Applicable Laws" is defined as the Act and all other laws or statutes, rules, or regulations 
of the State of Texas or the United States, as the same may be amended, by which the City and its 
powers, securities, operations, and procedures are, or may be, governed or from which its powers 
may be derived. 
 
2.10 "Assessed Property" is defined as any Parcel within the District against which an 
Assessment is levied.  
 
2.11 "Assessment" is defined as an assessment levied against a Parcel within the District and 
imposed pursuant to an Assessment Ordinance and the provisions herein, as shown on an 
Assessment Roll, subject to reallocation upon the subdivision of such Parcel or reduction 
according to the provisions herein and in the PID Act. 
 
2.12 "Assessment Ordinance" is defined as an ordinance adopted by the City Council in 
accordance with the PID Act that levies an Assessment on Assessed Property within the District, 
as shown on any Assessment Roll. 
 

52

Item 4.



Page 5 
 

2.13 "Assessment Revenue" is defined as the revenues actually received by or on behalf of the 
City from the collection of Assessments, including Prepayments, Annual Installments, Delinquent 
Collection Costs and foreclosure proceeds. 
 
2.14 "Assessment Roll" is defined as any assessment roll for the Assessed Property within the 
District, including the Lot 2021 Assessment Roll, Lot Type 2020 Assessment Roll, the Lot Type 
2019 Assessment Roll, the Lot Type 2018 Assessment Roll, the Lot Type 2017 Assessment Roll, 
the Lot Type 2016 Assessment Roll, the Lot Type 2015 Assessment Roll, the Lot Type 2014 
Assessment Roll, the Lot Type 2013 Assessment Roll, the Lot Type 2012 Assessment Roll, the 
Lot Type 2011 Assessment Roll, the Lot Type 2010 Assessment Roll, the Lot Type 2009 
Assessment Roll, the Lot Type 2008 Assessment Roll, the Lot Type 2007 Assessment Roll, and 
the Lot Type 100 Assessment Roll, as updated, modified or amended from time to time in 
accordance with the procedures set forth herein and in the PID Act, including updates prepared in 
connection with the issuance of  PID Bonds, or any annual SAP update. 
 
2.15 "Authorized Improvements" are defined as improvements authorized by Section 372.003 
of the PID Act, as depicted on Exhibit B of the Updated SAP. 
 
2.16 "City" is defined in the introductory paragraph. 
 
2.17 "City Council" is defined as the governing body of the City. 
 
2.18 "City Representative" is defined as the person authorized by the City Council to undertake 
the actions referenced herein. 
 
2.19 “County” is defined as Travis County, Texas. 
 
2.20 "Default" is defined in Section 4.8.1. 
 
2.21 "Delinquent Collection Costs" are defined as costs related to the foreclosure on Assessed 
Property and the costs of collection of delinquent Assessments, delinquent Annual Installments, 
or any other delinquent amounts due under the Updated SAP including penalties and reasonable 
attorney’s fees actually paid, but excluding amounts representing interest and penalty interest. 
 
2.22 "Developer" is defined in the introductory paragraph. 
 
2.23 “District” is defined in Section 1.4. 
 
2.24 "Effective Date" is defined in the introductory paragraph. 
 
2.25 "Failure" is defined in Section 4.8.1. 
 
2.26 “Lots” is defined as any portion of the District for which a final subdivision plat has been 
recorded in the official public records of the County, a tract of land described by “lot” in such 
subdivision plat. 
 

53

Item 4.



Page 6 
 

2.27 "Maturity Date" is defined as the earlier date of (1) January 31, 2051, or (2) to the extent 
allowed by law, the date that the Rose Hill PID Reimbursement Agreement Balance is paid in full 
in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
 
2.28 “Parcel” or “Parcels” means a specific property within the District identified by either a 
tax map identification number assigned by the Travis Central Appraisal District for real property 
tax purpose, by metes and bounds description, or by lot and block number in a final subdivision 
plat recorded in the official public records of the County, or by any other means determined by the 
City. 
 
2.29 "Party" and "Parties" are defined in the introductory paragraph. 
 
2.30 "PID" is defined as the Rose Hill Public Improvement District created by the PID Creation 
Resolution. 
 
2.31 “PID Administration Agreement” is defined in Section 1.21. 
 
2.32 "PID Creation Resolution" is defined as Resolution No. 2003-15 passed and approved by 
the City Council on June 25, 2003.  
 
2.33 “PID Manager” is defined as Kevin McCright, the individual responsible for the issuance 
of annual Management Reports, collection of Annual Installments and all other actions related to 
the duties and responsibilities of the administration of the District as outlined in the Management 
Agreement entered into between Kevin McCright and the City on June 26, 2003. 
 
2.34 "Prepayment" is defined as the payment of all or a portion of an Assessment before the due 
date of the final Annual Installment thereof. Amounts received at the time of a Prepayment which 
represent a payment of principal, interest, or penalties on a delinquent installment of an 
Assessment are not to be considered a Prepayment, but rather are to be treated as the payment of 
the delinquent scheduled Annual Installment. 
 
2.35 "Rose Hill PID Reimbursement Agreement Balance" is defined in Section 3.2. 
 
2.36 "Rose Hill PID Reimbursement Fund" means the fund established by the City under this 
Agreement (and segregated from all other funds of the City) into which the City deposits 
Assessment Revenue. 
 
2.37 “Service and Assessment Plan” or "SAP" is defined in Section 1.8. 
 
2.38 "Transfer" and "Transferee" are defined in Section 4.11. 
 
2.39 “Updated SAP” is defined as the Rose Hill Public Improvement District 
(Stonewater/Stonewater North Subdivisions, Manor, Texas) Management Report for 2019.  
 
 
 

54

Item 4.



Page 7 
 

SECTION 3. FUNDING AUTHORIZED IMPROVEMENTS 
 

3.1 Fund Deposits. The City shall bill, collect, and immediately deposit into the Rose Hill PID 
Reimbursement Fund all Assessment Revenues consisting of: (1) revenue collected from the 
payment of Assessments (including pre-payments and amounts received from the foreclosure of 
liens but excluding costs and expenses related to collection) levied against Assessed Property; and 
(2) revenue collected from the payment of Annual Installments (excluding Annual Collection 
Costs and Delinquent Collection Costs) of Assessments levied against Assessed Property. Annual 
Installments of the Assessments shall be billed and collected by the City (or by any person, entity, 
or governmental agency permitted by law) in the same manner and at the same time as City ad 
valorem taxes are billed and collected. Funds in the Rose Hill PID Reimbursement Fund shall only 
be used to pay the Rose Hill PID Reimbursement Agreement Balance in accordance with this 
Agreement. The City will take and pursue all actions permissible under Applicable Laws to cause 
the Assessments to be collected and the liens related to such Assessments to be enforced 
continuously, in the manner and to the maximum extent permitted by the Applicable Laws, and, 
to the extent permitted by Applicable Laws, to cause no reduction, abatement or exemption in the 
Assessments for so long as a Rose Hill PID Reimbursement Agreement Balance remains 
outstanding. The City shall determine or cause to be determined, no later than March 1st of each 
year whether any Annual Installment is delinquent and if such delinquencies exist, the City will 
order and cause to be commenced as soon as practicable any and all appropriate and legally 
permissible actions to obtain such Annual Installment, and any delinquent charges and interest 
thereon, including diligently prosecuting an action to foreclose the currently delinquent Annual 
Installment; provided, however, the City shall not be required under any circumstances to purchase 
or make payment for the purchase of the delinquent Assessment or the corresponding Assessed 
Property. 
 
3.2 Payment of Rose Hill PID Reimbursement Agreement Balance.  
 
 3.2.1 The City agrees to pay to the Developer, and the Developer shall be entitled to 
receive payments from the City for amounts available in the Rose Hill PID Reimbursement Fund 
collected from annual installments of the assessments less Annual Collection Costs and Delinquent 
Collection Costs (the "Rose Hill PID Reimbursement Agreement Balance") in accordance with 
the terms of this Reimbursement Agreement until the Maturity Date; provided, however, the 
Actual Costs shall not exceed $34,533,542.00.  
 
 3.2.2 The Annual Installment, from one Parcel of Assessed Property may not be applied 
against the obligation of an Assessment, levied against another Parcel of Assessed Property, 
including an Annual Installment. 
 
 3.2.3 The City shall make a payment to the Developer from the PID Reimbursement Fund 
for the Rose Hill PID Reimbursement Agreement Balance at least annually, and no later than six 
months after the date payment of the Annual Installments are due and payable to the City. In the 
event that a Prepayment of an Assessment is made by a property owner for the entire principal 
amount and interest due up to the date of the prepayment, then the City shall notify the PID 
Administrator, who will prepare a lien release to be filed in the Real Property Records, and as soon 
as practically as possible after the lien release is filed, remit payment to the Developer of the 

55

Item 4.



Page 8 
 

Assessment Revenue deposited into the Rose Hill PID Reimbursement Fund. If the Prepayment is 
made after the annual SAP update has been approved by the City Council in a given year, then the 
lien release will be held until the tax bills are collected and accounted for to ensure complete 
payment of the lien.  If the Prepayment is made within a calendar year up to December 31, 
reimbursement to the Developer will be made in the succeeding calendar year. Payments made 
from the Rose Hill PID Reimbursement Fund will follow the annual SAP update approved by the 
City Council each year and subject to Section 3.4 below. The Rose Hill PID Reimbursement 
Agreement Balance is authorized by the Act, was approved by the City Council, and represents 
the total costs to be assessed against the Assessed Property for the Actual Costs of the Authorized 
Improvements. 
 
3.3 Disbursements from the Rose Hill PID Reimbursement Fund. In order to receive 
disbursements from the Rose Hill PID Reimbursement Fund for payment of the Rose Hill PID 
Reimbursement Agreement Balance, the Developer shall annually execute a request for payment 
form, attached hereto and incorporated herein as if fully set forth as Exhibit C (the “Request for 
Payment”) delivered to the City for payment in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. 
Upon receipt of the Request for Payment, the City shall arrange for payment to the Developer from 
the Rose Hill PID Reimbursement Fund as quickly as practicable thereafter. 
 
3.4 Obligations Limited. The obligations of the City under this Agreement shall not, under any 
circumstances, give rise to or create a charge against the general credit or taxing power of the City 
or a debt or other obligation of the City payable from any source other than the Rose Hill PID 
Reimbursement Fund. No other City funds, revenues, taxes, or income of any kind shall be used 
to pay: (1) the Actual Costs of the Authorized Improvements, or (2) the Rose Hill PID 
Reimbursement Agreement Balance even if the Rose Hill PID Reimbursement Agreement Balance 
is not paid in full on or before the Maturity Date. None of the City or any of its elected or appointed 
officials or any of its officers, employees, consultants or representatives shall incur any liability 
hereunder to the Developer or any other party in their individual capacities by reason of this 
Agreement or their acts or omissions under this Agreement. 
 

SECTION 4. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 
 

4.1 Term. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and shall continue 
until the Maturity Date. 
 
4.2 No Competitive Bidding. Construction of the Authorized Improvements shall not require 
competitive bidding pursuant to Section 252.022(a) (9) of the Texas Local Government Code, as 
amended. All plans and specifications, but not construction contracts, shall be reviewed and 
approved, in writing, by the City prior to Developer selecting the contractor. 
 
4.3 Independent Contractor. In performing this Agreement, the Developer is an independent 
contractor and not the agent or employee of the City.  
 
4.4 Audit. The City Representative shall have the right, during normal business hours and upon 
five (5) business days' prior written notice to the Developer, to review all books and records of the 
Developer pertaining to costs and expenses incurred by the Developer with respect to any of the 

56

Item 4.



Page 9 
 

Authorized Improvements. For a period of two years after completion of the Authorized 
Improvements, the Developer shall maintain proper books of record and account for the 
construction of the Authorized Improvements and all costs related thereto. Such accounting books 
shall be maintained in accordance with customary real estate accounting principles. The Developer 
shall have the right, during normal business hours, to review all records and accounts pertaining 
to the Assessments upon written request to the City. The City shall provide the Developer an 
opportunity to inspect such books and records relating to the Assessments during the City's regular 
business hours and on a mutually agreeable date no later than ten (10) business days after the City 
receives such written request. The City shall keep and maintain a proper and complete system of 
records and accounts pertaining to the Assessments for so long as the Rose Hill PID 
Reimbursement Agreement Balance remains unpaid. 
 
4.5 Developer's Right to Protest Ad Valorem Taxes. Nothing in this Agreement shall be 
construed to limit or restrict Developer's right to protest ad valorem taxes. The Developer's 
decision to protest ad valorem taxes on Assessed Property does not constitute a Default under this 
Agreement. 
 
4.6 PID Administration and Collection of Assessments. If the City designates an administrator 
who shall have the responsibilities provided in the Amended SAP related to the duties and 
responsibilities of the administration of the PID, the City shall provide the Developer with a copy 
of the agreement between the City and the administrator upon written request by the Developer. If 
the City contracts with a third-party for the collection of Annual Installments of the Assessments, 
the City shall provide the Developer with a copy of such agreement upon written request from the 
Developer. 
 
4.7 Representations and Warranties. 
 
 4.7.1 The Developer represents and warrants to the City that: (1) the Developer has the 
authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this Agreement; (2) the Developer has the 
financial resources, or the ability to obtain sufficient financial resources, to meet its obligations 
under this Agreement; (3) the person executing this Agreement on behalf of the Developer has 
been duly authorized to do so; (4) this Agreement is binding upon the Developer in accordance 
with its terms; and (5) the execution of this Agreement and the performance by the Developer of 
its obligations under this Agreement do not constitute a breach or event of default by the Developer 
under any other agreement, instrument, or order to which the Developer is a party or by which the 
Developer is bound.  
 
 4.7.2 The City represents and warrants to the Developer that: (1) the City has the 
authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this Agreement; (2) the person executing 
this Agreement on behalf of the City has been duly authorized to do so; (3) this Agreement is 
binding upon the City in accordance with its terms; and (4) the execution of this Agreement and 
the performance by the City of its obligations under this Agreement do not constitute a breach or 
event of default by the City under any other agreement, instrument, or order to which the City is a 
party or by which the City is bound. 
 
4.8 Default/Remedies. 

57

Item 4.



Page 10 
 

 
 4.8.1 If either Party fails to perform an obligation imposed on such Party by this 
Agreement (a "Failure") and such Failure is not cured after notice and the expiration of the cure 
periods provided in this section, then such Failure shall constitute a "Default." If a Failure is 
monetary, the non-performing Party shall have ten (10) days within which to cure. If the Failure 
is non-monetary, the non-performing Party shall have thirty (30) days within which to cure. 
 
 4.8.2 If the Developer is in Default, the City shall have available all remedies at law or 
in equity; provided no default by the Developer shall entitle the City to terminate this Agreement 
or to withhold payments to the Developer from the Rose Hill PID Reimbursement Fund in 
accordance with this Agreement. 
 
 4.8.3 If the City is in Default, the Developer shall have available all remedies at law or 
in equity; provided, however, no Default by the City shall entitle the Developer to terminate this 
Agreement. 
 
 4.8.4 The City shall give notice of any alleged Failure by the Developer to each 
Transferee identified in any notice from the Developer, and such Transferees shall have the right, 
but not the obligation, to cure the alleged Failure within the same cure periods that are provided to 
the Developer. The election by a Transferee to cure a Failure by the Developer shall constitute a 
cure by the Developer but shall not obligate the Transferee to be bound by this Agreement unless 
the Transferee agrees in writing to be bound. 
 
4.9 Remedies Outside the Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement constitutes a waiver by the 
City of any remedy the City may have outside this Agreement against the Developer, any 
Transferee, or any other person or entity involved in the design, construction, or installation of the 
Authorized Improvements. The obligations of the Developer hereunder shall be those of a party 
hereto and not as an owner of property in the PID. Nothing herein shall be construed as affecting 
the City's or the Developer's rights or duties to perform their respective obligations under other 
agreements, use regulations, or subdivision requirements relating to the development property in 
the PID. 
 
4.10 Estoppel Certificate. From time to time upon written request of the Developer, the City 
Manager will execute a written estoppel certificate (1) identifying any obligations of the Developer 
under this Agreement that are in default or, with the giving of notice or passage of time, would be 
in default; or (2) stating, to the extent true, that to the best knowledge and belief of the City, the 
Developer is in compliance with its duties and obligations under this Agreement. 
 
4.11 Transfers. The Developer has the right to convey, transfer, assign, mortgage, pledge, or 
otherwise encumber, in whole or in part without the consent of (but with notice to) the City, the 
Developer's right, title, or interest to payments under this Agreement (but not performance 
obligations) including, but not limited to, any right, title, or interest of the Developer in and to 
payments of the Rose Hill PID Reimbursement Agreement Balance (any of the foregoing, a 
"Transfer," and the person or entity to whom the transfer is made, a "Transferee"). Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, no Transfer shall be effective until notice of the Transfer is given to the City. The 
City may rely on notice of a Transfer received from the Developer without obligation to investigate 

58

Item 4.



Page 11 
 

or confirm the validity of the Transfer. The Developer waives all rights or claims against the City 
for any funds paid to a third party as a result of a Transfer for which the City received notice. 
 
4.12 Applicable Law; Venue. This Agreement is being executed and delivered and is intended 
to be performed in the State of Texas. Except to the extent that the laws of the United States may 
apply, the substantive laws of the State of Texas shall govern the interpretation and enforcement 
of this Agreement. In the event of a dispute involving this Agreement, venue shall lie in any court 
of competent jurisdiction in Tarrant County, Texas. 
 
4.13 Notice. Any notice referenced in this Agreement must be in writing and shall be deemed 
given at the addresses shown below: (1) when delivered by a nationally recognized delivery service 
such as FedEx or UPS with evidence of delivery signed by any person at the delivery address 
regardless of whether such person is the named addressee; or (2) 72 hours after deposited with the 
United States Postal Service, Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested. 
 

To the City: City of Manor 
Attn: City Manager 
105 E. Eggleston Street 
Manor, Texas 78653 
Phone: (512) 272-5555 
Email: tbolt@cityofmanor.org 
 

With a copy to: The Knight Law Firm, LLP 
Attn: Paige H. Saenz 
223 West Anderson Lane, Suite A105 
Austin, Texas 78752 
Phone: (512) 323-5778 
Email: paige@cityattorneytexas.com 
 

To the Developer:       
Attn:     
    
    
Phone:      
Email:       

 
With a copy to:       

Attn:     
    
    
Phone:      
Email:       

 
Any Party may change its address by delivering notice of the change in accordance with this 
section. 
 

59

Item 4.



Page 12 
 

4.14 Conflicts; Amendment. In the event of any conflict between this Agreement and any other 
instrument, document, or agreement by which either Party is bound, the provisions and intent of 
this Agreement controls. This Agreement may only be amended by written agreement of the 
Parties. 
 
4.15 Capitalized Terms. Capitalized terms used in this Agreement shall have the meanings given 
to them in Section 2. 
 
4.16 References. Unless otherwise defined: (1) all references to “sections” shall mean sections 
of this Agreement; (2) all references to "exhibits" shall mean exhibits to this Agreement which are 
incorporated as part of this Agreement for all purposes; and (3) all references to "ordinances" or 
"resolutions" shall mean ordinances or resolutions adopted by the City Council. All resolutions 
and ordinances referenced in this Agreement (e.g., the PID Creation Resolution and each 
Assessment Ordinance), together with all other documents referenced in this Agreement (e.g., the 
Amended SAP), are incorporated as part of this Agreement for all purposes as if such resolutions, 
ordinances, and other documents were set forth in their entirety in or as exhibits to this Agreement. 
 
4.17 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be unenforceable for any reason, then (a) such unenforceable provision shall be 
deleted from this Agreement; (b) the unenforceable provision shall, to the extent possible, be 
rewritten to be enforceable and to give effect to the intent of the Parties; and (c) the remainder of 
this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall be interpreted to give effect to the 
intent of the Parties. Additionally, if any provision of this Agreement requires revision based on 
the controlling definitions in the Amended SAP (a) such conflicting provision shall be deleted 
from this Agreement; (b) the conflicting provision shall, to the extent possible, be rewritten to be 
conforming and to give effect to the intent of the Parties; and (c) the remainder of this Agreement 
shall remain in full force and effect and shall be interpreted to give effect to the intent of the Parties. 
 
4.18 Non-Waiver. The failure by a Party to insist upon the strict performance of any provision 
of this Agreement by the other Party, or the failure by a Party to exercise its rights upon a Default 
by the other Party, shall not constitute a waiver of such Party's right to insist and demand strict 
compliance by such other Party with the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
4.19 Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to or shall be construed 
to confer upon any person or entity other than the City, the Developer, and Transferees any rights 
under or by reason of this Agreement. All provisions of this Agreement shall be for the sole and 
exclusive benefit of the City, the Developer, and Transferees. 
 
4.20 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, which, when 
taken together, shall be deemed one original. 
 
4.21 Iran, Sudan, and Foreign Terrorist Organizations. The Developer represents that neither it 
nor any of its parent company, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates is a 
company identified on a list prepared and maintained by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts 
under Section 2252.153 or Section 2270.0201, Texas Government Code, and posted on any of the 
following pages of such officer's internet website:  

60

Item 4.



Page 13 
 

 
https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/sudan-list.pdf, 
https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/iran-list.pdf, or  
https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/fto-list.pdf.  
 

The foregoing representation is made solely to comply with Section 2252.152, Texas Government 
Code, and to the extent such Section does not contravene applicable Federal law and excludes the 
Developer and each of its parent company, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other 
affiliates, if any, that the United States government has affirmatively declared to be excluded from 
its federal sanctions regime relating to Sudan or Iran or any federal sanctions regime relating to a 
foreign terrorist organization. The Developer understands "affiliate" to mean any entity that 
controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the Developer and exists to make a 
profit. 
 
4.22 No Boycott of Israel. The Developer hereby verifies that it and its parent company, wholly- 
or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, do not boycott Israel and, to the extent 
this Agreement is a contract for goods or services, will not boycott Israel during the term of this 
Agreement. The foregoing verification is made solely to comply with Section 2270.002, Texas 
Government Code, and to the extent such Section does not contravene applicable Federal law. As 
used in the foregoing verification, "boycott Israel" means refusing to deal with, terminating 
business activities with, or otherwise taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict 
economic harm on, or limit commercial relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity 
doing business in Israel or in an Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made 
for ordinary business purposes. The Developer understands "affiliate" to mean an entity that 
controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the Developer and exists to make a 
profit. 
 
4.23 Employment of Undocumented Workers. During the term of this Agreement, and to the 
extent required under State law, the Owner agrees not to knowingly employ any undocumented 
workers and, if convicted of a violation under 8 U.8.C. Section 1324a (f), the Owner shall repay 
the taxes abated herein within 120 days after the date the Owner is notified by the City of such 
violation, plus interest at the rate of six percent (6%) compounded annually from the date of 
violation until paid. Pursuant to Section 2264.101 (c), Texas Government Code, a business is not 
liable for a violation of Chapter 2264 by a subsidiary, affiliate, or franchisee of the business, or by 
a person with whom the business contracts. 
 

[Execution pages follow.] 
 

61

Item 4.

https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/sudan-list.pdf
https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/iran-list.pdf
https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/fto-list.pdf


Page 14 
 

CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS 
 
 
 
       
Dr. Larry Wallace, Jr., Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 
 
  

62

Item 4.



Page 15 
 

 
CONTINENTAL HOMES OF TEXAS, L.P. 
a Texas limited partnership 

 
 

By:  
Name:   
Title:    

 
  

63

Item 4.



Page 16 
 

EXHIBIT A 
2019 PID Management Report 

[See attached] 
  

64

Item 4.



65

Item 4.



66

Item 4.



67

Item 4.



68

Item 4.



69

Item 4.



70

Item 4.



71

Item 4.



72

Item 4.



73

Item 4.



74

Item 4.



75

Item 4.



76

Item 4.



77

Item 4.



78

Item 4.



79

Item 4.



80

Item 4.



81

Item 4.



82

Item 4.



83

Item 4.



84

Item 4.



85

Item 4.



86

Item 4.



87

Item 4.



88

Item 4.



89

Item 4.



90

Item 4.



91

Item 4.



92

Item 4.



93

Item 4.



94

Item 4.



95

Item 4.



96

Item 4.



97

Item 4.



98

Item 4.



99

Item 4.



100

Item 4.



101

Item 4.



102

Item 4.



103

Item 4.



104

Item 4.



105

Item 4.



106

Item 4.



107

Item 4.



108

Item 4.



109

Item 4.



110

Item 4.



111

Item 4.



112

Item 4.



113

Item 4.



114

Item 4.



115

Item 4.



116

Item 4.



117

Item 4.



118

Item 4.



119

Item 4.



120

Item 4.



121

Item 4.



122

Item 4.



123

Item 4.



124

Item 4.



Page 17 
 

EXHIBIT B 
Agreement For Public Improvement District Administration Services 

[See attached] 
  

125

Item 4.



126

Item 4.



127

Item 4.



128

Item 4.



129

Item 4.



130

Item 4.



131

Item 4.



132

Item 4.



133

Item 4.



134

Item 4.



Page 18 
 

EXHIBIT C 
Request for Payment 

[see attached] 

135

Item 4.



 

Request for Payment Under Rose Hill PID Reimbursement Agreement - 
Rose Hill Public Improvement District  

 

City Manor 
105 E. Eggleston Street 
Manor, Texas 78653 
Attn: Lydia Collins  
Attn: Director of Finance 

 

City Attorney 
The Knight Law Firm, LLP 
223 West Anderson Lane, Suite A-105 
Austin, Texas 78752  
Attn: Paige Saenz 

Developer 
Continental Homes of Texas, L.P. 
[insert contact information] 
 

Developer Attorney 
[insert contact information] 

  
 
As authorized by that certain Rose Hill Public Improvement District Reimbursement Agreement, effective 
as of [date] by and between Continental Homes of Texas, L.P. a Texas limited partnership (the "Developer") 
and the City of Manor, Texas (the "Reimbursement Agreement"), the revenue stream related to the public 
improvements constructed for the benefit of Rose Hill Public Improvement District (the "District") to be 
paid pursuant to the Reimbursement Agreement. 
 
The undersigned is the Developer and requests payment by the City from the PID Reimbursement Fund in 
the amount of ________________ for ($_____) for costs incurred for the acquisition, installation and/or 
construction of authorized improvements benefitting Rose Hill Public Improvement District. Payments 
should be made to Developer at: 

 

Bank Name:  
Bank Address:  
ABA No.:  
Account Name:  
Account No.:  
Beneficiary’s Name:  

 

This is in connection with the assessments relating to Rose Hill Public Improvement District collected for 
the assessment due date of January 31, 20__.  

Executed as of [insert date]. 

 

Sincerely,  

Continental Homes of Texas, L.P. 
             

136

Item 4.



 

By:  
Name:  
Title:    

 

Enclosures 

137

Item 4.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 2, 2021 
PREPARED BY: Thomas Bolt, City Manager 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a contract between Travis County and the City of Manor for the 
collection of the Rose Hill Public Improvement District assessments. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 
On June 25, 2003, the City Council approved the creation of the Rose Hill Public Improvement District (PID) and 
the City entered into a Management Agreement with Kevin McCright on June 26, 2003. An ordinance levying 
assessments on the property located within the Rose Hill PID was approved on July 16, 2003. On September 20, 
2006, the City Council approved the addition of land to the Rose Hill PID and recalculated assessments on the 
property located within the Rose Hill PID.The Management Agreement contained provisions regarding the billing 
and collection of the assessments and reimbursements to the Developer, among other things. The Management 
Agreement terminated on March 18, 2020 due to the resignation of Kevin McCright and the City entered into a 
one-year collection agreement with Assessments of the Southwest. The attached contract is presented to you for 
consideration to have the assessments collected by Travis County on behalf of the City. 

 
LEGAL REVIEW: Yes, Completed 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• Agreement for Billing and Collection Services Between Travis County and the City of Manor Related to 
the Rose Hill Public Improvement District. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve the Agreement for Billing and Collection 
Services Between Travis County and the City of Manor Related to the Rose Hill Public Improvement District. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

138

Item 5.



1 

AGREEMENT FOR BILLING AND COLLECTION SERVICES 
BETWEEN TRAVIS COUNTY 
AND THE CITY OF MANOR 

RELATED TO THE ROSE HILL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 
 

 This agreement (the “Agreement”) is between Travis County (the “County”), a 

political subdivision of the State of Texas, and the City of Manor (the “City”), a home rule 

municipality of the State of Texas, for billing and collection services related to the Rose 

Hill Public Improvement District (the “District”), a public improvement district created by 

and authorized by the City.   

RECITALS 

A. The City authorized the creation of the District, effective on June 25, 2003, by a 

majority vote of all members of the City Council adopting a resolution in accordance with 

the City Council’s findings under Section 372.010 of the Texas Public Improvement 

District Assessment Act (the “PID Act”) (Tex. Local Gov’t Code Secs. 372.001 to 

372.030).  The City may, from time to time, amend such resolution or reauthorize the 

District in the future, and this Agreement will remain in force.    

B. The City adopted an assessment plan that apportions the cost of the planned 

services and improvements among the parcels of real property in the District and 

prepared an assessment roll stating the amount of the assessment due from each such 

parcel and provided that the assessments may be paid in annual installments (the 

“Assessments”) pursuant to Sec. 372.016 of the PID Act.   

C. The City will manage and administer public improvement districts created by the 

City, including the District.  The City has selected a third party administrator (the 

“Administrator”) to assist the City in the management of the District, including the 

139

Item 5.



2 

management of assessment revenue collected from assessable property within the 

District, and payment of City’s bond debt through a depository bank selected by the City 

(“City Depository Bank”).  The City’s Public Improvement District Policy requires that the 

annual installments of the Assessments be billed and collected by the County Tax 

Assessor-Collector.      

D. This Agreement sets out the duties and responsibilities of the County and City 

related to the billing and collection of the Assessments, as authorized by Sec. 372.0175 

of the PID Act and pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act (Tex. Gov’t Code Chapter 

791). 

E. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the term “Assessment” as used 

in this Agreement refers to both the fully-apportioned cost of the planned services and 

improvements due from each parcel according to the assessment roll and the annual 

installment due from each such parcel.  

  

140

Item 5.



3 

AGREEMENT 

 In consideration of the mutual promises stated herein, the County and City agree 

as follows: 

1. Agreement for Billing and Collection of Installments of Assessments.  Beginning 

on the effective date of this Agreement and continuing until the Agreement is 

terminated as provided below, City authorizes the County exclusively, acting 

through the Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector (the “Tax Assessor-Collector”) 

and the Travis County Attorney (the “County Attorney”), to bill and collect the 

annual installments of the Assessments and to represent City for all purposes 

related to the billing and collection of such installments, except as stated below.  

The County, acting through the Tax Assessor-Collector, agrees to perform for City 

all of the duties of City related to the billing and collection of the installments 

provided in the assessment plan and Texas law.  

2. Exclusions. This Agreement will not include billing or collection of the following:  

2.1 Any installments of the Assessments due prior to the effective date of this 

Agreement, 

2.2 Assessments in amounts other than annual installments, 

2.3 Any installments of the Assessments that are for years for which a tax lien 

on the property has been transferred by the County to a transferee at the 

request of the owner according to Texas Tax Code Sec. 32.06, and    

2.4 Any Assessments on property for which the owner has deferred collection 

of the property taxes as allowed by Texas Tax Code Sec. 33.06 or 33.065.   

141

Item 5.



4 

The billing and collection of such excluded Assessments will remain the 

responsibility of City and its Administrator.  County will notify City and its 

Administrator of any Assessments that are excluded under paragraph 2.3 or 2.4 

above within 60 days after the Tax Assessor-Collector is notified of the tax lien 

transfer or collection deferral.   

3. Term of Agreement.   The term of this Agreement will begin on the latest date of 

execution set out below (“the Effective Date”) and will terminate on December 31, 

2022 unless renewed and extended as provided below.  The Agreement will be 

renewed and extended automatically for an additional term of one year unless 

either party terminates the Agreement by giving written notice of termination to the 

other party not later than 90 days before the end of the initial term.  If the 

Agreement is renewed and extended after the initial term, thereafter it will be 

renewed and extended automatically for succeeding one-year terms unless either 

party terminates the Agreement by giving written notice of termination to the other 

party not later than 90 days before the end of the current term.  If a notice of 

termination is given, the Agreement will nevertheless remain in effect for the 

remainder of the term in which the notice is given and will remain in effect thereafter 

with respect to any Assessment for which a suit to foreclose the assessment lien 

has been filed prior to such notice, until the suit is dismissed or a sale of the 

property occurs and the proceeds are disbursed. 

4. Assessment Data. Each year during the term of this Agreement, City will provide 

data to the Tax Assessor-Collector on or before September 1 as to the amount of 

the annual installment due for that year on the Assessment against each tract of 

142

Item 5.



5 

real property in the District except tracts that are exempt.  The data will be provided 

to the Tax Assessor-Collector electronically in a format that is compatible with the 

format of the County’s property tax records.  The Tax Assessor-Collector will 

provide no less than 90 days’ notice to City in the event of any required format 

change in the electronic file.  City will notify the Tax Assessor-Collector of any 

adjustments of the annual installments and will be responsible for paying any 

refunds that result from such adjustments. City will not provide the Tax Assessor-

Collector with the total amounts of the Assessments, and the County will not be 

responsible for the billing or collection of the Assessments other than in annual 

installments.  Determining exemptions, calculating the amounts of the annual 

installments, computing the cumulative balances of the Assessments, and any 

collection of the Assessments other than in annual installments will remain the 

responsibility of City.  The annual installments will be billed to the property owners 

named in the current tax appraisal roll of the Travis Central Appraisal District for 

the year of the installments.  If City fails to inform the Tax Assessor-Collector of 

the amounts of the annual installments by September 15 of the initial or any 

renewed term of this Agreement, the Agreement may be terminated by the County 

upon written notice to City according to paragraph 13 below.  The initial delivery of 

data by City to the Tax Assessor-Collector will also include a record of all payments 

made on the Assessments prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement. The Tax 

Assessor-Collector will make available to City a continuous on-line disbursement 

report summarizing the payments collected.   

143

Item 5.



6 

5. Billing of Assessments. The Tax Assessor-Collector will bill the annual 

installments of the Assessments to the property owners by including the amount 

of the installment as a line item in the consolidated property tax bill mailed by the 

Tax Assessor-Collector to each owner of real property in the District.  The bills will 

be mailed about October 1 of each year or as soon thereafter as practicable.  Each 

tax bill that includes a line item for an installment of an Assessment will also include 

a statement in substantially the following language: “Assessments of public 

improvement districts are not taxes but are collected by the Travis County Tax 

Office under an agreement with the City of Manor.” 

6. Collection of Assessments.  The Tax Assessor-Collector will collect the 

installments of the Assessments and remit the amount collected to City Depository 

Bank daily by electronic funds transfer, after deducting the amount due to the 

County as billing and collection fees, as provided in paragraph 10 below.  City will 

provide the Tax Assessor-Collector with the instructions for making such daily 

remittances to City Depository Bank.  The Tax Assessor-Collector and the County 

Attorney will also collect any delinquent installments of the Assessments, including 

filing suits for foreclosure of the lien securing the Assessments provided in Sec. 

372.018 of the PID Act.  All of the terms of Sec. 372.018 of the PID Act and all of 

the provisions of the Texas Tax Code with respect to payment, refunds, 

delinquency, penalties and interest, waiver of penalties and interest, costs and 

expenses of collection, attorney’s fees, personal liability, installment payment of 

delinquent amounts, suits, lien foreclosure, limitation of collection, redemption, and 

other matters related to the collection of property taxes will also apply to the 

144

Item 5.



7 

collection of the installments of the Assessments, except that the provisions of 

Texas Tax Code Sec. 32.06 on property tax loans and the transfer of tax liens, and 

Secs. 33.045, 33.06, and 33.065 on the deferral of collection of property taxes on 

certain residential homesteads will not apply.  Billing and collection of the 

installments of Assessments on property for which a tax lien has been transferred 

to a transferee or that is subject to such deferral of collection of taxes will remain 

the responsibility of City, as provided in paragraphs 2.3 and 2.4 above.  Any partial 

collection of delinquent taxes and delinquent installments of Assessments will be 

divided pro rata among the entities imposing the taxes and the Assessments 

without preferring one entity over another.  During the term of this Agreement, only 

the Tax Assessor-Collector will collect the installments of the Assessments.  If any 

payments are received by City or its Administrator for amounts billed by the Tax 

Assessor-Collector, they will be remitted by City to the Tax Assessor-Collector.  

City will notify the Tax Assessor-Collector if any Assessment is prepaid to City, in 

full or in part. 

7. Notice to Property Owners.     After the effective date of this Agreement and prior 

to the mailing by the County of the first bills for annual installments of the 

Assessments, City will notify each owner of property in the District, except for 

owners of exempt property, by first class mail that the installments of the 

Assessment on the owner’s property will be billed by and paid to the Tax Assessor-

Collector until the owner is notified that this Agreement is terminated. 

8. Foreclosure Suits. The County Attorney will act as the attorney for City in any suit 

for collection of the delinquent installment of an Assessment.  The maturity of the 

145

Item 5.



8 

subsequent installments will not accelerate following a default in payment.  In 

consultation with City, the County Attorney and the Tax Assessor-Collector will 

control the filing and conduct of foreclosure suits.  Attorney’s fees, costs, and 

expenses of collection that are collected after the filing of a suit for foreclosure will 

be retained by the County in addition to the billing and collection fees provided in 

paragraph 10 below.  If a suit is filed for a delinquent installment of an Assessment 

and delinquent taxes on the property and the suit results in an order for foreclosure 

of the assessment lien and the tax lien, City recognizes that the ad valorem tax 

lien is superior to the assessment lien, according to Sec. 372.018(b)(2) of the PID 

Act. However, the assessment lien runs with the land, and the portion of the 

Assessment that has not yet come due is not eliminated by the foreclosure of an 

ad valorem tax lien, according to Section 372.018(d) of the PID Act. 

9. No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to benefit 

a third party beneficiary.  The County and City will act independently in carrying 

out their respective obligations under this Agreement, and neither the County nor 

City assumes any responsibility to a third party in connection with this Agreement. 

10. Billing and Collection Fees.    As fees for the billing and collection services provided 

under this Agreement, City agrees to pay the County the following: 

10.1 A one-time fee of $1,000.00, no later than 30 days after the effective date 

of this Agreement, for software modification, data entry, contract drafting, 

and other start-up costs, to be paid from the Rose Hill Public Improvement 

District petitioner’s escrow account held by City Depository Bank;  

146

Item 5.



9 

10.2 An annual parcel fee for each parcel or tract of land in the District, in an 

amount to be set annually by the Travis County Commissioner’s Court.  The 

parcel fee will be equal to the parcel fee set for the year by the 

Commissioners Court for the billing and collection by the Tax Assessor-

Collector of property taxes for jurisdictions located wholly or partially in 

Travis County.  City agrees that the Tax Assessor-Collector may deduct the 

pro rata amount of the parcel fee from the first installments collected, prior 

to the remittance of the collections to City Depository Bank.  The parcel fee 

will be retained by the Tax Assessor-Collector to defray the costs of billing 

and collection.  City will include the parcel fee in each annual budget of 

administrative expenses for the District;  and 

10.3 Should the County incur any actual additional costs that may subsequently 

be required to modify software, make other data processing changes, or 

comply with legal requirements associated with collecting the installments, 

City agrees to reimburse such costs within 30 days after being billed for 

them by the County; provided, however, that such reimbursement shall 

solely be payable from Assessments or the administrative expenses 

collected as part of the annual installment of assessments pursuant to the 

service and assessment plan.  

11. Administrator.  Pursuant to the agreement between the Administrator and City or 

at the direction of City, the Administrator may perform, on behalf of City, any action 

to be taken by the City hereunder. 

147

Item 5.



10 

12. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets out the entire agreement between the 

County and City with respect to the billing and collection of the Assessments and 

supersedes all previous negotiations, representations, and agreements, whether 

written or oral.  This Agreement may be amended only by a written instrument 

executed by the representatives of the County and City authorized by their 

respective governing bodies. 

13. Notices. Any notice that a party is required or permitted to give under this 

Agreement will be in writing and mailed by first class mail to the address of the 

other party shown below or to such other address of which the other party may 

notify the party in writing. 

COUNTY:    Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector 
P.O. Box 149328 
Austin, Texas 78714-9328 

 
WITH A COPY TO:   Delia Garza (or successor) 

Travis County Attorney 
P. O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 

  
CITY:     City of Manor 
     Attn: City Manager 
     105 E. Eggleston Street 
     Manor, Texas 78653 
 
WITH A COPY TO:   The Knight Law Firm, LLP 
     Attn:  Paige H. Saenz  
     223 West Anderson Lane, Suite A-105 
     Austin, Texas 78752 

 
  
14. Limited Liability. The County will not be liable to City or the bond holders of the 

District for any failure to collect the installments of the Assessments.  The Tax 

Assessor-Collector will not be liable for any failure to collect the installments of the 

148

Item 5.



11 

Assessments unless such failure is the result of the Tax Assessor-Collector’s 

failure to perform the duties imposed on him or her by law or this Agreement.   The 

Tax Assessor-Collector also will not be liable for any failure to collect the 

installments if the Tax Assessor-Collector’s failure to perform the duties imposed 

by law or this Agreement was due to circumstances beyond the Tax Assessor-

Collector’s control.  In executing this Agreement, neither the County nor City 

intends to waive or will be deemed to waive any immunity or defense that would 

otherwise be available to it against claims arising from the exercise of 

governmental powers and functions. 

15. Applicable Law. This Agreement will be governed, interpreted, and enforced 

according to the laws of the State of Texas.  The terms of the Agreement are 

severable.  If any term or provision is held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, 

the remainder of the Agreement will remain in effect. 

16. Persons Bound. This Agreement is binding on the parties and their respective 

successors and assigns. 

17. Venue. All obligations under this Agreement are performable in Travis 

County, Texas.  The venue for any suit over a dispute based on or arising out of 

this Agreement will be in Travis County, Texas. 

18. Party Representatives. The County designates the Tax Assessor-Collector to 

represent the County, and City designates the City Manager and/or his or her 

designee to represent City for all purposes related to this Agreement. 

149

Item 5.



12 

19. Authorization. The undersigned representatives warrant that they are duly 

authorized by their respective governing bodies to execute this Agreement on 

behalf of the parties.     

 

EXECUTED ON BEHALF OF – 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS     CITY OF MANOR 
         
   

By: ____________________________    By: _____________________________ 
Andy Brown      Dr. Larry Wallace, Jr. 

 County Judge     Mayor 
 P.O. Box 1748     105 E. Eggleston Street 
 Austin, Texas 78767-1748    Manor, Texas 78653 
         
 
DATE: ________________________  DATE: __________________________ 
 
 
 
Approved: 
Delia Garza 
Travis County Attorney 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 
Telephone: (512) 854-9513 
FAX: (512) 854-4808 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
 Elliott Beck 
 State Bar No. 02008300 
 Assistant County Attorney 

150

Item 5.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 2, 2021 
PREPARED BY: Thomas Bolt, City Manager 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a contract between Travis County and the City of Manor for the 
collection of the Manor Heights Public Improvement District assessments. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

On November 7, 2018, the City Council approved the creation of the Manor Heights Public Improvement District 
(PID) and October 7, 2020, the City Council approved the addition of land to the Manor Heights PID. An ordinance 
levying assessments on the property located within the Manor Heights PID was approved on May 5, 2021. The 
attached contract is presented to you for consideration to have the assessments collected by Travis County on 
behalf of the City. 

 
LEGAL REVIEW: Yes, Completed 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
PRESENTATION:   
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• Agreement for Billing and Collection Services Between Travis County and the City of Manor Related to 
the Manor Heights Public Improvement District. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve the Agreement for Billing and Collection 
Services Between Travis County and the City of Manor Related to the Manor Heights Public Improvement District. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

151

Item 6.



1 
  

AGREEMENT FOR BILLING AND COLLECTION SERVICES 
BETWEEN TRAVIS COUNTY 
AND THE CITY OF MANOR 

RELATED TO THE MANOR HEIGHTS PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 
 

 This agreement (the “Agreement”) is between Travis County (the “County”), a 

political subdivision of the State of Texas, and the City of Manor (the “City”), a home rule 

municipality of the State of Texas, for billing and collection services related to the Manor 

Heights Public Improvement District (the “District”), a public improvement district created 

by and authorized by the City.   

RECITALS 

A. The City authorized the creation of the District, effective on November 7, 2018, by 

a majority vote of all members of the City Council adopting a resolution in accordance 

with the City Council’s findings under Section 372.010 of the Texas Public Improvement 

District Assessment Act (the “PID Act”) (Tex. Local Gov’t Code Secs. 372.001 to 

372.030).  The City may, from time to time, amend such resolution or reauthorize the 

District in the future, and this Agreement will remain in force.    

B. The City adopted an assessment plan that apportions the cost of the planned 

services and improvements among the parcels of real property in the District and 

prepared an assessment roll stating the amount of the assessment due from each such 

parcel and provided that the assessments may be paid in annual installments (the 

“Assessments”) pursuant to Sec. 372.016 of the PID Act.   

C. The City will manage and administer public improvement districts created by the 

City, including the District.  The City has selected a third party administrator (the 

“Administrator”) to assist the City in the management of the District, including the 

152

Item 6.



2 
  

management of assessment revenue collected from assessable property within the 

District, and payment of City’s bond debt through a depository bank, with trust powers, 

selected by the City (“City Depository Bank”).  The City’s Public Improvement District 

Policy requires that the annual installments of the Assessments be billed and collected 

by the County Tax Assessor-Collector.      

D. This Agreement sets out the duties and responsibilities of the County and City 

related to the billing and collection of the Assessments, as authorized by Sec. 372.0175 

of the PID Act and pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act (Tex. Gov’t Code Chapter 

791). 

E. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the term “Assessment” as used 

in this Agreement refers to both the fully-apportioned cost of the planned services and 

improvements due from each parcel according to the assessment roll and the annual 

installment due from each such parcel.  

  

153

Item 6.



3 
  

AGREEMENT 

 In consideration of the mutual promises stated herein, the County and City agree 

as follows: 

1. Agreement for Billing and Collection of Installments of Assessments.  Beginning 

on the effective date of this Agreement and continuing until the Agreement is 

terminated as provided below, City authorizes the County exclusively, acting 

through the Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector (the “Tax Assessor-Collector”) 

and the Travis County Attorney (the “County Attorney”), to bill and collect the 

annual installments of the Assessments and to represent City for all purposes 

related to the billing and collection of such installments, except as stated below.  

The County, acting through the Tax Assessor-Collector, agrees to perform for City 

all of the duties of City related to the billing and collection of the installments 

provided in the assessment plan and Texas law.  

2. Exclusions. This Agreement will not include billing or collection of the following:  

2.1 Any installments of the Assessments due prior to the effective date of this 

Agreement, 

2.2 Assessments in amounts other than annual installments, 

2.3 Any installments of the Assessments that are for years for which a tax lien 

on the property has been transferred by the County to a transferee at the 

request of the owner according to Texas Tax Code Sec. 32.06, and    

2.4 Any Assessments on property for which the owner has deferred collection 

of the property taxes as allowed by Texas Tax Code Sec. 33.06 or 33.065.   

154

Item 6.



4 
  

The billing and collection of such excluded Assessments will remain the 

responsibility of City and its Administrator.  County will notify City and its 

Administrator of any Assessments that are excluded under paragraph 2.3 or 2.4 

above within 60 days after the Tax Assessor-Collector is notified of the tax lien 

transfer or collection deferral.   

3. Term of Agreement.   The term of this Agreement will begin on the latest date of 

execution set out below (“the Effective Date”) and will terminate on December 31, 

2022 unless renewed and extended as provided below.  The Agreement will be 

renewed and extended automatically for an additional term of one year unless 

either party terminates the Agreement by giving written notice of termination to the 

other party not later than 90 days before the end of the initial term.  If the 

Agreement is renewed and extended after the initial term, thereafter it will be 

renewed and extended automatically for succeeding one-year terms unless either 

party terminates the Agreement by giving written notice of termination to the other 

party not later than 90 days before the end of the current term.  If a notice of 

termination is given, the Agreement will nevertheless remain in effect for the 

remainder of the term in which the notice is given and will remain in effect thereafter 

with respect to any Assessment for which a suit to foreclose the assessment lien 

has been filed prior to such notice, until the suit is dismissed or a sale of the 

property occurs and the proceeds are disbursed. 

4. Assessment Data. Each year during the term of this Agreement, City will provide 

data to the Tax Assessor-Collector on or before September 1 as to the amount of 

the annual installment due for that year on the Assessment against each tract of 

155

Item 6.



5 
  

real property in the District except tracts that are exempt.  The data will be provided 

to the Tax Assessor-Collector electronically in a format that is compatible with the 

format of the County’s property tax records.  The Tax Assessor-Collector will 

provide no less than 90 days’ notice to City in the event of any required format 

change in the electronic file.  City will notify the Tax Assessor-Collector of any 

adjustments of the annual installments and will be responsible for paying any 

refunds that result from such adjustments. City will not provide the Tax Assessor-

Collector with the total amounts of the Assessments, and the County will not be 

responsible for the billing or collection of the Assessments other than in annual 

installments.  Determining exemptions, calculating the amounts of the annual 

installments, computing the cumulative balances of the Assessments, and any 

collection of the Assessments other than in annual installments will remain the 

responsibility of City.  The annual installments will be billed to the property owners 

named in the current tax appraisal roll of the Travis Central Appraisal District for 

the year of the installments.  If City fails to inform the Tax Assessor-Collector of 

the amounts of the annual installments by September 15 of the initial or any 

renewed term of this Agreement, the Agreement may be terminated by the County 

upon written notice to City according to paragraph 13 below.  The initial delivery of 

data by City to the Tax Assessor-Collector will also include a record of all payments 

made on the Assessments prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement. The Tax 

Assessor-Collector will make available to City a continuous on-line disbursement 

report summarizing the payments collected.   

156

Item 6.



6 
  

5. Billing of Assessments. The Tax Assessor-Collector will bill the annual 

installments of the Assessments to the property owners by including the amount 

of the installment as a line item in the consolidated property tax bill mailed by the 

Tax Assessor-Collector to each owner of real property in the District.  The bills will 

be mailed about October 1 of each year or as soon thereafter as practicable.  Each 

tax bill that includes a line item for an installment of an Assessment will also include 

a statement in substantially the following language: “Assessments of public 

improvement districts are not taxes but are collected by the Travis County Tax 

Office under an agreement with the City of Manor.” 

6. Collection of Assessments.  The Tax Assessor-Collector will collect the 

installments of the Assessments and remit the amount collected to City Depository 

Bank daily by electronic funds transfer, after deducting the amount due to the 

County as billing and collection fees, as provided in paragraph 10 below.  City will 

provide the Tax Assessor-Collector with the instructions for making such daily 

remittances to City Depository Bank.  The Tax Assessor-Collector and the County 

Attorney will also collect any delinquent installments of the Assessments, including 

filing suits for foreclosure of the lien securing the Assessments provided in Sec. 

372.018 of the PID Act.  All of the terms of Sec. 372.018 of the PID Act and all of 

the provisions of the Texas Tax Code with respect to payment, refunds, 

delinquency, penalties and interest, waiver of penalties and interest, costs and 

expenses of collection, attorney’s fees, personal liability, installment payment of 

delinquent amounts, suits, lien foreclosure, limitation of collection, redemption, and 

other matters related to the collection of property taxes will also apply to the 

157

Item 6.



7 
  

collection of the installments of the Assessments, except that the provisions of 

Texas Tax Code Sec. 32.06 on property tax loans and the transfer of tax liens, and 

Secs. 33.045, 33.06, and 33.065 on the deferral of collection of property taxes on 

certain residential homesteads will not apply.  Billing and collection of the 

installments of Assessments on property for which a tax lien has been transferred 

to a transferee or that is subject to such deferral of collection of taxes will remain 

the responsibility of City, as provided in paragraphs 2.3 and 2.4 above.  Any partial 

collection of delinquent taxes and delinquent installments of Assessments will be 

divided pro rata among the entities imposing the taxes and the Assessments 

without preferring one entity over another.  During the term of this Agreement, only 

the Tax Assessor-Collector will collect the installments of the Assessments.  If any 

payments are received by City or its Administrator for amounts billed by the Tax 

Assessor-Collector, they will be remitted by City to the Tax Assessor-Collector.  

City will notify the Tax Assessor-Collector if any Assessment is prepaid to City, in 

full or in part. 

7. Notice to Property Owners. After the effective date of this Agreement and 

prior to the mailing by the County of the first bills for annual installments of the 

Assessments, City will notify each owner of property in the District, except for 

owners of exempt property, by first class mail that the installments of the 

Assessment on the owner’s property will be billed by and paid to the Tax Assessor-

Collector until the owner is notified that this Agreement is terminated. 

8. Foreclosure Suits. The County Attorney will act as the attorney for City in any suit 

for collection of the delinquent installment of an Assessment.  The maturity of the 

158

Item 6.



8 
  

subsequent installments will not accelerate following a default in payment.  In 

consultation with City, the County Attorney and the Tax Assessor-Collector will 

control the filing and conduct of foreclosure suits.  Attorney’s fees, costs, and 

expenses of collection that are collected after the filing of a suit for foreclosure will 

be retained by the County in addition to the billing and collection fees provided in 

paragraph 10 below.  If a suit is filed for a delinquent installment of an Assessment 

and delinquent taxes on the property and the suit results in an order for foreclosure 

of the assessment lien and the tax lien, City recognizes that the ad valorem tax 

lien is superior to the assessment lien, according to Sec. 372.018(b)(2) of the PID 

Act. However, the assessment lien runs with the land, and the portion of the 

Assessment that has not yet come due is not eliminated by the foreclosure of an 

ad valorem tax lien, according to Section 372.018(d) of the PID Act. 

9. No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to benefit 

a third party beneficiary.  The County and City will act independently in carrying 

out their respective obligations under this Agreement, and neither the County nor 

City assumes any responsibility to a third party in connection with this Agreement. 

10. Billing and Collection Fees. As fees for the billing and collection services 

provided under this Agreement, City agrees to pay the County the following: 

10.1 A one-time fee of $1,000.00, no later than 30 days after the effective date 

of this Agreement, for software modification, data entry, contract drafting, 

and other start-up costs, to be paid from the Manor Heights Public 

Improvement District petitioner’s escrow account held by City Depository 

Bank;  

159

Item 6.



9 
  

10.2 An annual parcel fee for each parcel or tract of land in the District, in an 

amount to be set annually by the Travis County Commissioner’s Court.  The 

parcel fee will be equal to the parcel fee set for the year by the 

Commissioners Court for the billing and collection by the Tax Assessor-

Collector of property taxes for jurisdictions located wholly or partially in 

Travis County.  City agrees that the Tax Assessor-Collector may deduct the 

pro rata amount of the parcel fee from the first installments collected, prior 

to the remittance of the collections to City Depository Bank.  The parcel fee 

will be retained by the Tax Assessor-Collector to defray the costs of billing 

and collection.  City will include the parcel fee in each annual budget of 

administrative expenses for the District;  and 

10.3 Should the County incur any actual additional costs that may subsequently 

be required to modify software, make other data processing changes, or 

comply with legal requirements associated with collecting the installments, 

City agrees to reimburse such costs within 30 days after being billed for 

them by the County; provided, however, that such reimbursement shall 

solely be payable from Assessments or the administrative expenses 

collected as part of the annual installment of assessments pursuant to the 

service and assessment plan.  

11. Administrator.  Pursuant to the agreement between the Administrator and City or 

at the direction of City, the Administrator may perform, on behalf of City, any action 

to be taken by the City hereunder. 

160

Item 6.



10 
  

12. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets out the entire agreement between the 

County and City with respect to the billing and collection of the Assessments and 

supersedes all previous negotiations, representations, and agreements, whether 

written or oral.  This Agreement may be amended only by a written instrument 

executed by the representatives of the County and City authorized by their 

respective governing bodies. 

13. Notices. Any notice that a party is required or permitted to give under this 

Agreement will be in writing and mailed by first class mail to the address of the 

other party shown below or to such other address of which the other party may 

notify the party in writing. 

COUNTY:    Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector 
P.O. Box 149328 
Austin, Texas 78714-9328 

 
WITH A COPY TO:   Delia Garza (or successor) 

Travis County Attorney 
P. O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 

  
CITY:     City of Manor 
     Attn: City Manager 
     105 E. Eggleston Street 
     Manor, Texas 78653 
 
WITH A COPY TO:   The Knight Law Firm, LLP 
     Attn:  Paige H. Saenz  
     223 West Anderson Lane, Suite A-105 
     Austin, Texas 78752 
 
WITH A COPY TO:   City Depository Bank 

UMB Bank 
Attn: Jose Gaytan 
6034 W. Courtyard Drive, Suite 370 
Austin, Texas 78730 
 

  

161

Item 6.



11 
  

14. Limited Liability. The County will not be liable to City or the bond holders of the 

District for any failure to collect the installments of the Assessments.  The Tax 

Assessor-Collector will not be liable for any failure to collect the installments of the 

Assessments unless such failure is the result of the Tax Assessor-Collector’s 

failure to perform the duties imposed on him or her by law or this Agreement.   The 

Tax Assessor-Collector also will not be liable for any failure to collect the 

installments if the Tax Assessor-Collector’s failure to perform the duties imposed 

by law or this Agreement was due to circumstances beyond the Tax Assessor-

Collector’s control.  In executing this Agreement, neither the County nor City 

intends to waive or will be deemed to waive any immunity or defense that would 

otherwise be available to it against claims arising from the exercise of 

governmental powers and functions. 

15. Applicable Law. This Agreement will be governed, interpreted, and enforced 

according to the laws of the State of Texas.  The terms of the Agreement are 

severable.  If any term or provision is held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, 

the remainder of the Agreement will remain in effect. 

16. Persons Bound. This Agreement is binding on the parties and their respective 

successors and assigns. 

17. Venue. All obligations under this Agreement are performable in Travis 

County, Texas.  The venue for any suit over a dispute based on or arising out of 

this Agreement will be in Travis County, Texas. 

162

Item 6.



12 
  

18. Party Representatives. The County designates the Tax Assessor-Collector to 

represent the County, and City designates the City Manager and/or his or her 

designee to represent City for all purposes related to this Agreement. 

19. Authorization. The undersigned representatives warrant that they are duly 

authorized by their respective governing bodies to execute this Agreement on 

behalf of the parties.     

 

EXECUTED ON BEHALF OF – 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS     CITY OF MANOR 
         
   

By: ____________________________    By: _____________________________ 
Andy Brown      Dr. Larry Wallace, Jr. 

 County Judge     Mayor 
 P.O. Box 1748     105 E. Eggleston Street 
 Austin, Texas 78767-1748    Manor, Texas 78653 
         
 
DATE: ________________________  DATE: __________________________ 
 
 
 
Approved: 
Delia Garza 
Travis County Attorney 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 
Telephone: (512) 854-9513 
FAX: (512) 854-4808 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
 Elliott Beck 
 State Bar No. 02008300 
 Assistant County Attorney 

163

Item 6.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 7 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 2, 2021 
PREPARED BY: Frank T. Phelan, P.E. 
DEPARTMENT: City Engineer 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion and possible action on appointment of Planning and Zoning Commission and Developer 
Representative to serve as Community Impact Fee Advisory Committee. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

Periodically, updates to the City's adopted Community Impact Fee Program are necessary to address changing 
development conditions.  The City Council may appoint the Planning and Zoning Commission and at least one 
representative of the development community as the Community Impact Fee Advisory Committee. The 
Committee will be responsible for evaluating and recommending any proposed changes to the Community Impact 
Fee Land Use Assumptions, Capital Improvements Plan and/or Impact Fee amount. 

 
LEGAL REVIEW:  Not Applicable 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Yes 
PRESENTATION:  Yes 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• Wastewater CIP Map with proposed updates 
• Wastewater CIP Project Costs with updated costs 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve appointing the Planning and Zoning Commission 
and a development community representative as the Community Impact Fee Advisory Committee.  

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

164

Item 7.



SL

SL

SL

SL

SL

SL

SL

SL

Legend
SL Lift Station

Wastewater Treatment Plant

Force Main

Gravity Main

10 Yr. Wastewater Service Area

ETJ

City Limits

Sewer Main

Creeks

0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
Miles

E
X

H
IB

IT

A
-3

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
U

M
B

E
R

14
66

7.
01

D
A

T
E

5/
20

/2
02

1

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 M

A
N

O
R

10
 Y

E
A

R
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
C

A
P

IT
A

L 
IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 P
LA

N
20

21
 U

P
D

A
T

E

G
:\1

46
67

.0
1\

G
IS

\M
an

or
T

X
_C

IP
.a

pr
x 

   
   

  5
/2

0/
20

21
 1

0:
22

 A
M

C
oo

rd
in

at
e 

S
ys

te
m

: N
A

D
 1

98
3 

S
ta

te
P

la
ne

 T
ex

as
 C

en
tr

al
 F

IP
S

 4
20

3 
F

ee
t

S-28
12 in.

S-28

S-19
15 in.

S-13

S-32
12 in.

CIP-6

CIP-1
Wildhorse Creek

LS Expansion

CIP-2
Bell Farms

LS Expansion

CIP-3
Presidential Glen

LS Expansion

CIP-4
Parallel

12 in & 15 in.

S-18
12 in.

S-16
12 in.

S-17
10 in. S-17

12 in.

S-16
21 in.

S-15
0.10 MGD

S-30
0.25 MGD

S-31
0.375 MGd

S-23

S-35
12 in.

S-34
12 in.

S-33
15 in.

S-34

Scale: 1" = 0.5 miles
165

Item 7.



EXHIBIT A-4

CITY OF MANOR WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS 

10-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN

DRAFT 2021 UPDATE

Project No. Year Description

 Construction Cost 

(2019 Dollars) Interest Period (months) Payment Total Payment Size Length

Construction Cost 

(adjusted for 

Inflation @ 5% per 

annum) Soft Costs

Contingency (10% 

+ 1% per annum)

Financing Cost (5.1% 

over 20 Years) Total Project Costs Detailed Description

S-13 2020

Addl. Wilbarger WWTP 

Capacity  $  16,825,000.00 0.00425 240 145,667.98$        34,960,314.38$     1.33 MGD 19,348,750.00$   2,140,000.00$     400,000.00$      13,071,564.38$   34,960,000.00$      New Treatment Plant Capacity to Serve Addl Growth 

S-15 2021

Cottonwood WWTP, Phase 1, 

0.20 MGD $5,119,897.50 0.00425 240 49,195.04$          11,806,810.71$     0.20 MGD 6,143,877.00$     398,000.00$        850,400.00$      4,414,533.71$     11,807,000.00$      

Build plant at Regional Site, road and electrical 

improvements add $500,000

S-16 2021 East Cottonwood Gravity Line  $    1,500,000.00 0.00425 240 12,777.45$          3,066,589.17$       12" 3,200 1,800,000.00$     51,000.00$          69,000.00$        1,146,589.17$     3,067,000.00$        

Extend East Cottonwood gravity ww to Regional Site, sized 

for 10-year capacity

S-17 2021 West Cottonwood LS and FM  $       949,000.00 0.00425 240 8,430.46$            2,023,309.98$       

6" FM and 

350 gpm LS 3,700 1,138,800.00$     79,000.00$          49,000.00$        756,509.98$        2,023,000.00$        

Extend 27" and 30" gravity ww from confluence with East 

Cottonwood to US 290, ultimate capacity

S-18 2022

West Cottonwood Gravity Line, 

Phase 2  $       984,000.00 0.00425 240 8,917.60$            2,140,223.69$       15" 8,200 1,230,000.00$     64,000.00$          46,000.00$        800,223.69$        2,140,000.00$        

Serves West Cottonwood Sub-Basin up to Bois D'Arc Ln, 

21" and 24" gravity ww sized for ultimate capacity

S-19 2021

FM 973 Gravity Wastewater  

Line  $       684,400.00 0.00425 240 7,102.67$            1,704,640.25$       15" 5,800 821,280.00$        123,200.00$        122,800.00$      637,360.25$        1,705,000.00$        

Serves FM 973 Corridor up to Wilbarger Basin divide 

(approx. Gregg Ln)

S-23 2024

Willow Lift Station and Force 

Main  $       685,000.00 0.00425 240 8,209.85$            1,970,363.40$       200 gpm 924,750.00$        138,700.00$        170,200.00$      736,713.40$        1,970,000.00$        

Lift Station and Force Main to serve 220 LUEs in Willow 

Basin along US 290. 10-Yr ADF approx. 60,000 gpd, 

PWWF approx 200 gpm  

S-28 2018

High School gravity line to 

Stonewater Lift Station; 

Stonewater Lift Station 

Upgrades  $         26,271.96 0.00425 240 202.10$               48,503.92$            12" 3,100 26,271.96$          4,096.48$            -$                  18,135.48$          49,000.00$             

Gravity main to serve new high school;  upgrades to 

existing Stonewater Lift Station.

S-30 2022

Expand Cottonwood WWTP 

to 0.40 MGD Capacity  $    2,000,000.00 0.00425 240 21,811.51$          5,234,763.54$       0.40 MGD 2,500,000.00$     375,000.00$        402,500.00$      1,957,263.54$     5,235,000.00$        New Treatment Plant Capacity to Serve Addl Growth 

S-31 2025

Expand Cottonwood WWTP 

to 0.50 MGD Capacity  $    2,500,000.00 0.00425 240 31,340.04$          7,521,608.52$       0.50 MGD 3,500,000.00$     525,000.00$        684,300.00$      2,812,308.52$     7,522,000.00$        New Treatment Plant Capacity to Serve Addl Growth 

S-32 2021

Bastrop-Parsons WW 

Improvements  $       418,097.00 0.00425 240 4,339.12$            1,041,388.76$       12" 501,716.40$        75,300.00$          75,000.00$        389,372.36$        1,041,000.00$        

Replacement of existing wastewater line in Bastrop and 

Parsons; to correct current capacity issues and serve 

additional growth

S-33 2022

Wilbarger Basin Gravity Line 

to Lift Station (off Gregg 

Lane)  $       670,000.00 0.00425 240 7,306.44$            1,753,545.96$       15" 6,200 837,500.00$        125,600.00$        134,800.00$      655,645.96$        1,754,000.00$        

New wastewater line to serve growth along Gregg 

Lane.

S-34 2022

Wilbarger Basin lift station 

and force main (off Gregg 

Lane)  $       947,500.00 0.00425 240 10,333.60$          2,480,064.06$       

12" FM and 

225 gpm LS 3,500 1,184,375.00$     177,700.00$        190,700.00$      927,289.06$        2,480,000.00$        

New lift station and force main to servie growth along 

Gregg Lane.

S-35 2023

FM 973 wastewater line 

(from Gregg Lane to City 

Limits)  $       230,000.00 0.00425 240 2,632.02$            631,685.42$          15" 1,900 299,000.00$        44,900.00$          51,600.00$        236,185.42$        632,000.00$           

New gravity wastewater line to extend wastewater 

service to City Limits for future growth.

CIP-1 2021

Wildhorse Creek Lift Station 

Expansion  $       750,000.00 0.00425 240 7,520.06$            1,804,815.50$       

1,075 gpm, 

2nd WW 900,000.00$        135,000.00$        95,000.00$        75,900.00$          1,206,000.00$        

Change in discharge point increased Phase 1 capacity 

from 440 to 1026 LUEs, currently at about 706 LUEs.  

Will need to expand LS when Lagos develops to 

ultimate 1586 LUE capacity.

CIP-2 2021

Bell Farms Lift Station 

Expansion  $       300,000.00 0.00425 240 2,894.89$            694,774.11$          

1,400 gpm, 

2nd WW 360,000.00$        45,000.00$          30,000.00$        259,774.11$        695,000.00$           

Presently at approximately 730 LUES.  Current phase 1 

capacity is 1264 LUES.  Ultimate Capcity at phase 2  is 

2172. 

CIP-3 2021

Presidential Glen Lift Station 

Expansion  $       300,000.00 0.00425 240 2,894.89$            694,774.11$          

2,275 gpm, 

2nd WW 360,000.00$        45,000.00$          30,000.00$        259,774.11$        695,000.00$           

Presently at approximately 1281 LUES.  Actual phase 1 

capacity with current wastewater flows is in excess of 

1500 LUES.  Ultimate Capcity at phase 2  is 3517.

CIP-4 2022 US 290 WW Line Expansion  $       603,378.00 0.00425 240 6,579.87$            1,579,169.64$       12" & 15"

1,566 

& 

2,760 754,222.50$        113,100.00$        121,400.00$      590,447.14$        1,579,000.00$        

Presently at approximately 264 PG+308 SW = 572 

LUEs out of 1800 LUE capacity, expansion will double 

capacity.

CIP-6 2020

Travis County Rural Center 

Lift Station, force main  $    1,931,000.00 0.00425 240 16,288.93$          3,909,342.17$       500 gpm 500 2,220,650.00$     127,000.00$        100,000.00$      1,461,692.17$     3,909,000.00$        

Lift Station and Force Main from Rural Center to 

existing wastewater line

Total: 84,469,000.00$      

Notes:

Wastewater LUEs are defined as producing 275 gallons of wastewater per day per single family residence as determined in the the City of Manor Wastewater Master Plan.

The following projects have been identified as required to serve new growth within the service area, in accordance with 

approved land use assumptions and as part of the 10-year Capital Improvements Plan

166

Item 7.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 8 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 2, 2021 
PREPARED BY: Frank T. Phelan, P.E. 
DEPARTMENT: City Engineer 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a change order to the construction contract for the Cottonwood 
Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements project. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

The project includes the construction of a new lift station and wastewater treatment plant to serve new 
development within the Cottonwood Creek and Cottonwood Creek Tributary Basins.   

LEGAL REVIEW:  Not Applicable 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Yes 
PRESENTATION:  Yes 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• Change Order No. 1 with backup 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve Change Order No. 1 to the construction contract 
for the Cottonwood Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements project with Excel Construction Services, 
LLC in the amount of $47,022.00. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION:  Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

167

Item 8.



Texas Engineering Firm #4242 

 

 

1500 County Road 269 
Leander, TX 78641  
 
PO Box 2029 
Leander, TX 78646-2029   

CHANGE ORDER 
 

ORDER NO.: 1 
DATE: May 25, 2021 
AGREEMENT DATE: November 18, 2020 

 
NAME OF PROJECT: Cottonwood Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements 
 
OWNER: City of Manor 
 
CONTRACTOR: Excel Construction Services, LLC 
 
 
The following changes are hereby made to the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: 
 
1. Justification: 
 

Item No. 1 -  Add 1 LS Change Order Item C.O.1-1, increased manhole A1 depth and wet well depth 
and associated work due to modifications to the offsite wastewater collection system 
@ $36,778.00/LS 

 
Item No. 2 -  Add 1 LS Change Order Item C.O.1-2, Install interior finish in office building, 

installation @ $6,000.00/LS 
 
Item No. 3 -  Add 1 LS Change Order Item C.O. 1-3, Filter pad revisions including increase in slab 

width and grade beam width @ $1,028.00/LS 
 
Item No. 4 -  Add 1 LS Change Order Item C.O.1-4, add reinforcing to baffled outfall @ 

$3,216.00/LS 
 

2. Change to CONTRACT PRICE: 
Original CONTRACT PRICE: $5,119,897.50 
Current CONTRACT PRICE adjusted by previous CHANGE ORDERS $5,119,897.50 
The CONTRACT PRICE due to this CHANGE ORDER will be increased by: $47,022.00 
New CONTRACT PRICE including this CHANGE ORDER will be: $5,166.919.50 

 
3. Change to CONTRACT TIME: 
 The CONTRACT TIME will be increased by 5 calendar days for the substantial completion of 

treatment plant.  The date for substantial completion of the treatment plant work will be November 
30, 2021. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

168

Item 8.



 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Approvals Required: 
 

To be effective, this order must be signed by all parties to the Agreement if it changes the scope or 
objective of the PROJECT, or as may otherwise be required by the SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL 
CONDITIONS. 

 
 
Recommended by: _Frank T. Phelan, P.E._______ Signed: ____________________________ 
                                 Engineer 
 
Ordered by: _______________________________ Signed: ____________________________ 
  Owner 
 
Accepted by: ______________________________ Signed____________________________ 
  Contractor 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

169

Item 8.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 9 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 2, 2021 
PREPARED BY: Lydia Collins, Director of Finance 
DEPARTMENT: Finance 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance adopting an Amended Annual Budget for the City 
of Manor for Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2020 and ending September 30, 2021. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

Budget Committee met on May 19, 2021 to discuss and review Proposed Amended Budget.  

LEGAL REVIEW:  Not Applicable 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Yes, there was an overall reduction on to the General Fund to being it under budget 

by $70,139.00 
PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• Ordinance No. 612 
• Exhibit “A” 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve Ordinance No. 612 adopting an Amended 
Annual Budget for the City of Manor for Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2020 and ending September 30, 2021. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

170

Item 9.



   
 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 612 
 
 

FY 2020-2021 AMENDED ANNUAL BUDGET ORDINANCE 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, ADOPTING AN 

AMENDED ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE ENSUING FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2020, AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021; 
APPROPRIATING THE VARIOUS AMOUNTS THEREOF, AND 
REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN 
CONFLICT THEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Manager of the City of Manor, Texas (the "City") has submitted to the 
City Council a proposed amended annual budget of the revenues of said City and the expenditures 
necessary for conducting the affairs thereof, and providing a complete financial plan for FY 2020-
2021, and which said proposed amended annual budget has been compiled from detailed information 
obtained from the several departments, divisions, and offices of the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has received said City Manager's proposed amended annual 
budget, a copy of which, along with all supporting schedules, have been filed with the City. 
 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MANOR, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Section 1.  The proposed amended annual budget of the revenue of the City and the expenses 
of conducting the affairs thereof providing a complete financial plan for the ensuing fiscal year 
beginning October 1, 2020, and ending September 30, 2021, as submitted to the City Council by the 
City Manager of said City, and which budget is attached hereto as Exhibit "A", be and the same is in 
all things adopted and approved as the amended annual budget of all current expenditures/expenses 
as well as fixed charges against said City for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2020, and ending 
September 30, 2021. 
 
 Section 2.  The sums shown on Exhibit "A" are hereby appropriated from the respective funds 
for the payment of expenditures on behalf of the City government as established in the approved 
amended annual budget document for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021. 
 
 Section 3.  Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 
 

  Section 4.  This Ordinance shall be and remain in full force and effect from and after its final 
passage and publication as herein provided. 
 
 PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED on this 2nd day of June 2021. 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 171

Item 9.



ORDINANCE NO. 612 Page 2 
 

 

 
 

THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS  
 
       ____________________________  
       Dr. Larry Wallace Jr.,  

Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 
City Secretary  

 
  

172

Item 9.



ORDINANCE NO. 612 Page 3 
 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

AMENDED ANNUAL BUDGET 
FY 2020-2021 

 
 
 

173

Item 9.



The budget will raise $ 515,088 (6.65% approx) more property tax revenues 
than last year's budget.  The property tax revenue to be raised from new 
property added to the tax roll this year is $503,853.

2020-21 PROP. BUDGET CVR 5/25/2021 PAB - 1

174

Item 9.



Original Budget Adopted: 16-Sep-2020
Ordinance Number: 580                

Amended Budget Adopted: 3-Mar-2021
Ordinance Number: 605                

Amended Budget Adopted:
Ordinance Number:

BUDGETED BUDGETED FYTD ACTUAL FYTD ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET ESTIMATED PROJECTED
REVENUES EXPENSES REVENUES EXPENSES REVENUES EXPENSES 30-Sep-20 30-Sep-21

GENERAL FUND
8,195,331                1,219,554                6,975,777             7,790,235                898,151                    6,892,084             ADMINISTRATION 8,453,634                1,427,345                7,026,289             

-                                      763,189                    (763,189)                0 614,144 (614,144) FINANCE DEPT. -                                      753,609                    (753,609)                
999,000                    2,416,219                (1,417,219)           948,464                    1,822,816                (874,352)                STREET DEPT. 1,024,104                2,357,459                (1,333,355)           

1,485,067                988,209                    496,858                 2,750,877                656,366                    2,094,511             DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 1,867,062                1,008,777                858,285                 
40,000                       676,989                    (636,989)                40,000                       335,820                    (295,820)                PARKS 40,000                       678,389                    (638,389)                

630,150                    681,128                    (50,978)                  660,496                    577,083                    83,414                    MUNICIPAL COURT 404,756                    681,128                    (276,372)                
269,279                    4,213,461                (3,944,182)           210,954                    3,557,628                (3,346,674)           POLICE DEPT. 330,391                    4,188,461                (3,858,070)           

-                                653,570                    (653,570)                -                                472,068                    (472,068)                IT DEPT. -                                663,350                    (663,350)                
-                                291,690                    (291,690)                -                                96,686                       (96,686)                  ECONOMIC DEV. SVCS. 400                              291,690                    (291,290)                

-                                -                                -                            -                                -                                -                            TRANSFERS -                                -                                -                            
11,618,827             11,904,009             (285,182)                12,401,027             9,030,762                3,370,264             GENERAL FUND TOTALS 12,120,347        12,050,208        70,139             

UTILITY FUND
0 513,873                    (513,873)                0 389,325                    (389,325)                PUBLIC WORKS 0 510,200                    (510,200)                

2,089,796                2,303,216                (213,420)                2,441,864                2,210,167                231,698                 WATER 2,096,821                2,548,466                (451,645)                
1,741,838                705,324                    1,036,514             2,082,875                1,002,830                1,080,045             WASTEWATER 1,660,891                1,123,699                537,192                 

-                                -                            -                                -                            TRANSFERS 1,302,397                1,302,397                -                            
3,831,634                3,522,413                309,221                 4,524,739                3,602,322                922,417                 UTILITY FUND TOTALS 5,060,109          5,484,762          (424,653)         

15,450,461             15,426,422             24,039                    16,925,766             12,633,084             4,292,681             TOTAL POOLED FUNDS 17,180,456             17,534,970             (354,514)         469,511 114,997

2,597,376                2,176,104                421,272                 2,172,371                2,181,442                (9,071)                     TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 2,207,164                2,189,128                18,036                    91,186                       109,222                 

RESTRICTED FUNDS
9,500                          9,500                          -                            13,877                       27,086                       (13,209)                  COURT TECH FUND 9,500                          9,500                          -                            46,674               46,674                    
8,400                          500                              7,900                       10,408                       342                              10,066                    COURT BLDG SEC FUND 8,400                          500                              7,900                       12,518                       20,418                    

33,200                       30,000                       3,200                       40,286                       31,048                       9,238                       HOTEL OCCUPANCY 33,200                       9,000                          24,200                    457,267                    481,467                 
864,500                    -                                864,500                 388,310                    4,254 384,056                 CAPT IMPACT-WATER 864,500                    -                                864,500                 734,293                    1,598,793             
392,006                    -                                392,006                 1,287,785                373,382                    914,403                 CAPT IMPACT-WW 392,006                    -                                392,006                 2,208,728         2,600,734             

-                                -                                -                            -                                -                                -                            PARK FUNDS -                                -                                -                            8,450                          8,450                       
3,856,948                3,856,948                -                            3,856,948                3,856,948                -                            BOND FUNDS 3,856,948                3,856,948                -                            -                             
5,164,554                3,896,948                1,267,606             6,024,436                4,629,413                1,395,023             RESTRICTED FUND TOTALS 5,164,554                3,875,948                1,288,606             3,514,901                4,803,507             

23,212,391           21,499,474           1,712,917           25,122,572           19,443,939           5,678,633           GRAND TOTALS 24,552,174           23,600,046           952,128               4,075,598             5,027,726           

The General Fund is the general operating fund and the largest fund of the city as it includes all traditional government services such general administration, street and drainage, maintenance, development services, police and courts, and  parks.
The Utility Fund accounts for the city's water and wastewater enterprise.  Unlike the general fund it operates as a proprietary fund functioning more like a business.
The Restricted Funds are used only for specific purposes.  Reveues and payments are limited either by state law or local ordinance.

FUND BALANCES

NET NET NET

Proposed Amended Annual Budget
Fiscal Year  2020-21

FY  2020-2021 31-May-21 FY   2020-21

2020-21 Prop Annual Bud Exhibit "A"

175

Item 9.



SUMMARY FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-21 Original Budget Adopted: 16-Sep-2020

Ordinance Number: 580                        

Amended Budget Adopted: 3-Mar-2021
Ordinance Number: 605                        

Amended Budget Adopted:
Ordinance Number:

Exisiting PROPOSED PROPOSED Exisiting PROPOSED PROPOSED
FUND FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 BUDGET FUND FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 BUDGET

Amended Budget Municipal Budget DIFFERENCE Amended Budget Municipal Budget DIFFERENCE

GENERAL FUND UTILITY FUND
ADMINISTRATION PUBLIC WORKS

  REVENUES 8,195,331                      8,453,634                      258,303                           REVENUES -                                 -                                 -                                 
  EXPENSES 1,219,554                      1,427,345                      207,791                           EXPENSES 513,873                         510,200                         (3,673)                            
  NET 6,975,777                     7,026,289                      50,512                             NET (513,873)                       (510,200)                       3,673                             

FINANCE DEPARTMENT WATER DEPARTMENT
  REVENUES -                                 -                                     -                                   REVENUES 2,089,796                      2,096,821                      7,025                             
  EXPENSES 763,189                         753,609                         (9,580)                              EXPENSES 2,303,216                      2,548,466                      245,250                         
  NET (763,189)                       (753,609)                        9,580                               NET (213,420)                       (451,645)                       (238,225)                       

STREET DEPARTMENT WASTEWATER DEPARTMENT
  REVENUES 999,000                         1,024,104                      25,104                             REVENUES 1,741,838                      1,660,891                      (80,947)                          
  EXPENSES 2,416,219                      2,357,459                      (58,760)                            EXPENSES 705,324                         1,123,699                      418,375                         
  NET (1,417,219)                    (1,333,355)                     83,864                             NET 1,036,514                     537,192                        (499,322)                       

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES TRANSFERS
  REVENUES 1,485,067                      1,867,062                      381,995                           REVENUES -                                 1,302,397                      1,302,397                      
  EXPENSES 988,209                         1,008,777                      20,568                             EXPENSES -                                 1,302,397                      1,302,397                      
  NET 496,858                         858,285                         361,427                           NET -                                 -                                 -                                 

UTILITY FUND TOTALS
  REVENUES 40,000                           40,000                           -                                 REVENUES 3,831,634                      5,060,109                      1,228,475                      
  EXPENSES 676,989                         678,389                         (1,400)                           EXPENDITURES 3,522,413                      5,484,762                      1,962,349                      
  NET 716,989                         718,389                         (1,400)                            NET 309,221                        (424,653)                       (733,874)                       

MUNICIPAL COURT
  REVENUES 630,150                         404,756                         (225,394)                        DEBT SERVICE TOTALS
  EXPENSES 681,128                         681,128                         -                                 REVENUES 2,597,376                      2,207,164                      (390,212)                        
  NET (50,978)                         (276,372)                        (225,394)                       EXPENDITURES 2,176,104                      2,189,128                      13,024                           

NET 421,272                        18,036                           (403,236)                       
POLICE DEPARTMENT

  REVENUES 269,279                         330,391                         61,112                           
  EXPENSES 4,213,461                      4,188,461                      (25,000)                          
  NET (3,944,182)                    (3,858,070)                     86,112                           

IT DEPARTMENT
  REVENUES -                                 -                                     -                                 
  EXPENSES 653,570                         663,350                         9,780                             
  NET (653,570)                       (663,350)                        (9,780)                           

COMMUNITY DEV. DEPARTMENT
  REVENUES -                                 400                                400                                
  EXPENSES 291,690                         291,690                         -                                 
  NET (291,690)                       (291,290)                        400                                

TRANSFERS
  REVENUES -                                 -                                     -                                 
  EXPENSES -                                 -                                     -                                 

  NET -                                 -                                     -                                 

GENERAL FUND TOTALS
REVENUES 11,618,827                    12,120,347                    501,120                         

EXPENDITURES 11,904,009                    12,050,208                    135,019                         
NET (285,182)                       70,139                           366,101                        

  NET 24,039                  (354,514)              (367,773)              

  REVENUES 15,450,461           17,180,456           1,729,595             

EXPENDITURES 15,426,422           17,534,970           2,097,368             

PARKS DEPARTMENT

PROPOSED Annual Budet

MUNICIPAL BUDGET TOTALS (exclusive of debt service)

2020-21 Proposed Annual Summary 5/25/2021

176

Item 9.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 10 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 2, 2021 
PREPARED BY: Lydia Collins, Director of Finance 
DEPARTMENT: Finance 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the Annual Audit Financial Statements of the City of Manor, 
Texas for the year ending September 30, 2020. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  Not Applicable 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No 
PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• City of Manor, Texas Annual Financial Report and Independent Auditor’s Report Year Ended  
September 30, 2020 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve and accept the City of Manor, Texas Annual 
Financial Report and Independent Auditor’s Report Year Ended September 30, 2020. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

177

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

AND
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

178

Item 10.



179

Item 10.



Page

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 1

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) 3

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of Net Position 11

Statement of Activities 14

FUND LEVEL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 16

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Net Position 19

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds 20

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 23

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Fund 24

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - 
Proprietary Fund 26

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund 27

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 29

CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

180

Item 10.



Page
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - General Fund 51

Notes to Required Supplementary Information 53

Schedule of Changes in the City's Net Pension Asset/Liability 
and Related Ratios - Last Ten Years (Unaudited) 54

Texas Municipal Retirement System - Schedule of Funding Progress 
(Unaudited) 56

Schedule of Changes in the City's Total OPEB Asset/Liability 
and Related Ratios - Last Ten Years (Unaudited) 57

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS 59

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 61

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 62

CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

TABLE OF CONTENTS - Continued

181

Item 10.



To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Manor, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Auditors' Responsibility

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Manor, Texas (the
City), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

182

Item 10.



Opinions

Other Matters

Emphasis of Matter

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

Austin, Texas

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City, as of September 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management's Discussion
and Analysis on pages 3-9, budgetary comparison information on page 51, schedule of changes in the City's net
pension asset/liability and related ratios - last ten years on page 54-55, Texas Municipal Retirement System
schedule of funding progress on page 56, and Schedule of Changes in the City’s Total OPEB Liability and
Related Ratios on page 57 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated DATE, on our
consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

DATE

As discussed in Note P to the financial statements, the 2019 financial statements have been restated to correct a
misstatement. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

- 2 -
183

Item 10.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(UNAUDITED)

184

Item 10.



185

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

September 30, 2020

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary Detail 

This section of the City of Manor's (the City) annual financial report presents management's discussion and
analysis of the City's financial performance during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020. This discussion
and analysis should be read in conjunction with the City's financial statements. 

This annual report consists of three parts - management's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic
financial statements, and the required supplementary information. The basic financial statements include two
types of statements that present different views of the City:

• The first two statements are government-
wide financial statements that provide both
long-term and short-term information
about the City’s overall financial status. 
 

• The remaining statements are fund
financial statements that focus on
individual parts of the government,
reporting the City’s operations in more
detail than the government-wide
statements. 

• Governmental funds statements tell how
general government services were financed
in the short term as well as what remains
for future spending. 

• The financial statements also include
notes to the financial statements explaining
some of the information in the financial
statements and provide more detailed data. 

• The report also contains required
supplementary information in addition to
the basic financial statements themselves.
This contains additional information about
the City's General Fund budget and
information about the City's pension plan.

Figure A-1 shows how the parts of this annual report are arranged and related to one another. 

The remainder of this overview explains the structure and contents of each of the statements. 

Required
Supplementary
Information

Management's 
Discussion

and
Analysis

Basic
Financial

Statements

Government‐
Wide

Financial
Statements

Fund Level
Financial

Statements

Notes to the
Financial

Statements

FIGURE A‐1
REQUIRED COMPONENTS OF THE 
CITY'S ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

- 3 -
186

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

September 30, 2020

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements

All cities have at least one major fund:

Other common major funds:                                                                                                                                         

Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the City's financial statements, including the portion of the city 
government they cover, and the types of information they contain. 

• Management may establish other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it
is properly using certain revenue resources, such as special revenue, capital project, and grant funds. 

The government-wide financial statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting
methods similar to those used by private-sector businesses. The statement of net position includes all of the
government's assets and liabilities. In the statement of activities, all of the current year's revenues and expenses
are accounted for regardless of when cash is received or paid, and all of the City's governmental activities and
city services are combined and show how they are financed. 

Both government-wide statements report the City's net position and how it has changed. Net position, the
difference between the City's assets plus deferred outflows and liabilities plus deferred inflows, is one way to
measure the City's financial health or position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net position are an
indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively. 

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City's most significant (major) funds -
not the City as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific revenue
sources and spending for particular purposes. 

• Governmental fund – The City’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which focus on (1) how
cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances left at
year end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental fund statements provide a detailed
short-term view that helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent
in the near future to finance the City’s programs. Because these funds do not encompass the additional long-
term focus of the government-wide statements, additional information is provided following each fund statement
that explains the relationship (or difference) between them. 

• Some common funds are required by State law, such as the debt service fund, special revenues fund and capital
projects fund.            

- 4 -
187

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

September 30, 2020

THE CITY AS A WHOLE (GOVERNMENT-WIDE)

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

·    The City’s total combined net position was $37,556,081 at September 30, 2020 (See Figure A-3).

·    Current year activity resulted in an increase in the City’s net position by $7,569,710 (See Figure A-4).

Type of inflow/outflow 
information

All revenues and expenses 
during year, regardless of 
when cash is received or 
paid

Revenues for which cash is 
received during or soon after year 
end; expenditures when goods or 
services have been received and 
payment is made during the year 
or soon thereafter

All revenues and expenses during the 
year, regardless of when cash is 
received or paid

Accounting basis and 
measurement focus

Accrual accounting and 
economic resources focus

Modified accrual accounting and 
current financial resources focus

Accrual accounting and economic 
resources focus

Type of asset/liability 
information

All assets and liabilities, 
both financial and capital, 
short-term and long-term

Only assets expected to be used 
up and liabilities that come due 
during the year or soon 
thereafter; no capital assets or 
long-term debt included

All assets and liabilities, both 
financial and capital, and short-term 
and long-term

Scope

Entire City's government 
(except fiduciary funds) 
and the City's component 
units.

The activities of the City that are 
not proprietary or fiduciary. 

Activities the City operates similar to 
private business: utilities

Required financial statements

Statement of Net Position
Statement of Activities

Balance Sheet 
Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures & Changes in Fund 
Balances

Statement of Net Position
Statement of Revenues, Expenses & 
Changes in Net Position
Statement of Cash Flows

Figure A-2 - Major Features of the City's Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Type of Statements Government-Wide Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds
Fund Statements

- 5 -
188

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

September 30, 2020

2020
2019 As 
Restated 2020 2019 2020

2019 As 
Restated

Assets:

Current and other assets 8,984,784$ 5,403,303$    20,065,460$ 29,019,293$ 29,050,244$ 34,422,596$  

Noncurrent assets 7,254,759   7,559,220      26,745,497   14,774,316   34,000,256   22,333,536    

Total assets 16,239,543 12,962,523    46,810,957   43,793,609   63,050,500   56,756,132    

Deferred outflows 608,830      702,130         47,713          58,121          656,543        760,251         

Liabilities:

Current liabilities 2,259,064   1,862,477      977,163        942,879        3,236,227     2,805,356      

Long-term liabilities 7,160,736   8,469,570      15,464,343   16,152,100   22,625,079   24,621,670    

Total liabilities 9,419,800   10,332,047    16,441,506   17,094,979   25,861,306   27,427,026    

Deferred inflows 249,958      89,525           39,698          13,461          289,656        102,986         

Net position:

Investment in capital assets 306,600      (369,553)       12,531,966   7,438,707     12,838,566   7,069,154      

Restricted 1,084,655   338,669         12,105,988   16,852,254   13,190,643   17,190,923    

Unrestricted 5,787,360   3,273,965      5,739,512     2,452,329     11,526,872   5,726,294      

Total net position 7,178,615$ 3,243,081$    30,377,466$ 26,743,290$ 37,556,081$ 29,986,371$  

Figure A-3

City's Net Position

Governmental             
Activities

Business-Type             
Activities Total

- 6 -
189

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

September 30, 2020

Revenues: 2020
2019 As 
Restated 2020 2019 2020

2019 As 
Restated

Program revenues:

Charges for services 5,151,248$ 4,628,578$    8,499,391$   6,144,084$   13,650,639$ 10,772,662$  

General revenues:

Taxes 10,138,602 8,172,022      -                   -                   10,138,602   8,172,022      

Interest income 227,438      206,490         104,276        339,623        331,714        546,113         

Other 316,838      236,442         -                   -                   316,838        236,442         

Total revenues 15,834,126 13,243,532    8,603,667     6,483,707     24,437,793   19,727,239    

Expenses:

General government 2,992,245   3,191,025      -                   -                   2,992,245     3,191,025      

Public safety 3,935,964   3,651,080      -                   -                   3,935,964     3,651,080      

Streets 1,138,597   1,130,854      -                   -                   1,138,597     1,130,854      

Municipal court 574,719      662,491         -                   -                   574,719        662,491         

Development services 770,131      640,228         -                   -                   770,131        640,228         

Sanitation 1,119,795   937,134         -                   -                   1,119,795     937,134         

Interest and fiscal charges 189,899      213,213         389,601        404,175        579,500        617,388         

Water and sewer -                 -                    5,757,132     3,974,893     5,757,132     3,974,893      

Total expenses 10,721,350 10,426,025    6,146,733     4,379,068     16,868,083   14,805,093    

Revenues over(under)

expenses 5,112,776   2,817,507      2,456,934     2,104,639     7,569,710     4,922,146      

Capital contributions -                 -                    -                   -                   -                   -                    

Transfers (1,177,242) (1,169,201)    1,177,242     1,169,201     -                   -                    

Change in net position 3,935,534   1,648,306      3,634,176     3,273,840     7,569,710     4,922,146      

Beginning net position 3,243,081   1,594,775      26,743,290   23,469,450   29,986,371   25,064,225    

Ending net position 7,178,615$ 3,243,081$    30,377,466$ 26,743,290$ 37,556,081$ 29,986,371$  

Changes in City Net Position

Governmental             
Activities

Business-Type             
Activities Total

Figure A-4

- 7 -
190

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

September 30, 2020

CITY REVENUES

GROWTH TRENDS

Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Capital Assets

The majority of the City's revenue is generated from charges for water and sewer services (35%), property
taxes (32%), and primary government charges for services (21%). The remaining is obtained from the grants,
contributions, sales taxes, franchise fees, court fees and other sources (See Figure A-5).

The City's property tax rate for maintenance and operations (M&O) increased from $0.4807 to $0.5845 in the
current fiscal year generating $5,620,119 in M&O taxes, an increase of $1,660,195 over the previous fiscal
year. While the City's franchise fees decreased $4,251, or 1%, and sales taxes increased by $282,620, or
22%.  The new M&O tax rate for the year beginning October 1, 2020 is $0.5845.

Water sales increased by $510,471, or 21%, while sewer sales increased by $324,264, or 16%.

General Fund revenues exceeded expenditures and transfers by $3,276,236 which was $3,322,025 more than
budgeted. See details of budget and actual revenues on page 51.

During the year ended September 30, 2020, the City invested $13,662,343 in a broad range of capital assets,
including infrastructure, equipment and buildings (See Figure A-6). These additions were funded from bond
proceeds, capital impact fees, general budgeted expenditures, and notes payables.

Figure A-5
Revenue Sources

Water and Sewer

Property Taxes

Franchise Fees

Sales Taxes

Primary Government Charge for
Services
Other

- 8 -
191

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

September 30, 2020

2020

2019 As 
Restated 2020 2019 2020

2019 As 
Restated

Land 470,607$       470,607$       406,816$         406,816$         877,423$         877,423$         

Construction in progress -                    208,810         16,864,577      4,843,659        16,864,577      5,052,469        

Buildings and equipment 7,481,897      7,016,216      1,570,349        1,251,464        9,052,246        8,267,680        

Sidewalks 244,164         244,164         -                  -                  244,164           244,164           

Streets and improvements 7,018,420      6,482,888      12,992             12,992             7,031,412        6,495,880        

Water system -                -                7,465,930        7,465,930        7,465,930        7,465,930        

Sewer system -                -                5,875,654        5,875,654        5,875,654        5,875,654        

Total at historical cost 15,215,088    14,422,685    32,196,318      19,856,515      47,411,406      34,279,200      

Accumulated depreciation (7,960,329)    (6,863,465)    (5,450,821)      (5,082,199)      (13,411,150)    (11,945,664)    

Net capital assets 7,254,759$    7,559,220$    26,745,497$    14,774,316$    34,000,256$    22,333,536$    

Debt Administration

2020

2019 As 
Restated 2020 2019 2020

2019 As 
Restated

Notes payable 1,030,984$    1,170,423$    171,243$         -$                1,202,227$      1,170,423$      

Bonds payable 5,917,175      6,999,553      15,247,825      16,051,650      21,165,000      23,051,203      

Total 6,948,159$    8,169,976$    15,419,068$    16,051,650$    22,367,227$    24,221,626$    

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Figure A-6
City's Capital Assets

Total

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors
with a general overview of the City's finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability for the money it
receives. Any questions about this report or need for additional financial information should be addressed to
the City of Manor, Attn: City Manager, P.O. Box 387, Manor, TX 78653.

Figure A-7

Total

Business-Type
Activities

Governmental              
Activities

Governmental              
Activities

Business-Type                
Activities

City's Long-Term Debt

The City's property tax rate for debt services decreased from $0.2715 to $0.2316 in the current fiscal year
generating $2,220,138 in debt service taxes, an increase of $4,625 over the previous fiscal year. More
detailed information about the City's debt is presented in the Notes to the Financial Statements. The new
debt service tax rate for the year beginning October 1, 2020 is $0.2316.

Next year's proposed General Fund budget is projected to remain consistent with this year's actual revenues. 

General fund proposed expenditures are expected to increase by $1,482,328, resulting in an overall operating
deficit of approximately $157,519.

- 9 -
192

Item 10.



 

This page was intentionally left blank.

- 10 -
193

Item 10.



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

194

Item 10.



195

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

September 30, 2020

Governmental 
Activities

Business-Type 
Activities Total

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 7,230,549$              7,419,088$              14,649,637$            

Receivables, net 669,580                   540,384                   1,209,964                

Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 406,830                   11,636,897              12,043,727              

Investments 677,825                   469,091                   1,146,916                

Non-current assets:

Capital assets:

Non-depreciable 470,607                   17,271,393              17,742,000              

Depreciable, net 6,784,152                9,474,104                16,258,256              

Total assets 16,239,543              46,810,957              63,050,500              

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

Deferred outflows related to refunding 211,546                   -                           211,546                   

Deferred outflows related to OPEB 15,955                     2,607                       18,562                     

Deferred outflows related to pensions 381,329                   45,106                     426,435                   

Total deferred outflows 608,830                   47,713                     656,543                   

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Payable from unrestricted assets:

Accounts payable 132,067                   18,028                     150,095                   

Passthrough liabilities 528,264                   -                           528,264                   

Unearned revenue 351,160                   -                           351,160                   

Payable from restricted assets:

Interest payable 22,232                     44,217                     66,449                     

Notes payable, due within one year 354,016                   40,825                     394,841                   

Bonds payable, due within one year 871,325                   743,675                   1,615,000                

Non-current liabilities:

Payable from unrestricted assets:

Compensated absences 241,398                   66,111                     307,509                   

Payable from restricted assets:

Customer deposits -                           690,753                   690,753                   

Notes payable, due more than one year 676,968                   130,418                   807,386                   

Bonds payable, due more than one year 5,045,850                14,504,150              19,550,000              

Net OPEB liability 65,647                     10,639                     76,286                     

Net pension liability 1,130,873                192,690                   1,323,563                

Total liabilities 9,419,800                16,441,506              25,861,306              

Primary Government

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
- 11 -

196

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

September 30, 2020

Governmental 
Activities

Business-Type 
Activities Total

Primary Government

DEFERRED INFLOWS

Deferred inflows related to OPEB 6,659                       1,009                       7,668                       

Deferred inflows related to pensions 243,299                   38,689                     281,988                   

Total deferred inflows 249,958                   39,698                     289,656                   

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 306,600                   12,531,966              12,838,566              

Restricted 1,084,655                12,105,988              13,190,643              

Unrestricted 5,787,360                5,739,512                11,526,872              

Total net position 7,178,615$              30,377,466$            37,556,081$            

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
- 12 -

197

Item 10.



 

This page was intentionally left blank.

- 13 -
198

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Function/program activities Expenses
Charges for 

Services
Primary government:

Government activities:
General government 2,992,245$           379$               
Public safety 3,935,964             128,416          
Streets 1,138,597             -                  
Municipal court 574,719                664,576          
Development services 770,131                3,206,805       
Sanitation 1,119,795             1,151,072       
Interest on long-term debt 189,899                -                  

Total government activities 10,721,350           5,151,248       
Business-type activities:

Water 4,043,356             3,513,580       
Sewer 1,713,776             4,985,811       
Interest on long-term debt 389,601                -                  

Total business-type activities 6,146,733             8,499,391       
Total primary government 16,868,083           13,650,639     

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property
Sales
Franchise
Other

Interest income
Miscellaneous
Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers
Changes in net assets

Net position - beginning of year
As previously stated
Restatement

Net position - end of year after restatement

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
- 14 -

199

Item 10.



Program Revenues
Operating  Capital  
 Grants & 

Contributions
Grants & 

Contributions
Governmental 

Activities
Business-Type 

Activities Total 

-$                  -$                (2,991,866)$      -$                    (2,991,866)$      
-                    -                  (3,807,548)        -                      (3,807,548)        
-                    -                  (1,138,597)        -                      (1,138,597)        
-                    -                  89,857               -                      89,857              
-                    -                  2,436,674          -                      2,436,674         
-                    -                  31,277               -                      31,277              
-                    -                  (189,899)           -                      (189,899)           
-                    -                  (5,570,102)        -                      (5,570,102)        

-                    -                  -                    (529,776)             (529,776)           
-                    -                  -                    3,272,035           3,272,035         
-                    -                  -                    (389,601)             (389,601)           
-                    -                  -                    2,352,658           2,352,658         
-                    -                  (5,570,102)        2,352,658           (3,217,444)        

7,840,257          -                      7,840,257         
1,612,580          -                      1,612,580         

627,876             -                      627,876            
57,889               -                      57,889              

227,438             104,276              331,714            
316,838             -                      316,838            

(1,177,242)        1,177,242           -                    
9,505,636          1,281,518           10,787,154       
3,935,534          3,634,176           7,569,710         

2,936,430          26,743,290         29,679,720       
306,651             -                      306,651            

7,178,615$        30,377,466$       37,556,081$     

Primary Government
Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
- 15 -

200

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2020

General Fund
Special 

Revenues Fund

ASSETS
Unrestricted

Cash and cash equivalents 7,230,547$        -$                   
Receivables, net 628,463             -                     
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 325,050             669,778             
Investments 8,930                 383,414             

Total assets 8,192,990          1,053,192          

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 132,067             -                     
Passthrough liabilities 65,668               452,669             
Unearned revenue 346,770             -                     

Total liabilities 544,505             452,669             

FUND BALANCES
Restricted 333,980             600,523             
Committed -                     -                     
Unassigned 7,314,505          -                     

Total fund balances 7,648,485          600,523             
Total liabilities and fund balances 8,192,990$        1,053,192$        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
- 16 -

201

Item 10.



Debt Service 
Fund

Capital Projects 
Fund

Total 
Governmental 

Funds

-$                   2$                      7,230,549$        
41,117               -                     669,580             

(587,998)            -                     406,830             
285,481             -                     677,825             

(261,400)            2                        8,984,784          

-                     -                     132,067             
-                     9,927                 528,264             

18,476               -                     365,246             
18,476               9,927                 1,025,577          

(279,876)            -                     654,627             
-                     (9,925)                (9,925)                
-                     -                     7,314,505          

(279,876)            (9,925)                7,959,207          
(261,400)$          2$                      8,984,784$        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
- 17 -

202

Item 10.



 

This page was intentionally left blank.

- 18 -
203

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2020

TOTAL FUND BALANCE - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 7,959,207$           

7,254,759             

14,086                  

358,872                

(22,232)                 

(8,386,077)            

NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 7,178,615$           

Certain long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
position are different due to the following:

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Certain receivables are not available to pay current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. This amount
includes deferred property taxes. 

Certain liabilities related to long-term debt are not reported in the
funds, such as accrued interest payable.

Deferred outflows and inflows represent the consumption of net
position that is applicable to a future reporting period and are not
reported in the funds.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
- 19 -

204

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended September 30, 2020

General Fund
Special 

Revenues Fund
REVENUES

Property taxes 5,620,119$         -$                   
Sales tax 1,612,580           -                     
Franchise taxes 627,876              -                     
Other taxes 20,195                37,694                
Licenses and permits 3,206,805           -                     
Charge for services 1,151,072           -                     
Court and police 664,576              -                     
Public safety 128,416              -                     
Interest income 221,389              3,462                  
Interest income - restricted 9                         -                     
Other  317,217              -                     

Total revenues 13,570,254         41,156                

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 2,856,444           11,345                
Public safety 3,811,647           -                     
Streets 929,511              -                     
Municipal court 574,719              -                     
Development services 761,029              -                     
Sanitation 1,119,795           -                     

Capital outlay 240,873              -                     
Debt service:

Principal -                     -                     
Interest -                     -                     

Total expenditures 10,294,018         11,345                
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over expenditures 3,276,236           29,811                

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                     -                     
Transfers out -                     -                     

Total other financing sources (uses) -                     -                     

Net change in fund balances 3,276,236           29,811                

Fund balances - beginning of year 4,372,249           570,712              

Fund balances - end of year 7,648,485$         600,523$            

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
- 20 -

205

Item 10.



Debt Services 
Fund

Capital Projects 
Fund

Total 
Governmental 

Funds

2,220,138$         -$                   7,840,257$         
-                     -                     1,612,580           
-                     -                     627,876              
-                     -                     57,889                
-                     -                     3,206,805           
-                     -                     1,151,072           
-                     -                     664,576              
-                     -                     128,416              

2,578                  -                     227,429              
-                     -                     9                         
-                     -                     317,217              

2,222,716           -                     15,834,126         

1,200                  -                     2,868,989           
-                     -                     3,811,647           
-                     -                     929,511              
-                     -                     574,719              
-                     -                     761,029              
-                     -                     1,119,795           
-                     -                     240,873              

841,175              -                     841,175              
161,198              -                     161,198              

1,003,573           -                     11,308,936         

1,219,143           -                     4,525,190           

-                     -                     -                     
(1,177,242)         -                     (1,177,242)         
(1,177,242)         -                     (1,177,242)         

41,901                -                     3,347,948           

(321,777)            (9,925)                4,611,259           

(279,876)$          (9,925)$              7,959,207$         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
- 21 -

206

Item 10.



 

This page was intentionally left blank.

- 22 -
207

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended September 30, 2020

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 3,347,948$           

(304,461)               

951,913                

(59,866)                 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 3,935,534$           

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different due to the following:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation
exceeded capital outlay expenses in the current period. 

The proceeds of debt issuances provide current financial resources
to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term
liabilities in the statement of net assets. Repayment of debt principal
is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the long-term
liabilities in the statement of net assets. This is the amount by which
debt payments exceeded proceeds and changes in accrued interest
and amortization of deferred outflows from refunding.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and are not reported as
expenditures in the governmental funds. These expenditures include
changes in accrued compensation and changes in pension and OPEB
benefits and related inflows and outflows.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
- 23 -

208

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND
September 30, 2020

 Water and Sewer 
System 

 Capital Impact 
Fees  Total  

ASSETS
Current assets:

Unrestricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 7,419,088$           -$                      7,419,088$           
Accounts receivable, net 540,384                -                        540,384                

Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,725,047             9,911,850             11,636,897           
Investments -                        469,091                469,091                

Total current assets 9,684,519             10,380,941           20,065,460           
Non-current assets:

Non-depreciable assets, net 17,271,393           -                        17,271,393           
Depreciable assets, net 9,474,104             -                        9,474,104             

Total non-current assets 26,745,497           -                        26,745,497           

Total assets 36,430,016           10,380,941           46,810,957           

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
Deferred outflow related to OPEB 2,607                    -                        2,607                    
Deferred outflow related to pension 45,106                  -                        45,106                  

Total deferred outflows 47,713                  -                        47,713                  

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 18,028                  -                        18,028                  
Interest payable 44,217                  -                        44,217                  
Notes payable, due within one year 40,825                  -                        40,825                  
Bonds payable, due within one year 743,675                -                        743,675                

Total current liabilities 846,745                -                        846,745                
Non-current liabilities:

Compensated absences 66,111                  -                        66,111                  
Customer deposits 690,753                -                        690,753                
Notes payable, due after one year 130,418                -                        130,418                
Bonds payable, due after one year 14,504,150           -                        14,504,150           
Net OPEB liability 10,639                  -                        10,639                  
Net pension liability 192,690                -                        192,690                

Total non-current liabilities 15,594,761           -                        15,594,761           

Total liabilities 16,441,506           -                        16,441,506           

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
- 24 -

209

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND
September 30, 2020

 Water and Sewer 
System 

 Capital Impact 
Fees  Total  

DEFERRED INFLOWS
Deferred inflow related to OPEB 1,009                    -                        1,009                    
Deferred inflow related to pensions 38,689                  -                        38,689                  

Total deferred inflows 39,698                  -                        39,698                  

NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets 12,531,966           -                        12,531,966           
Restricted 1,725,047             10,380,941           12,105,988           
Unrestricted 5,739,512             -                        5,739,512             

Total net assets 19,996,525$         10,380,941$         30,377,466$         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
- 25 -

210

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND

Year Ended September 30, 2020

 Water and 
Sewer System 

 Capital Impact 
Fees  Total 

OPERATING REVENUES
Water service 2,911,830$          -$                    2,911,830$          
Sewer service 2,318,132            -                      2,318,132            
Penalties 76,937                 -                      76,937                 
Miscellaneous 210                      -                      210                      
Capital impact fees -                      3,192,282            3,192,282            

Total operating revenues 5,307,109            3,192,282            8,499,391            

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services 875,913               -                      875,913               
Operations 78,778                 336,031               414,809               
Utilities 171,748               -                      171,748               
Insurance 39,075                 -                      39,075                 
Materials and supplies 1,135,851            -                      1,135,851            
Maintenance 121,779               -                      121,779               
Water fees 1,863,155            -                      1,863,155            
Wastewater fees 766,180               -                      766,180               
Depreciation 368,622               -                      368,622               

Total operating expenses 5,421,101            336,031               5,757,132            

OPERATING INCOME (113,992)             2,856,251            2,742,259            

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income 100,040               4,236                   104,276               
Interest expense (388,775)             (826)                    (389,601)             

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) (288,735)             3,410                   (285,325)             

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE 
CONTRIBUTIONS & TRANSFERS (402,727)             2,859,661            2,456,934            

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
Transfers in (out) -                      -                      -                      
Transfers from (to) primary government 1,177,242            -                      1,177,242            

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 774,515               2,859,661            3,634,176            

NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 19,222,010          7,521,280            26,743,290          

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 19,996,525$        10,380,941$        30,377,466$        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
- 26 -

211

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUND
Year Ended September 30, 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 8,422,921$           
Payments to suppliers (4,587,613)            
Payments to employees and contractors (859,170)               

Net cash flows from operating activities 2,976,138             

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in customer deposits 75,820                  
Increase in restricted assets 9,812,321             

Net cash flows from non-capital financing activities 9,888,141             

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from primary government 1,177,242             
Additions to capital assets (12,339,803)          
Issuances of notes payable 210,812                
Principal payments on debt (843,394)               
Interest payments on debt (391,394)               

Net cash flows from capital and related financing activities (12,186,537)          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income 104,276                

Net cash flows from investing activities 104,276                

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 782,018                

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,637,070             

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 7,419,088$           

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income 2,742,259$           
Adjustments not affecting cash:

Depreciation 368,622                
(Increase) decrease in assets and increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts receivable (76,470)                 
Accounts payable (75,016)                 
Compensated absences 12,812                  
Deferred outflows 10,408                  
Deferred inflows 26,237                  
Net OPEB liability 3,233                    
Net pension liability (35,947)                 

Net cash flows from operating activities 2,976,138$           

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
- 27 -

212

Item 10.



 

This page was intentionally left blank.

- 28 -
213

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

 - the organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in its own name)
 - the City holds the corporate powers of the organization
 - the City appoints a voting majority of the organization's board
 - the City is able to impose its will on the organization
 - the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the City    
 - there is a fiscal dependency by the organization of the City

In fiscal year 2020, the City implemented:

A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Manor, Texas (City) is a Home Rule city in which citizens elect the mayor and six council members at large by place. The City
operates under the Council-Manager form of government and provides such services as are authorized by its charter to advance the welfare,
health, comfort, safety, and convenience of the City and its inhabitants.

The financial statements of the City are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States of
America as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted primary standard-setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. GASB periodically updates its codification of the existing
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, which along with subsequent GASB pronouncements (Statements and
Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmental units. The more significant accounting and reporting policies and practices used by the
City are described below.

Reporting Entity

The City's basic financial statements include all activities, organizations, and functions for which the City is considered to be financially
accountable.  The criteria considered in determining activities to be reported within the City's basic financial statements include whether:

The above criteria were applied to potential organizations to determine if the entity should be reported as part of the City. It was determined that
the City has no component units or related organizations that should be reported within the City's basic financial statements.

Implementation of New Standards

GASB Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance. This statement provides temporary relief to
governments and other stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. That objective is accomplished by postponing the effective dates of
certain provisions in Statements and Implementation Guides that first became effective or are scheduled to become effective for periods
beginning after June 15, 2018, and later. The City has postponed the implementation dates of the GASB's affected by this standard with the
exception of GASB Statement 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations , and GASB Statement 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt,
including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements, which were implemented in fiscal year 2019.

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting.
Government-wide financial statements do not provide information by individual fund or fund types, but distinguish between the City's
governmental activities and business-type activities on the Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities. The statements report
information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. The City's Statement of Net Position
includes both non-current assets and non-current liabilities of the City. Accrual accounting reports all of the revenues and cost of providing
services each year, not just those received or paid in the current year or soon thereafter. Additionally, the government-wide Statement of
Activities reflects depreciation expense on the City's capital assets, including infrastructure.

Statement of Net Position

The Statement of Net Position is designed to display the financial position of the primary government (government and business-type activities).
The City reports all capital assets, including infrastructure, in the government-wide Statement of Net Position and reports depreciation expense -
the cost of "using up" capital assets - in the Statement of Activities. The net position of the City is broken down into three categories: 1)
invested in capital assets, net of related debt; 2) restricted; and 3) unrestricted. Long-term liabilities are reported in two categories: 1) the
amount due within one year; and 2) the amount due in more than one year.   

Government-Wide Financial Statements

- 29 -
214

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

Special Revenue Fund

Capital Projects Fund

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

Water and Sewer Fund
Accounts for the operating activities of the City's water and sewer services.

Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

Established to account for the accumulation of financial resources for the payment of principal and interest of the City's general obligation debt.
The City annually levies ad valorem taxes restricted for the retirement of general obligation bonds and interest. This fund reports ad valorem
taxes collected for debt purposes only.

Bond Management - Established to account for the capital expenditures of general obligation bond proceeds.

Grants Management - Established to account for the City's capital grants and contributions which fund the acquisition, construction, or
rehabilitation of capital assets.  These revenues are subject to externally imposed restrictions to these program uses.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting,
generally including the reclassification or elimination of internal activity (between or within fund). Proprietary fund level financial statements
also report using the same focus and basis of accounting although internal activity is not eliminated in these statements. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property tax revenues are
recognized in the year in which they are levied while grants are recognized when grantor eligibility requirements are met.   

In addition to the government-wide financial statements, the City prepares fund financial statements, which continue to use the modified accrual
basis of accounting and the current financial resources measurement focus. The focus on the fund financial statements is on the major individual
funds of the governmental and business-type activities, as well as any fiduciary funds (by category) and any component units. Fund financial
accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain
government functions or activities.

General Fund
Reports as the primary fund of the City.  This fund is used to account for all financial resources not reported in any other funds.

Debt Service Fund

Statement of Activities

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports net revenue (expense) in a format that focuses on the cost of each of the City's
governmental activities and for each of the City's business-type activities. The expense of individual functions is compared to revenues
generated directly by the function (for instance, through user charges or intergovernmental grants). General revenues (including all taxes),
investment earnings, special and extraordinary items, and transfers between governmental and business-type activities are reported separately
after the total net expenses of the government's functions, ultimately arriving at the change in net position of the period. Program revenues are
segregated into three categories: 1) charges for services; 2) program-specific operating grants and contributions; and 3) program-specific capital
grants and contributions.  Indirect costs are allocated amount functions based on use.   

Established to account for revenues assessed and collected for specific purposes.

A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Fund Level Financial Statements

- 30 -
215

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Inventories and Prepaid Items

Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources

5

Operating income reported in the proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues and expenses related to the primary, continuing
operations of the fund. Principal operating revenues for proprietary funds are charges to customers for sales or services. Principal operating
expenses are the costs of providing goods or services and included administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted
resources as needed.  See Note E for information describing the City's restricted assets.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, highly liquid investments are considered to be cash equivalents if they have a maturity of three
months or less when purchased.

The City records purchases of supplies as expenditures, utilizing the purchase method of accounting for inventory. Certain payments to vendors
reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items.

Vehicles 5
Software

A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Governmental fund level financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are both measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. The City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within sixty days of
the fiscal year end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for debt principal and interest which are reported
expenditures in the year due.

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual include sales and property taxes. In general, other revenues are recognized when cash is received.

 5-7
Buildings and improvements

Capital Assets
The City's capital assets and infrastructure with useful lives of more than one year are stated at historical cost and comprehensively reported in
the government-wide financial statements. The City maintains infrastructure asset records consistent with all other capital assets. Proprietary
capital assets are also reported in their respective funds. Donated assets are stated at fair value on the date donated. The City generally capitalizes
assets with a cost of $5,000 or more as purchases and outlays occur. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset
value or materially extend useful lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method. When capital assets are
disposed, the cost and applicable accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is recorded
in operations. For information describing capital assets. (see Note F)

10-20
Infrastructure

Estimated useful lives, in years, for depreciable assets are as follows:

Machinery and equipment

20-50

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditure) until that time. Deferred outflows, found on the government-wide statement of net position, consist of deferred
losses on refundings and deferred outflows related to pensions. A deferred loss on refunding occurs when there is a difference in the carrying
value of the refunded debt and its reacquisition price. The amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded debt or
refunding debt. Deferred outflows related to pensions consist of amounts paid into the retirement system after the prescribed measurement date
plus the net difference between projected and actual earnings.

- 31 -
216

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Long-Term Debt

Fund Balance/Net Position

Restricted
Fund balance is reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use of resources are either externally imposed by creditors (such as through
debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or is imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation. Enabling legislation authorizes the City to assess, levy, charge, or otherwise mandate payment of resources (from external
resource providers) and includes a legally enforceable requirement that those resources be used only for the specific purposes stipulated in the
legislation. Legal enforceability means that the City can be compelled by an external party-such as citizens, public interest groups, or the
judiciary to use resources created by enabling legislation only for the purposes specified by the legislation.     

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other
classifications. In other governmental funds, the unassigned classification is used only to report a deficit balance resulting from overspending for
specific purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed, or assigned.

Assigned
Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the City for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be
classified as restricted or committed. In governmental funds other than the General Fund, the assigned fund balance represents the remaining
amount that is not restricted or committed. In the General Fund, assigned amounts represent intended uses established by the City Council or a
city official delegated that authority by City Charter or ordinance.    

Unassigned

Committed
The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes imposed by formal action (ordinance
or resolution) of the City Council. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City Council removes or changes
the specified use by taking the same type of action (ordinance or resolution) it employed to previously commit those amounts. In contrast to fund
balance that is restricted by enabling legislation, committed fund balance classification may be redeployed for other purposes with appropriate
due process. Constraints imposed on the use of committed amounts are imposed by the City Council, separate from the authorization to raise the
underlying revenue; therefore, compliance with these constraints are not considered to be legally enforceable. Committed fund balance also
incorporates contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those
contractual requirements.

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. Deferred inflows, found on the government-wide statement of net position, consist of deferred inflows related
to pensions and deferred professional prosecutor revenue. On the governmental funds balance sheet, deferred inflows consist of deferred
property tax revenue, deferred special assessment revenue, and deferred professional prosecutor revenue. All amounts are deferred and
recognized as inflows of resources in the period that the amounts become available.

In the government-wide and proprietary fund level financial statements, outstanding debt is reported as liabilities. Outstanding debt is reported
within governmental activities and business-type activities based on use of proceeds. Bond issue costs are expensed when incurred.

Fund balances/net position are divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to observe constraints
imposed upon the use of the resources in the governmental funds. The classifications are as follows:

Non-spendable
The non-spendable fund balance category includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form, or legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact. The "not in spendable form" criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash.
It also includes the long-term amount of interfund loans.

A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

The City applies restricted resources first when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which either restricted or unrestricted (committed,
assigned, and unassigned) amounts are available. Similarly, within unrestricted fund balance, committed amounts are reduced first followed by
assigned, and then unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance
classifications could be used.

- 32 -
217

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Inter-Fund Activity

Compensated Absences

Use of Estimates

Fair Value Hierarchy

Level 1

Level 2 Inputs to the valuation methodology include:
Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;
Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; and
Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means.

The City's funds are required to be deposited and invested under the terms of a depository contract. The depository bank deposits for safekeeping
and trust with the City's agent bank approved pledged securities in an amount sufficient to protect City funds on a day-to-day basis during the
period of the contract. The pledge of approved securities is waived only to the extent of the depository bank's dollar amount of Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance.

Cash Deposits
At September 30, 2020, carrying amounts of the City's cash deposits were $26,693,364 and bank balances were $27,838,756. The City's cash
deposits at September 30, 2020, were in excess of FDIC insurance and bank pledges securities by $1,651,568.

Inter-fund activity results from loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers between funds. Loans are reported as inter-fund receivables
and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates,
are treated as revenues and expenditures or expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting
fund, and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other inter-fund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers-in and transfers-out are
netted and presented as a single "Transfers" line on the government-wide statement of activities. Similarly, inter-fund receivables and payables, if
applicable, are netted and presented as a single "Internal Balances" line of the government-wide statement of net assets.    

Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access.

Compensated absences are reported as accrued in the government-wide financial statements. In the fund level financial statements, only matured
compensated absences payable to currently terminating employees are reported.

The City is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, The Public Funds Investment Act (Act), to adopt, implement, and publicize an
investment policy. That policy must be written; primarily emphasize safety of principal and liquidity; address investment diversification, yield,
and maturity and the quality and capability of investment management; and include a list of the types of authorized investments in which the
investing entity's funds may be invested and the maximum allowable stated maturity of any individual investment owned by the entity.     

Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

B. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported periods. Final amounts could differ from those estimates.

Investments

A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under GASB 72 are described as follows:

The Act requires an annual audit of investment practices. Audit procedures in this area conducted as a part of the audit of the general purpose
financial statements disclosed that in the areas of investment practices, management reports and establishment of appropriate policies, the City
adhered to the requirements of the Act. Additionally, investment practices of the City were in accordance with local policies.

The Act determines the types of investments which are allowable for the City. These include, with certain restrictions, (1) obligations of the U.S.
Treasury, certain U.S. agencies, and the State of Texas, (2) certificates of deposit, (3) certain municipal securities, (4) money market savings
accounts, (5) repurchase agreements, (6) bankers' acceptances, (7) mutual funds, (8) investment pools, (9) guaranteed investment contracts, and
(10) common trust funds.

- 33 -
218

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Level 3

Maturity Fair Value
N/A 1,146,916$          

Analysis of Specific Deposit and Investment Risks

TexPool operates in a manner consistent with the criteria set forth in GASB 79 and therefore uses amortized cost to report net assets to compute
share prices. The State Comptroller of Public Accounts exercises oversight responsibility over TexPool. Oversight includes the ability to
significantly influence operations, designation of management, and accountability for fiscal matters. Additionally, the State Comptroller has
established an advisory board composed of both participants in TexPool and other persons who do not have a business relationship with
TexPool. The Advisory Board members review the investment policy and management fee structure. TexPool does not have any restrictions or
limitations on withdrawals.

TexPool is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s. As a requirement to maintain the rating, weekly portfolio information must be submitted to
Standard & Poor’s for review. TexPool is also required to send portfolio information to the office of the State Comptroller of Public Accounts.

The City's investments at September 30, 2020, are shown below. These investments are not classified in a level hierarchy as they are recorded at
net asset value.

GASB Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants (GASB 79). This statement establishes how certain state and
local government external investment pools may measure and report their investments. An external investment pool may elect to measure, for
reporting purposes, all of its investments at amortized cost if it meets certain criteria. In addition, this statement also establishes additional note
disclosures for external investment pools and their participants.

Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant and use the best information available under the
circumstances.

Concentration of Credit Risk

B. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

Professional standards require a determination as to whether the City was exposed to the following specific investment risks at year end and if
so, the reporting of certain related disclosures:

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The ratings of securities by nationally
recognized rating agencies are designed to give an indication of credit risk. At year end, the City was not exposed to a significant amount of
credit risk.

Custodial Credit Risk
Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized
with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust
department or agent but not in the City's name.

Investment or Investment Type
TexPool Investment

This is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a single issuer. At year end, the City was not exposed to
concentration of credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk
This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end, the City was not exposed to interest
rate risk. 

Investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered in the name of the government, and are
held by either the counterparty or the counterparty's trust department or agent but not in the City's name. At September 30, 2020, the City's
investment deposits were entirely covered by depository insurance or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution in
the City's name.

- 34 -
219

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

C. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Explanation of differences between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Government-wide Statement of Net Position:

Governmental fund balance 7,959,207$          

Difference due to capital assets
Capital assets 15,215,088           
Accumulated depreciation (7,960,329)            7,254,759            

Difference due to unearned revenue
Unearned Revenues 14,086                 

Difference due to deferred outflows
Deferred outflows related to pensions 381,329                
Deferred outflows related to OPEB 15,955                  
Deferred loss on refunding 211,546                608,830               

Difference due to current liabilities
Interest payable (22,232)               

Difference due to non-current liabilities
Compensated absences (241,398)               
Net pension liability (1,130,873)            
Net OPEB liability (65,647)                 
Notes payable (1,030,984)            
Bonds payable (5,917,175)            (8,386,077)          

Difference due to deferred inflows
Deferred inflows related to pensions (243,299)               
Deferred inflows related to OPEB (6,659)                   (249,958)             

Government-wide net position 7,178,615$          

B. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

Foreign Currency Risk
This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end, the City was not exposed to foreign currency
risk. 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between the governmental fund balance on the fund financial statements and total 
net position of governmental activities on the government-wide financial statements.

- 35 -
220

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

C. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

Change in governmental fund balance 3,347,948$          

Capital outlay 792,403                
Depreciation expense (1,096,864)            (304,461)             

Long-term debt and related items
Debt payments 1,196,554             
Debt issuances (215,940)               
Accrued interest adjustment 956                       
Amortization of loss on refunding (29,657)                 951,913               

Changes in pension expense and deferred outflows and inflows 143,997                
Changes in pension expense and deferred outflows and inflows (168,034)               
Compensated absence adjustment (35,829)                 (59,866)               

Change in government-wide net position 3,935,534$          

Sales Tax Receivable
Sales taxes are collected and remitted to the City by the State Comptroller's Office. All sales taxes are collected within sixty days of year end. At
fiscal year end, the receivables represent taxes collected but not yet received by the City and are recorded as revenue. 

Property Taxes Receivable and Deferred Revenue

Explanation of differences between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances and 
the Government-wide Statement of Activities:

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a reconciliation between the change in
governmental fund balance on the fund financial statements and change in total net position of governmental activities on the government-wide
financial statements.

Amount by which depreciation exceeds capital outlay 
expense and other capital related transactions

D. RECEIVABLES, UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS, AND DEFERRED REVENUE

In the government-wide financial statements, property tax receivables and related revenues include all amounts due to the City regardless of
when cash is received. 

In the governmental fund level financial statements, property taxes receivable are recorded in the General Fund when assessed (October 1). At
fiscal year end, property taxes receivables represent delinquent taxes. If delinquent taxes are not paid within sixty days of fiscal year end, they are 
recorded as deferred revenue. 

Expenses that do not require the use of current financial 
resources or have not matured

Allowances for uncollectible tax receivables reported in the General Fund are based upon historical experience in collecting property taxes.
Uncollectible personal property taxes are periodically reviewed and written off when deemed uncollectible; however, state statutes prohibit
writing off real property taxes without specific authority from the Texas Legislation. 

Property taxes are assessed and remitted to the City by the Travis County Tax Assessor's Office. Taxes, levied annually on October 1, are due by
January 31. The majority of tax payments are received December through March. Lien dates for real property are July. 

- 36 -
221

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Receivables

Allowance for 
Uncollectible 

Accounts Net Receivables
Sales tax receivable 125,287$              -$                 125,287$             
Property tax receivable 184,704                (88,858)            95,846                 
Employee receivable 1,961                    -                   1,961                   
Court fines receivable 1,054,545             (1,022,909)       31,636                 
Other 414,850                -                   414,850               

Total receivables 1,781,347$           (1,111,767)$     669,580$             

At September 30, 2020, Business-type activities receivables are summarized in the financial statements as follows:

Receivables

Allowance for 
Uncollectible 

Accounts Net Receivables
Customer receivables 551,188$              (12,004)$          539,184$             
NSF checks 1,200                    -                   1,200                   

Total receivables 552,388$              (12,004)$          540,384$             

At September 30, 2020, restricted assets consisted of the following:

Cash and cash equivalents:
Governmental 

Activities
Business-Type 

Activities Total
Debt service (deficit) (587,998)$             -$                 (587,998)$           
Other 217,035                -                   217,035               
Parkland project 325,050                -                   325,050               
Rose Hill Public Improvement District 452,743                -                   452,743               
Customer deposits -                        690,753            690,753               
Capital improvements - water system -                        3,077,821         3,077,821            
Capital improvements - sewer system -                        7,868,323         7,868,323            

Total cash and cash equivalents 406,830$              11,636,897$     12,043,727$        

Investments:
Governmental 

Activities
Business-Type 

Activities Total
Parks 8,930$                  -$                 8,930$                 
Debt service 285,481                -                   285,481               
Tourism 383,414                -                   383,414               
Capital improvements - sewer system -                        469,091            469,091               

Total investments 677,825$              469,091$          1,146,916$          

At September 30, 2020, receivables for governmental activities are summarized in the government-wide financial statements as follows:

Business-Type Activities Receivables

D. RECEIVABLES, UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS, AND DEFERRED REVENUE - CONTINUED

Business-type activities receivables represent amounts due from customers for water, wastewater, and sanitation services. These receivables are
due within one month. Receivables are reported net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts and revenues net of what is estimated to be
uncollectible. The allowance is estimated using accounts receivable past due more than ninety days. 

E. RESTRICTED ASSETS

- 37 -
222

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2020, was as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Beginning 
Balance Additions

Deletions/
Reclass Ending Balance

Non-depreciable assets:
Land 470,607$         -$                      -$                 470,607$             
Construction in progress 208,810           321,327                (530,137)          -                          

Total non-depreciable assets 679,417$         321,327$              (530,137)$        470,607$             

Depreciable assets:
Buildings 2,419,785$      -$                      -$                 2,419,785$          
Equipment 4,596,431        465,681                -                   5,062,112            
Sidewalks 244,164           -                        -                   244,164               
Streets and improvements 6,482,888        535,532                -                   7,018,420            

Total depreciable assets 13,743,268      1,001,213             -                   14,744,481          
Accumulated depreciation (6,863,465)       (1,096,864)            -                   (7,960,329)          

Depreciable assets, net 6,879,803$      (95,651)$               -$                 6,784,152$          

Business-Type Activities:
Beginning 
Balance Additions Deletions Ending Balance

Non-depreciable assets:
Land 406,816$         -$                      -$                 406,816$             
Construction in progress 4,843,659        12,020,918           -                   16,864,577          

Total non-depreciable assets 5,250,475$      12,020,918$         -$                 17,271,393$        

Depreciable assets:
Machinery and equipment 1,251,464$      318,885$              -$                 1,570,349$          
Culverts 12,992             -                        -                   12,992                 
Infrastructure - water system 7,465,930        -                        -                   7,465,930            
Infrastructure - sewer system 5,875,654        -                        -                   5,875,654            

Total depreciable assets 14,606,040      318,885                -                   14,924,925          
Accumulated depreciation (5,082,199)       (368,622)               -                   (5,450,821)          

Depreciable assets, net 9,523,841$      (49,737)$               -$                 9,474,104$          

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions as follows:

Function:
Governmental 

Activities
Business-Type 

Activities Total
General government 183,650$              -$                 183,650$             
Public safety 337,214                -                   337,214               
Streets 566,898                -                   566,898               
Development services 9,102                    -                   9,102                   
Water -                        233,242            233,242               
Sewer -                        135,380            135,380               

Total depreciation expense 1,096,864$           368,622$          1,465,486$          

Transfers (To)From Other Funds

General Fund Debt Service Fund
Proprietary 

Fund
Capital Projects 

Fund
Property taxes collected for debt payments -$                 1,177,242$           (1,177,242)$     -$                    
Transfer of expenses        (1,834,925) -                        1,834,925         -                      
Reimbursement of expenses 1,834,925        -                        (1,834,925)       -                      

Purpose

F. CAPITAL ASSETS

G. INTER-FUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY

- 38 -
223

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Changes in long-term debt obligations for the year ended September 30, 2020, are as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Beginning 
Balances Increases Decreases Ending Balances

Amounts Due 
Within One Year

Notes payable 1,170,423$      215,940$         (355,379)$             1,030,984$       354,016$             
Bonds payable 6,758,350        -                   (841,175)               5,917,175         871,325               
Loss on refunding 241,203           -                   (29,657)                 211,546            29,657                 

Total governmental activities 8,169,976$      215,940$         (1,226,211)$          7,159,705$       1,254,998$          

Business-Type Activities:
Beginning 
Balances Increases Decreases Ending Balances

Amounts Due 
Within One Year

Notes payable -$                 210,812$         (39,569)$               171,243$          40,825$               
Bonds payable 16,051,650      -                   (803,825)               15,247,825       743,675               

Total business-type activities 16,051,650$    210,812$         (843,394)$             15,419,068$     784,500$             

Notes Payable

Debt service requirements on long-term notes payable at September 30, 2020, were as follows:

For the years ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2021 394,841$              36,782$            431,623$             
2022 405,447                24,890              430,337               
2023 311,540                12,631              324,171               
2024 90,399                  2,828                93,227                 

1,202,227$           77,131$            1,279,358$          

H. LONG-TERM DEBT

On July 26, 2019, the City entered into financing agreements for vehicles and equipment totaling $376,450 at 3.175% fixed interest rate with
yearly payments of $82,611 due in July.  The City's balance remaining on the note payable at September 30, 2020, is $305,791.

On November 30, 2018, the City entered into financing agreements for vehicles totaling $582,414 at 3.57% fixed interest rate with yearly
payments of $135,919 due in December.  The City's balance remaining on the note payable at September 30, 2020, is $380,288.

On November 15, 2017, the City entered into financing agreements for vehicles totaling $277,570 at 2.67% fixed interest rate with yearly
payments of $58,477 due in November.  The City's balance remaining on the note payable at September 30, 2020, is $112,432.

Debt Service Requirements

Long-Term Debt Activity

On September 17, 2020, the City entered into financing agreements for vehicles totaling $50,302 at 2.77% fixed interest rate with yearly
payments of $10,618 due in October.  The City's balance remaining on the note payable at September 30, 2020, is $39,684.

On March 15, 2017, the City entered into financing agreements for vehicles totaling $222,087 at 2.67% fixed interest rate with yearly payments
of $47,660 due in November.  The City's balance remaining on the note payable at September 30, 2020, is $91,633.

On April 26, 2017, the City entered into financing agreements for equipment totaling $20,750 with annual payments of $3,960 due in April. The
City's balance remaining on the note payable at September 30, 2020, is $1,287.

Governmental Activities

On November 15, 2017, the City entered into financing agreements for vehicles totaling $441,289 at 2.56% fixed interest rate with yearly
payments of $95,053 due in November.  The City's balance remaining on the note payable at September 30, 2020, is $271,112.

- 39 -
224

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Bonds Payable

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2010

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012

Certificate of Obligation Bonds, Series 2012

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015

Combination Tax and Revenue Certificate of Obligation Bonds, Series 2016

Debt service requirements on long-term bond debt at September 30, 2020, were as follows:

For the years ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2021 -$                      15,510$            15,510$               
2022 -                        15,510              15,510                 
2023 -                        15,510              15,510                 
2024 330,000                15,510              345,510               
Total 330,000$              62,040$            392,040$             

For the years ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2021 300,000$              34,808$            334,808$             
2022 310,000                27,158              337,158               
2023 315,000                19,253              334,253               
2024 315,000                11,220              326,220               
2025 60,000                  3,188                63,188                 
2026 65,000                  1,718                66,718                 
Total 1,365,000$           97,345$            1,462,345$          

Series 2010 - $935,000

Series 2012 - $3,510,000

On September 1, 2012, the City issued $1,835,000 in certificate of obligation bonds, proceeds to be used for city construction. Bond interest rate
of 2.49% with semi-annual payments due on February 15 and August 15 of each year until maturity in 2027 or prior redemption. 

H. LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED

On February 15, 2015, the City issued $4,750,000 in general obligation bonds, proceeds to be used to partially refund Series 2007 revenue
bonds. Bond interest rate of 2.29% with semi-annual payments due on February 15 and August 15 of each year until maturity in 2026 or prior
redemption.     

On April 1, 2012, the City issued $3,510,000 in general obligation bonds, proceeds to be used to refund Series 2001 and 2004 revenue bonds.
The bond interest rate of 2.55% with semi-annual payments due on February 15 and August 15 of each year until maturity in 2026 or prior
redemption.   

On August 18, 2016, the City issued $18,000,000 in certificate of obligation bonds, proceeds to be used for city street and drainage
improvements ($270,000) and water and waste water improvements ($17,730,000). Bond interest rate of 2.29% with semi-annual payments due
on February 15 and August 15 of each year until maturity in 2031 or prior redemption. 

On May 15, 2011, the City issued $935,000 in general obligation bonds, proceeds to be used to refund Series 2009 revenue bonds. Bond interest
rates range from 2.83% to 4.70% with semi-annual payments due on March 1 and September 1 of each year until maturity in 2024 or prior
redemption. 

- 40 -
225

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Bonds Payable - Continued

For the years ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2021 125,000$              23,531$            148,531$             
2022 130,000                20,418              150,418               
2023 130,000                17,181              147,181               
2024 135,000                13,944              148,944               
2025 140,000                10,583              150,583               

2026-2027 285,000                10,708              295,708               
Total 945,000$              96,365$            1,041,365$          

For the years ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2021 435,000$              77,402$            512,402$             
2022 450,000                67,441              517,441               
2023 465,000                57,136              522,136               
2024 485,000                46,487              531,487               
2025 500,000                35,381              535,381               

2026-2027 1,045,000             36,068              1,081,068            
Total 3,380,000$           319,915$          3,699,915$          

For the years ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2021 755,000$              346,821$          1,101,821$          
2022 760,000                329,531            1,089,531            
2023 780,000                312,127            1,092,127            
2024 800,000                294,265            1,094,265            
2025 1,170,000             275,945            1,445,945            

2026-2030 8,700,000             907,527            9,607,527            
2031 2,180,000             49,922              2,229,922            
Total 15,145,000$         2,516,138$       17,661,138$        

Deferred Outflow on Refunding

Continuing Disclosure

Series 2015 - $4,750,000

H. LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED

The City has deferred outflow of $373,180 related to the Series 2015 refunding. This outflow represents the amount of the new bond principal,
less issuance costs, that was greater than the current principal balance of the bonds refunded and will be amortized, straight-line, over the life of
the Series 2015 Bond.  The deferred outflow remaining balance at September 30, 2020, was $211,546.

Series 2016 - $18,000,000

Series 2012 - $1,835,000

The City has entered into a continuing disclosure undertaking to provide Annual Reports and Material Event Notices to the State Information
Disclosure Depository of Texas, which is the Municipal Advisory Council. This information is required under SEC Rule 15c2-12 to enable
investors to analyze the financial condition and operation of the City. 

- 41 -
226

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

At September 30, 2020, net assets restricted by enabling legislation consisted of the following:

Governmental 
Activities

Business-Type 
Activities Total

Rose Hill Public Improvement District 452,743$              -$                     452,743$             
Parkland project 325,050                -                       325,050               
Tourism 383,414                -                       383,414               
Debt service (302,517)               -                       (302,517)             
Other 225,965                -                       225,965               
Capital improvements -                            12,105,988       12,105,988          

Total restricted net assets 1,084,655$           12,105,988$     13,190,643$        

Plan Description

Plan Year 2018 Plan Year 2019
Employee deposit rate 7.0% 7.0%
Matching ratio (city to employee) 2 to 1 2 to 1
Years required for vesting 5 5
Service retirement eligibility (expressed as age/years of service) 60/5, 0/20 60/5, 0/20
Updated service credit 0% 0%
Annuity increase (to retirees) 0% of CPI 0% of CPI

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 9                       
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 37                     
Active employees 79                     

125                   

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS. Plan
provisions for the City are as follows:

J. RISK MANAGEMENT

At December 31, 2018, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

I. RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, thefts, damage or destruction of assets, error and omissions, injuries to employees,
and natural disasters. During fiscal year 2015, the City obtained general liability coverage at a cost that is considered to be economically
justifiable by joining together with other governmental entities in the State as a member of the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk
Pool (TML). TML is a self-funded pool operating as a common risk management and insurance program. The City pays an annual premium to
TML for its above insurance coverage. The agreement for the formation of TML provides that TML will be self-sustaining through member
premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of acceptable risk levels; however, each category of coverage has 
its own level of reinsurance. The City continues to carry commercial insurance for other risks of loss. There were no significant reductions in
commercial insurance coverage in the past fiscal year and settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded coverage in any of the past
three fiscal years. 

K. PENSION PLAN

The City provides pension benefits for all of its eligible employees through a non-traditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan in
the state-wide Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system. The plan
provisions that have been adopted by the City are within the options available in the governing state statutes of TMRS. 

TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information (RSI) for TMRS. This report also provides detailed explanations of the contributions, benefits, and actuarial methods and
assumptions used by TMRS. This report may be obtained by writing to TMRS, P.O. Box 149153, Austin, TX 78714-9153, or by calling 800-
924-8677; in addition, the report is available on TMRS's website at www.TMRS.com. 

- 42 -
227

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Contributions

Net Pension Asset

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the December 31, 2019, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

Actuarial valuation date
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal
Amortization method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed
Remaining amortization period 25 years
Asset valuation method 10 Year smoothed market; 15.00% soft corridor
Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases 3.50% to 11.50% including inflation
Investment rate of return 6.75%
Retirement age

Mortality

Other Information:
Notes 1) There were no benefit changes during the year.

Discount Rate

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2018, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period December 31, 2010 – December 31, 2014.

Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary, using the Projected Unit Credit
actuarial cost method. This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate and the prior service cost contribution rate, which is calculated to be
a level percent of payroll from year to year. The normal cost contribution rate finances the portion of an active member's projected benefit
allocated annually; the prior service contribution rate amortizes the unfunded (overfunded) actuarial liability (asset) over the applicable period
for that city. Both the normal cost and prior service contribution rates include recognition of the projected impact of annually repeating benefits,
such as Updated Service Credits and Annuity Increases. 

Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the City's
plan of benefits. Last updated for the 2019 valuation pursuant
to an experience study of the period 2014 - 2018
Post-retirement: 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality
Tables. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis
with scale UMP.

The City’s net pension asset was measured as of December 31, 2018, and the total pension asset used to calculate the net pension asset was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

December 31, 2019

K. PENSION PLAN - CONTINUED

Pre-retirement: PUB(10) mortality tables, with the Public
Safety table used for males and the General Employee table
used for females. The rates are projected on a fully
generational basis with scale UMP.

The discount rate used to measure the total pension asset was 6.75%. System-wide Investment Return Assumption: 6.75% per year, compounded
annually, composed of an assumed 2.50% inflation rate and a 4.25% net real rate of return. This rate represents the assumed return, net of all
investment expenses.

The City contributes to the TMRS Plan at an actuarially determined rate. Both the employees and the City make contributions monthly. Since the
City needs to know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary purposes, there is a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation that serves
as the basis for the rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into effect. The actuarially determined required employer contribution rate for
calendar years 2019, 2018, and 2017 were 4.35%, 4.38%, and 4.36%, respectively. The required contribution rate payable by the employee
members for calendar years 2017 was 5% and 2019 and 2018 the rate was 7%.

- 43 -
228

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Total Pension Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability / (Asset) Net Position Liability / (Asset)

(a) (b) (a-b)

Balances as of December 31, 2018 4,607,130$           3,027,809$       1,579,321$          

Changes for the year:
Service cost 550,557                -                   550,557               
Interest on total pension liability 327,129                -                   327,129               
Change in benefit terms including substantively automatic status -                        -                   -                      
Difference between expected and actual experience 28,739                  -                   28,739                 
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs (7,557)                   -                   (7,557)                 
Benefit payments (72,110)                 -                   (72,110)               
Administrative expenses -                        (2,645)              2,645                   
Contributions - employer -                        384,826            (384,826)             
Contributions - employee -                        303,696            (303,696)             
Net investment income -                        468,829            (468,829)             
Benefit payments -                        (72,110)            72,110                 
Other -                        (79)                   79                        

Net changes 826,758                1,082,517         (255,759)             

Balances as of December 31, 2019 5,433,888$           4,110,326$       1,323,562$          

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase

5.75% 6.75% 7.75%

Net pension liability / (asset) 2,276,728$           1,323,563$       556,687$             

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

Deferred Inflows Deferred Outflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual earnings -$                 65,419$               
Differences between projected and actual earnings 275,567            165,131               
Changes in assumptions 6,421                6,599                   
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date -                   189,286               

281,988$          426,435$             

Increase (Decrease)

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued TMRS’s comprehensive annual financial
report.

For the year ended September 30, 2020, the City recognized pension expense of $436,017. At September 30, 2020, deferred outflows and
inflows of resources related to pensions were reported from the following sources:

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what the City’s net pension
asset would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%) or one percentage point higher (7.75%) than
the current rate.

Change in Net Pension Asset

K. PENSION PLAN - CONTINUED

- 44 -
229

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Years Ending
September 30,

2020 182,120$         
2021 (15,860)            
2022 14,790             
2023 (44,671)            
2024 6,002               

Thereafter 2,066               
144,447$         

Funded Status and Funding Process

The fund status as of December 31, 2019, is presented as follows:

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f)

Actuarial 
Valuation Date

Actuarial Value of 
Assets

Actuarial 
Accrued 

Liability (AAL)
Funded Ratio 

(a)/(b)
Unfunded AAL 

(UAAL) (b) - (a)
Covered 
Payroll

UAAL as of % of 
Covered Payroll 

(d)/(e)

12/31/2017 2,823,706$             2,842,347$      99.3% 18,641$                3,437,829$       0.5%

12/31/2018 3,027,809               4,607,130        65.7% 1,579,321             3,752,058         42.1%

12/31/2019 4,110,326               5,433,888        75.6% 1,323,562             4,338,512         30.5%

Plan Description

L. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) -  SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH BENEFITS FUND (SDBF)

The City also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term insurance plan operated by the Texas Municipal
Retirement System (TMRS) known as Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF). The City elected, by ordinance, to provide group-term life
insurance coverage to both current and retired employees. The City may terminate coverage under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by
adopting an ordinance before November 1 of any year to be effective the following January 1. 

The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the employee's annual salary (calculated based on
the employee's actual earnings, for the 12-month period preceding the month of death); retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is
an "other postemployment benefit," or OPEB.

K. PENSION PLAN - CONTINUED

Actuarial calculations are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan in effect at the time of each valuation, and
reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent with that perspective, actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce short-term volatility actuarial in accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. The schedule of funding progress, presented as
Required Supplementary Information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability of benefits.     

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future.
Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual amounts are compared to past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future. 

The $195,541 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended September 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

- 45 -
230

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

At December 31, 2019, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 6                       
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 5                       
Active employees 79                     

90                     

Contributions

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the December 31, 2018, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

Actuarial valuation date
Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases 3.50% to 11.50% including inflation
Discount rate* 2.75%
Retirees' share of benefit-related costs $0
Administrative expenses

Mortality rates - service retirees

Mortality rates - disabled retirees

Other Information:
Notes No benefit changes during the year.

Due to the SDBF being considered an unfunded OPEB plan, benefit payments are treated as being equal to the employer’s yearly contributions
for retirees.  During the year ended September 30, 2020, the City has not made any contributions to the SDBF.

December 31, 2019

All administrative expenses are paid through the Pension
Trust and accounted for under reporting requirements under
GASB Statement No. 68.
2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables. The rates
are projected on a fully generational basis with scale UMP.

L. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) -  SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH BENEFITS FUND (SDBF) - CONTINUED

*The discount rate was based on the Fidelity Index’s “20-Year Municipal GO AA Index” rate as of December 31, 2019.

2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables with a 4
year setforward for males and a 3 year set-forward for
females. In addition, a 3.5% and 3% minimum mortality rate
will be applied to reflect the impairment for younger
members who become disabled for males and females,
respectively. The rates are projected on a fully generational
basis by Scale UMP to account for future mortality
improvements subject to the floor.

Note: The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2018.

- 46 -
231

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Total Pension Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability / (Asset) Net Position Liability / (Asset)

(a) (b) (a-b)

Balances as of December 31, 2017 53,281$                -$                 53,281$               

Changes for the year:
Service cost 6,508                    -                   6,508                   
Interest on total pension liability 2,089                    -                   2,089                   
Difference between expected and actual experience (437)                      -                   (437)                    
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs 1,807                    -                   1,807                   
Benefit payments -                        -                   -                      
Administrative expenses -                        -                   -                      
Contributions - employer -                        -                   -                      
Contributions - employee -                        -                   -                      
Benefit payments -                        -                   -                      
Other -                        -                   -                      

Net changes 9,967                    -                   9,967                   

Balances as of December 31, 2018 63,248$                -$                 63,248$               

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase

1.75% 2.75% 3.75%

Net pension liability / (asset) 98,034$                76,286$            60,210$               

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

Deferred Inflows Deferred Outflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 3,469$              -$                    
Changes in assumptions and other inputs 4,199                18,562                 
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date -                   -                      

7,668$              18,562$               

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 2.75%, as well as what the City’s net pension
asset would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (1.75%) or one percentage point higher (3.75%) than
the current rate.

L. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) -  SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH BENEFITS FUND (SDBF) - CONTINUED

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued TMRS’s comprehensive annual financial
report.

For the year ended September 30, 2020, the City recognized pension expense of $436,017. At September 30, 2020, deferred outflows and
inflows of resources related to pensions were reported from the following sources:

Change in Net Pension Asset
Increase (Decrease)

- 47 -
232

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Years Ending
September 30,

2020 1,370$             
2021 1,370               
2022 1,370               
2023 1,370               
2024 1,370               

Thereafter 4,044               
10,894$           

Construction Commitments

Grant Contingencies

Litigation

Arbitrage Rebates

On November 18, 2020, the City entered into financing agreements for the public works vehicles and equipment totaling $435,599 at 1.942%
fixed interest rate with yearly payments of $92,259.  Payments begin on December 10, 2021, and matures on December 10, 2025.

The City invests portions of bond proceeds during construction of related projects and as reserves for debt retirement after construction is
complete. Any interest earned on invested bond proceeds over interest paid on bonds must be paid back to the federal government every five
years. As of September 30, 2020, the City's arbitrage liability was $0.

M. HEALTH CARE COVERAGE

During the year ended September 30, 2020, employees of the City were covered by a health insurance plan (the Plan). The City paid premiums
of $484,775 to the Plan. Employees, at their option, authorized payroll withholdings to pay premiums for dependents. All premiums were paid to
a licensed insurer. The Plan was authorized by Article 3.51-2, Texas Insurance Code and was documented by contractual agreement. 

The contract between the City and the licensed insurer is renewable October 1, and terms of coverage and premium costs are included in the
contractual provisions. 

N. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The City participates in grant programs which are governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor agencies. Costs charged to the
respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the City has not complied with
the rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required, and the collectability of any related receivable
may be impaired. In the opinion of the City, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and regulations
governing the respective grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the accompanying basic financial statements for such
contingencies. 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

On April 3, 2019, the City approved a contract with Excel Construction Services LLC for $16,722,300 for Wilbarger Creek wastewater treatment 
and collection system.  This project is still on-going.

L. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) -  SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH BENEFITS FUND (SDBF) - CONTINUED

O. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The City is subject to certain legal proceedings in the normal course of operations. In the opinion of management, the aggregate liability, if any,
with respect to potential legal actions will not materially adversely affect the City's financial position, results of operations, or cash flows. 

On February 5, 2020, the City entered into a contract for the construction of 2 lift stations. This contract has an estimated cost of $1,931,100
and construction will start later in 2020. This project has not been completed and is on going and expected to be completed by the end of 2021.

- 48 -
233

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

At September 30, 2020, the prior period adjustments consisted of the following:

Prior year ending Net Position - Investment in Capital Assets
As Previously Stated (676,204)$        
After Restatement (369,553)          

Change in Net Position - Investment in Capital Assets 306,651$         

P. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Government-Wide net position was adjusted to account for the cost basis of property and equipment and note payable taken out in a prior
year that was not previously recorded.

- 49 -
234

Item 10.



 

This page was intentionally left blank.

- 50 -
235

Item 10.



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

236

Item 10.



237

Item 10.



Final
Budget Budget Actual

REVENUES
5,589,099$  5,627,424$  5,620,119$  (7,305)$            
1,046,388    1,046,388    1,612,580    566,192           

520,000       578,000       627,876       49,876             
17,988         19,188         20,195         1,007               

1,226,289    1,397,717    3,206,805    1,809,088        
923,908       923,908       1,151,072    227,164           
757,100       757,950       664,576       (93,374)            
150,447       154,842       128,416       (26,426)            
204,000       204,000       221,398       17,398             
336,452       339,541       317,217       (22,324)            

10,771,671  11,048,958  13,570,254  2,521,296        

EXPENDITURES
3,138,794    3,218,917    2,856,444    362,473           
3,921,463    4,082,080    3,811,647    270,433           

949,148       1,073,982    929,511       144,471           
624,572       657,265       574,719       82,546             
754,082       835,726       761,029       74,697             

1,075,000    1,075,000    1,119,795    (44,795)            
150,470       151,777       240,873       (89,096)            

-              -              -              -                   
-              -              -              -                   

10,613,529  11,094,747  10,294,018  800,729           

158,142       (45,789)       3,276,236    3,322,025        

-              -              -              -                   

-              -              -              -                   
-              -              -              -                   
-              -              -              -                   

158,142       (45,789)       3,276,236    3,322,025        

4,372,249    4,372,249    4,372,249    -                   

4,530,391$  4,326,460$  7,648,485$  3,322,025$      

Streets 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable)

Property taxes
Sales taxes
Franchise taxes 

Charge for services
Court and police

Interest 

Total revenues

General government
Public safety

Other taxes 

Public safety 

Licenses and permits

Other 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

Municipal court
Development services
Sanitation 
Capital outlay

CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) - GENERAL FUND

Year Ended September 30, 2020

OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Capital grants and contributions
Transfers (to) from other funds:

Water and sewer fund
Capital projects fund

Debt payments 
Interest 

- 51 -
238

Item 10.



 

This page was intentionally left blank.

- 52 -
239

Item 10.



A.  GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY ANALYSIS

Budgetary Information

B.  BUDGET VERSUS ACTUAL RESULTS

Operating revenues in the general fund were greater than budgeted by $2,521,296, and operating
expenditures were less than budgeted by $800,729, resulting in an overall operating variance favorable
of $3,322,025. Due to favorable operating results, there was an overall increase in fund balance of
$3,276,236 for the City's general fund.

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Capital projects are funded through capital grants or general obligation debt authorized for specific
purposes.

The City Council adopts an annual budget prepared on a non-GAAP cash basis. City management may
transfer part or all of any unencumbered appropriation balance within specific categories (i.e.,
personnel, operations, supplies, or capital outlay) within programs; however, any revisions that alter
the total expenditures of the categories must be approved by the City Council. The City, for
management purposes, adopts budgets for all funds. Legal budgets are also adopted for all funds, and
the legal level of control is the fund level.

All unused appropriations, except appropriations for capital expenditures, lapse at the close of the
fiscal year to the extent they have not been expended or encumbered. An appropriation for capital
expenditures shall continue in force until the purpose for which it was made is accomplished or
abandoned. No supplemental budgetary appropriations occurred in the debt service fund or in the
general fund.  Revised budgets, if any, are used for budget versus actual comparisons.

- 53 -
240

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE CITY'S NET PENSION ASSET/LIABILITY
AND RELATED RATIOS 

LAST TEN YEARS*
(Unaudited)

2020 2019
Total Pension Liability (Asset)

Service cost 550,557$       473,885$       
Interest on total pension liability 327,129         276,744         
Change in benefit terms including substantively automatic status -                1,049,303      
Effect of plan changes -                -                
Difference between expected and actual experience 28,739           22,226           
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs (7,557)           -                
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (72,110)         (57,375)         

Net change in total pension liability (asset) 826,758         1,764,783      

Total pension liability (asset), beginning 4,607,130      2,842,347      
Total pension liability (asset), ending (a) 5,433,888$    4,607,130$    

Fiduciary Net Position
Employer contributions 384,826$       160,213$       
Employee contributions 303,696         187,603         
Net investment income 468,829         (84,618)         
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (72,110)         (57,375)         
Administrative expenses (2,645)           (1,635)           
Other (79)                (85)                

Net change in fiduciary net position 1,082,517      204,103         

Fiduciary net position, beginning 3,027,809      2,823,706      
Fiduciary net position, ending (b) 4,110,326$    3,027,809$    

Net pension liability (asset), ending = (a) - (b) 1,323,562$    1,579,321$    

Fiduciary net position as a % of total pension liability (asset) 75.64% 65.72%

Covered employee payroll 4,338,512$    3,752,058$    

Net pension liability (asset) as a % of covered employee payroll 30.51% 42.09%

* Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only six years are shown.

- 54 -
241

Item 10.



 

2018 2017 2016 2015

312,499$       263,418$       217,127$       131,462$       
169,207         144,524         122,699         103,455         

-                -                -                -                
-                -                -                25,647           

39,102           11,751           14,209           26,291           
-                -                68,829           -                

(57,953)         (99,189)         (16,304)         (41,958)         
462,855         320,504         406,560         244,897         

2,379,492      2,058,988      1,652,428      1,407,531      
2,842,347$    2,379,492$    2,058,988$    1,652,428$    

145,755$       96,836$         81,392$         42,366$         
171,891         144,102         126,237         100,392         
312,128         133,631         2,638             91,356           
(57,953)         (99,189)         (16,304)         (41,958)         

(1,619)           (1,511)           (1,607)           (953)              
(82)                (81)                (79)                (78)                

570,120         273,788         192,277         191,125         

2,253,586      1,979,798      1,787,521      1,596,396      
2,823,706$    2,253,586$    1,979,798$    1,787,521$    

18,641$         125,906$       79,190$         (135,093)$     

99.34% 94.71% 96.15% 108.18%

3,437,829$    2,882,032$    2,524,736$    2,007,847$    

0.54% 4.37% 3.14% -6.73%

- 55 -
242

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
(Unaudited)

(a) (b) (c ) (d) (e ) (f)

Actuarial 
Valuation Date

Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets

Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 
(AAL)

Funded Ratio 
(a)/(b)

Unfunded 
AAL (UAAL) 

(b) - (a)
Covered 
Payroll

UAAL as a 
Percentage of 

Covered 
Payroll      
(d)/(e )

12/31/2017 2,823,706$    2,842,347$    99.3% 18,641$         3,437,829$    0.5%
12/31/2018 3,027,809      4,607,130      65.7% 1,579,321      3,752,058      42.1%
12/31/2019 4,110,326      5,433,888      75.6% 1,323,562      4,338,512      30.5%

- 56 -
243

Item 10.



CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE CITY'S TOTAL OPEB ASSET/LIABILITY
AND RELATED RATIOS 

LAST TEN YEARS*
(Unaudited) 

2020 2019 2018
Total OPEB Liability (Asset)

Service cost 6,508$           6,003$             4,813$           
Interest on total OPEB liability 2,089             1,860               1,648             
Effect of plan changes -                -                   -                
Difference between expected and actual experience (437)              (2,490)              -                
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs 1,807             (5,293)              5,549             
Benefit payments -                -                   -                

Net change in total OPEB liability (asset) 9,967             80                    12,010           

Total OPEB liability (asset), beginning 53,281           53,201             41,191           
Total OPEB liability (asset), ending (a) 63,248$         53,281$           53,201$         

Covered payroll 4,338,512$    3,752,058$      3,437,829$    

Net OPEB liability (asset) as a % of covered payroll 1.46% 1.42% 1.55%

* Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation, therefore only three years are shown.

- 57 -
244

Item 10.



 

This page was intentionally left blank.

- 58 -
245

Item 10.



To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Manor, Texas

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Manor,
Texas (the City), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated DATE.

246

Item 10.



Compliance and Other Matters

Purpose of this Report

Austin, Texas

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not
an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards.

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is
not suitable for any other purpose.

DATE

- 60 -
247

Item 10.



Financial Statement Findings

None

CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

Year Ended September 30, 2020

- 61 -
248

Item 10.



Prior Audit Findings

None

CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

- 62 -
249

Item 10.



AGENDA ITEM NO. 11 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 2, 2021 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Acknowledge the resignation of Planning and Zoning Commissioner Jake Hammersmith, Place No. 2 and declare 
a vacancy. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No 
PRESENTATION: No 
ATTACHMENTS: Yes 

• Resignation email

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council acknowledge the resignation of Planning and Zoning 
Commissioner Jacob Hammersmith, Place No. 2 and declare a vacancy.    

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Recommend Approval Disapproval None 

250

Item 11.



251

Item 11.



AGENDA ITEM NO. 12 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 2, 2021 
PREPARED BY: Mayor Wallace 
DEPARTMENT: Administration 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on City Attorney Legal Services for the City of Manor (The Knight 
Law Firm, LLP).  

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

LEGAL REVIEW: Yes 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
PRESENTATION: No 
ATTACHMENTS: Yes 

• Barney Knight Services – July 1999
• Knight & Partners Service Letter Agreement – Feb. 2011 (current fees)
• The Knight Law Firm Transition Letter – Oct. 2016

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Recommend Approval Disapproval None 

252

Item 12.



253

Item 12.



254

Item 12.



255

Item 12.



256

Item 12.



257

Item 12.



258

Item 12.



259

Item 12.



 

 

 

 

October 3, 2016 

 

 

Mayor Jonse and City Councilmembers 

Thomas Bolt, City Manager 

City of Manor 

P.O. Box 387 

Manor, Texas 78653-0387 

 

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 

 We would like to share some exciting news with you!  The law firm has been restructured 

to allow Barbara and Paige to step into equity positions with the firm, in recognition of the 

management roles they have been functioning in for some time now.  We are operating under the 

name The Knight Law Firm, LLP, but the full team of attorneys that have served you remains the 

same.  Barney is Of Counsel to the firm and continues to be available to clients in the same 

capacity as before.  All of us may be reached by email, cell phone, and through the office as 

always.  We look forward to continuing to serve you as you start your new fiscal year. 

 

 

Very Truly Yours, 

  
Paige H. Saenz            Barbara Boulware-Wells     

 
 

Barney Knight 

The Knight Law Firm, LLP 
                                              Attorneys at Law 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Paige Harbison Saenz 
Barbara Boulware-Wells 

Bradford E. Bullock 
Jeffrey T. Ulmann 

Barney L. Knight, Of Counsel 
 
 

Executive Office Terrace Suites 
223 West Anderson Lane 

Suite A-105 
Austin, Texas 78752 

Tel: 512.323.5778 
Fax: 512.323.5773 

 
  www.cityattorneytexas.com 

attorneys@cityattorneytexas.com  

 
 
 

 

 

 

260

Item 12.

http://www.cityattorneytexas.com/


AGENDA ITEM NO. 13 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 2, 2021 
PREPARED BY: Mayor Wallace 
DEPARTMENT: Administration 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Acknowledge and acceptance of retirement announcement of City Manager, Thomas Bolt. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

LEGAL REVIEW: Yes 
FISCAL IMPACT: No 
PRESENTATION: No 
ATTACHMENTS: Yes 

• Retirement letter

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is City staff’s recommendation that the City Council acknowledge and accept the retirement announcement of 
City Manager, Thomas Bolt.  

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Recommend Approval Disapproval None 

261

Item 13.



262

Item 13.



AGENDA ITEM NO. 14 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 2, 2021 
PREPARED BY: Tracey Vasquez, HR Manager 
DEPARTMENT: Human Resources 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the Consulting Firm for City Manager’s position. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 
The City of Manor will be recruiting a talented and accomplished candidate with a highly successful track record 
for the City Manager’s position. 

LEGAL REVIEW:   No 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Yes, not budgeted 
PRESENTATION: No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• Affion Public Consulting
• SGR Proposal
• Chris Hartung Proposal and Sample
• Ralph Andersen Proposal (declined)
• City Manager Searches Report
• Executive Search Firm Summary

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve a Consulting Firm for the City Manager’s 
position. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Recommend Approval Disapproval None 

263

Item 14.



We deliver leaders.  Our executive recruiting specialists have national contacts 
within the public sector and professional organizations – allowing us to find a 
broad range of talent.  We rigorously qualify and investigate each candidate.  We 
won’t just pull names out of a database.  When we are finished, you will have 
candidates that meet or exceed your expectations.  
 

264

Item 14.



 
 
 
05/24/2021 
 
Tracey DuBois-Vasquez 
Human Resources Manager 
105 E Eggleston St 
Manor, TX 78653 
 
Dear Tracey, 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit our offer of executive search services for the City Manager 
position. 
 
Affion Public is an executive search firm that specializes in identifying and placing exceptional executive 
level candidates within the public sector. We have built a successful practice on placing public sector 
executives and have a reputation for developing excellent working relationships with the clients we serve.  
 
Our partnership approach and high quality of work fosters the level of comfort our clients’ value and 
deserve.    With our high touch style, we’ll be able to provide you with the attention that you warrant and 
deserve for this very important search. Our search process and collaborative approach has enabled Affion 
Public to conduct multiple searches for the majority of the clients we serve. 
 
We differentiate ourselves from our competition by seeking out passive, as well as, active candidates that 
will best meet the needs of our clients.  By conducting searches in this manner, we are able to provide a 
tailored pool of candidates rather than recycling the same candidates search after search. Our 
commitment to diversity and success at targeting minority candidates has also helped to set us apart from 
other firms. 
  
On behalf of Affion Public, we will be thrilled to be your firm of choice! Please feel free to contact me 
directly at 717-576-9847 or via email at reilly@affionpublic.com.   I look forward to speaking with you in 
the near future.   
 
Best Regards, 

 
 
 
 
 

Scott Reilly 
CEO, Affion Public 
 
  Delivering Leaders. 

Corporate Address: 
PO Box 794 
Hershey, PA 17033 

www.affionpublic.com 
888.321.4922 toll free 
717.214.4922 local 

265

Item 14.

mailto:reilly@affionpublic.com


 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Corporate Mailing Address:  

P.O. Box 794 
Hershey, PA 17033 
888-321-4922 
www.affionpublic.com 
 
 
 

 
City of Manor, TX 

City Manager 
05/24/2021 

266

Item 14.

http://www.affionpublic.com/


 

 
2 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Table of Contents 

 
Table of Contents ............................................................................................................................ 2 

Company Profile ............................................................................................................................. 3 

Why Affion? .................................................................................................................................... 3 

What We Do Differently ................................................................................................................. 4 

Relevant Search Experience ........................................................................................................... 5 

Objectives and Approach ................................................................................................................ 6 

Statement of Diversity ................................................................................................................... 11 

Individuals Assigned to Search:..................................................................................................... 12 

Cost ................................................................................................................................................ 14 

Guarantee: ..................................................................................................................................... 14 

Reference List ................................................................................................................................ 15 

Client List ....................................................................................................................................... 16 

Affion Disclaimer 

Copyright © 2009 by Affion Public, LLC.  All rights reserved.  Printed in the United States of America.  
The information in this document is the exclusive property of Affion Public, LLC.  The data and trade 
secrets contained herein are submitted for use solely by the City of Manor, TX. The reproduction of this 
document or any portion thereof, in any form, without the express written consent of Affion Public, LLC 
is forbidden.   
 
 
 
 
 

267

Item 14.



 

 
3 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Company Profile  
 
Affion Public is deeply rooted in the public sector, providing executive search services for state and local 
government, education and non-profit organizations since 2000.   
 
Our executive search division specializes in identifying the nation’s best and brightest executives and 
delivering those individuals to our public sector clients.  Our partners are typically state, county, city, and 
government organizations as well as non-profits.  Recognized as a leader in public sector executive 
searches, Affion has attained “preferred” vendor status or an exclusive relationship with a majority of its 
client partners.  
 
Affion’s corporate address is P.O. Box 794, Hershey, PA 17033.  
 
Why Affion? 

We are different. As a company, our strengths lie in our people, our passion, and our commitment. Affion 
employs an extremely talented group of professionals that bring a diverse set of skills and an average of 
over 10 years of experience in government and private sector venues. Extraordinary, trusted client 
partnerships have separated us from others in the industry. Embracing a small business approach has 
enabled the entrepreneurial spirit of Affion, while also ensuring a personalized approach and customized 
solution for our partners.  
 
It is our unique understanding of the complexities of the public sector that gives us an edge. We know 
what to challenge potential candidates on, and we know how to discern and qualify the very specific set of 
skills an executive needs in order to succeed within the public realm.  Our particular expertise lies in our 
ability to reach out to and ultimately attract the best and the brightest into the public executive domain. 
Short and long term, Affion is looking for valued, long lasting partnerships, where we can have a real and 
positive effect for our client. 
 
Our public sector team provides a full range of customized executive recruiting and management 
consulting services. Particular areas of expertise lie within strategy, human resources, process and 
solutions. We have served in an advisory capacity to state, city, and municipal governments across the 
country. 
 
Historically, our specialized executive recruitment services have been client driven. By building strong 
client partnerships, and practicing due diligence, we gain an invaluable understanding of the mission, 
motivation and culture of our client. This has allowed us to successfully recruit across all departmental 
disciplines and ultimately to provide top executives to an array of governmental agencies and authorities 
(e.g. Information Systems, Public Safety, Engineering, Health and Human Services, Water Utilities, 
Economic Development, Assistant City Managers, City Managers, etc.). 
 
 
 
 
 
 

268

Item 14.



 

 
4 

 
 

 

What We Do Differently 

Our executive search goal is to specify, identify, qualify and deliver candidates that meet or exceed your 
expectations. After consulting with client executives and stakeholders, we utilize a systematic search 
methodology to customize and tailor the ideal candidate and position profile to meet the specified need. 
 
Targeting organizations that are similar to our client, we set out to find individuals that meet and exceed 
the background, education, experience, and personal characteristics required. This is done in a highly 
confidential manner and in compliance with applicable legal standards.  Once a potential candidate has 
been identified, they will enter into a rigorous qualifying process to further establish the “fit”. A 
comprehensive confidential report on each of the selected candidates is prepared to include pertinent 
information relative to the candidates work history and background. A professional appraisal of the 
candidates’ competencies compared to the specific requirements will be provided as a continuum to the 
report. In the form of a portfolio presentation, we meet with the stakeholders to make our 
recommendations. We deliver individuals that are competent, qualified, and capable. We deliver 
solutions. 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

269

Item 14.



 

 
5 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Relevant Search Experience 
 

City of Ann Arbor, MI  
• City Administrator (2011; 2016) 

City of Huntsville, TX  
• City Manager (2008) 
 

City of Shawnee, OK  
• City Manager (2015) 
 

City of Aurora, CO  
• City Manager (2018) 

City of Irving, TX  
• City Manager (2006) 
 

City of Springfield, MO  
• City Manager (2008) 
 

City of Austin, TX  
• City Manager (2008) 

City of Kirkwood, MO  
• Chief Administrative Officer (2014) 
 

City of Taylor, TX  
• City Manager (2019) 

City of Broken Arrow, OK  
• City Manager (2012; 2015) 

City of Leander, TX  
• City Manager (2011) 
 

City of Thornton, CO  
• City Manager (2015) 
 

City of College Station, TX  
• City Manager (2018) 

City of Marshall, TX  
• City Manager (2014) 
 

Delaware County, PA 
• Executive Director (2020) 
 

City of Columbia, MO  
• City Manager (2011) 

City of McKinney, TX  
• City Manager (2008) 
 

Village of Garden City, NY  
• Village Administrator (2014) 
 

City of Commerce City, CO 
• City Manager (2021) 
 

City of Morgantown, WV  
• City Manager (2010) 
 

 

City of Dallas, TX  
• City Manager (2016) 

City of North Richland Hills, TX  
• City Manager (2009) 

 

City of East Lansing, MI  
• City Manager (2012) 
 

City of Plano, TX  
• City Manager (2011) 
 

 

City of El Paso, TX  
• City Manager (2014) 
 

City of Round Rock, TX  
• City Manager (2011) 
 

 

City of Galveston, TX  
• City Manager (2012) 

City of San Antonio, TX  
• City Manager (2006) 

 

City of Hollywood, FL  
• City Manager (2012) 
 

City of San Marcos, TX  
• City Manager (2008) 
 

 

 
 

270

Item 14.



 

 

6 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Objectives and Approach 
 
1.  Establishing the Timeline – we will work closely with you to determine your ideal start date for 
your executive and then work to make sure that we agree on all target dates and activities. 
 
2.  Input from Key Decision Makers – we will meet with all parties who will be impacted by this 
executive to seek input, which will also help us understand the company, the people and the working 
environment.  This can include setting up public forums to engage the community in assisting in the 
process. 
 
3.  Developing the Candidate Profile – through extensive interviews we will gain a complete 
understanding of the mission and goals of the company and begin to create the profile of the executive you 
are seeking.  
 
4.  Candidate Pool and Search Techniques – we will use our own extensive internal database, our 
personal and professional connections, competitor intelligence, targeted recruiting, industry specific 
sourcing and other recruiting tools to begin to identify the perfect candidate.  
 
5.  Screening Process – we will conduct interviews to qualify each candidate, whether it is an internal 
candidate or an external one, prior to presentation to you, and will conduct an extensive background 
check on each potential candidate.  
 
6.  Selecting Candidates for Client Review – we will present the key decision makers with a portfolio 
of candidates for consideration and will discuss each candidate’s skills and qualifications in detail.  
 
7.  Choosing the Finalists and the Interview – once the client has reviewed the candidates and has 
selected the finalists, interviews with the key decision makers or the selection committee will begin. 
 
8.  Hiring – all candidates will have been pre-qualified on the salary range; benefits and we will assist in 
all final employment matters.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

271

Item 14.



 

 

7 

 
 

Developing the Candidate Profile 

Affion’s approach to executive searches is a very personal and systematic one.  Our success is dependent 
on the access and information granted to us by the client organization, so that we can gather all the 
information possible to have a true understanding of the client’s needs.  Only if we know the organization 
intimately and develop a very thorough and detailed profile of the ideal candidate, can we be assured of 
the right match for the organization and the individual who is ultimately selected.  
 
We pride ourselves in the value we bring to the table by working with the client to develop the profile of 
the ideal candidate from which to conduct our search.  We do this by spending a great deal of time with 
the chief decision makers, elected officials, etc. at the very beginning, learning the history of the position, 
the mission and goals of the organization, the past successes and failures of the position, staff, budget and 
virtually everything the selected candidate would need to have experience and success addressing.  In 
order for us to locate the ideal leader for an organization, we must know where that organization wants to 
go and what it will take to get it there. 
 
Each search is different, and we invest as much time in getting to know the style and organizational 
culture of our client as we do getting to know each candidate under consideration.  We develop a strong 
relationship with the decision makers and people with whom the potential candidates would be working 
to ensure the right match.  We spend time with the decision maker(s) to understand their idea of the 
"ideal" candidate, their own management style, and what the position means to them and to the 
organization.  We learn and adopt the organization’s vision, so that we are able to recruit candidates who 
will embrace those goals and lead a strategy that will support that vision.   
 
We prefer to interview other successful executives at the peer level of the vacant position to get an 
understanding of the kind of leaders who are successful in the organization.  We also find it valuable to 
interview some subordinate level staff, if possible, to assess some of the challenges or strengths within the 
current resources that the incoming executive would find. 
 
These early stages of the search are, in our mind, the most important. Our entire search team, including 
our assigned recruiter(s), is involved in this information gathering/ relationship process from the 
beginning so we all know exactly what our client is seeking in applicants and are qualifying candidates on 
the client’s organizational culture. 
 
For national searches, our team also investigates the community in which the position resides.  We 
investigate the public and private school options, and even spend time with a realtor to get a feel of the 
local housing market for relocation.  All of this helps us when we screen and sell candidates on the 
position. 
 
From the interviews and fact gathering, we will prepare a comprehensive candidate recruitment profile 
for the position, with the desired qualifications and characteristics, for approval by the client's 
designee(s).  It is from this customized profile that we conduct our systematic search. 
 
Input from Stakeholders 

The first steps in any search begin with our onsite stakeholder meetings.  The purpose of the stakeholder 
interviews is to allow Affion an intimate understanding of the organization, the people and the 
environment.  These interviews are how we develop the two key profiles in which the search is built 
around.  The first profile is the position profile.  The position profile includes not only the requirements 
the successful individual will possess but also what they will be doing on a daily, weekly and monthly 
basis.  This profile is critical in analyzing the potential candidate’s previous experience. The second profile 
is the candidate profile in which we spoke previously about.  This profile allows Affion to define the type of 
individuals that will be successful in your organization.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

272

Item 14.



 

 

8 

 
 
The stakeholder meetings begin with developing the list of individuals that will be working directly with 
this person.  This list should include whomever the individual is responsible for reporting to and anyone 
who may be directly involved with the hiring and interview process.  Affion is committed to spending as 
much time as necessary on the stakeholder meeting to ensure a successful placement. 
 
The stakeholder meetings are approximately one-hour interview session in which our team will ask 
probing questions to what will make the candidate successful.  These are generally done on an individual 
basis.   
 
Additional stakeholder meetings including public input will be scheduled at the discretion of the selection 
team.  We have a long history of being very inclusive with our stakeholder process and often meet with 
community leaders, business leaders, civic and religious leaders as well as neighborhood associations. 
 
Candidate Pool 

Affion is a relationship driven, select targeting firm.  We use our own internal database to draw upon 
potential candidates with whom we have built relationships and/or referrals.  We use the telephone to 
reach out to referrals and candidates initially.  We use the Internet as well as select research firms to 
investigate credit, criminal and other background checks and to obtain any written publications authored 
by, or regarding, the candidates.  Beyond this limited use of technology, our efforts are all carried out in 
person.  We post the job on the Internet or advertise in print as required by the client organization.  Even 
our utilization of networks of professional or trade associations, is done in person.  This personal 
approach is how we have been most successful in targeting and attracting the best and most diverse 
selection of candidates. 
 
Each Affion recruitment effort is customized specifically to the client organization’s needs and 
preferences. One of the additional values achieved from the time we spend in the beginning is getting to 
know the client organization and its culture and obtaining mutual agreement on a process that works for 
both of us.  While we have a very strict and systematic internal qualifying/screening process, it is only 
visible to the client in the result it produces.  Any processes external to our qualifying/screening process 
may be modified to accommodate the client’s organizational needs.   
 

Affion Process in Screening  

While the general steps outlined herein are the basis of the Affion search, flexibility is built into our model 
to accommodate a particular client’s preferences.  Our search is customized to best meet the needs of our 
client and as long as we are not asked to forego steps to ensure quality, modifications or additions can be 
made. 
 
 
 

 

273

Item 14.



 

 

9 

 
 
Sourcing/Recruiting Candidates 
Our senior executive recruiters (100% dedicated to this search) will identify candidates who have been 
successful in like organizations in similar positions.  We search from a variety of sources to ensure 
development of a broad representative pool in terms of affirmative action efforts and experience; 
including our own network of contacts and files; public or private entities, professional and other 
associations and organizations related to the position and referrals.  We do targeted advertising in 
publications specific to the position.   
 
Targeted Recruiting  
Affion maintains a national database through extensive networks in industry specific business groups, 
trade and professional organizations. To further ensure a diverse candidate pool, we also source 
candidates from professional organizations and networks that are ethnic and gender specific. We reach 
out to a variety of sources to collectively find the best talent available. 
 
As a result of our previous and ongoing recruiting efforts within government and quasi-government 
organizations, (local, city, county, and state) Affion has, and continues to build, an expansive network of 
candidates that includes the best and the brightest in the public sector.  That network of candidates 
exemplifies our professional commitment to building valued relationships, knowing the individuals’ 
experience and leadership styles, and understanding their needs and career goals. By operating within 
these guidelines, our deliverable to our client results in being a known and trusted entity. 
 
Screening/Qualifying Candidates 
Our senior executive recruiter conducts preliminary screening interviews of all candidates and the most 
promising candidates to determine their qualifications, pertinent accomplishments, experience, ability to 
meet special needs of the position and their interest in being considered.  Preliminary screening will be 
based on a resume rating developed from criteria contained in the customized Candidate Recruitment 
Profile, information contained in the resumes submitted to Affion, and Affion’s knowledge of the people 
and organizations with whom and in which we work.  At this point in the search, our recruiter is also 
securing preliminary, confidential reference information on the most promising candidates (as available 
and appropriate) to verify experience and qualifications; i.e., to ensure that it is worthwhile proceeding 
with them. 
 
After qualifying the best candidates into our process, those individuals are subjected to further rounds of 
interviews by additional Affion executive staff. The same criteria are used, but the emphasis here, is on 
organizational and cultural fit, and political acumen. This process assures the quality we demand of the 
short list of semi-finalists that are selected. 
 
All candidates are met face-to-face when possible.  If the face-to-face interviews cannot be arranged, then 
video conferencing is arranged to ensure that the recruiters and executives within Affion are comfortable 
with the candidates they are presenting for consideration.  
 
Background Investigation 
When all members of the Affion qualifying team have agreed that the candidate fits the desired profile we 
begin extensive background checks to include criminal, education, and financial investigations. Reference 
calls are completed. Internet and media searches are conducted. This entire procedure is intended to 
further eliminate unqualified candidates, and to validate the credentials of the final candidates in process.  

 
Selecting Finalists for Promotion to Client 
From our rigorous qualifying process and investigation, Affion typically narrows the field of qualified 
candidates to the top 6-8. We present all of the client’s designated representatives with a comprehensive 
book of material on each of the selected individuals.  These books contain summary profiles, resumes, 
applications, articles by or regarding the candidate, pertinent work product, and photographs of those 
candidates whose qualifications, work experience, achievements, and/or other special qualities qualify 
them for the position. This comprehensive confidential report on each candidate covers not only the 
candidate's working career and those personal aspects that are relevant to the position, but also our 
appraisal of how the candidate's competencies compare to your specific needs and environment.  Affion 
and the client’s representatives will meet to review the detailed contents of the book.  
 

274

Item 14.



 

 

10 

 
 
Internal Candidates 

Affion always screens and evaluates those applications and resumes received by the client from in-house 
or outside applicants to insure, on the client’s behalf, that the process is considered fair to all applicants 
and to determine if any of these individuals are qualified, viable candidates. Often, at the client’s 
preference we keep all in-house applicants in process until the final qualifying phases of the search 
process, unless it is clearly established that certain individuals are not qualified.  
 
We review, evaluate and acknowledge in writing all applications and resumes received.  Additionally, we 
ask that all solicitations for consideration made directly to the client be forwarded to Affion immediately 
to avoid duplication of efforts and take work off the client’s shoulders. 
 
Client Selection of Candidates for Interview 

Affion would work closely with the hiring team for selecting the finalist.  Affion will make a portfolio 
presentation to the key stakeholders which will include; the resume, a brief bio written by the candidate, a 
description of the candidate’s strengths and weaknesses, and an answer to the questions “Why Should I be 
the Next…” Upon our face-to-face presentation of the finalists, with our recommendations and 
comprehensive background information, we require that the client select the number and names of the 
candidates it wishes to interview in person.   
 
Upon the client’s direction, Affion personnel will coordinate with client personnel to arrange interviews 
with the top candidates selected for consideration. Affion will work with the client to coordinate any travel 
or accommodation details that may be needed for each outside candidate. 
 
Client Interviews and Final Selection  

The finalist interviews would be conducted in conjunction with the wishes of the hiring team.  Affion 
typically suggests that the hiring team utilize panel interviews and also perhaps a candidate presentation.  
The candidate presentation would be an oral presentation accompanied by a visual presentation.  We 
typically ask all candidates to prepare a twenty-minute presentation in a power-point format.  This 
presentation can be on a topic agreed upon by Affion and the client.  The purpose of this presentation is to 
allow the selection committee to see how the candidates communicate their thought process and the 
candidate’s ability to effectively express those thoughts to their audience.  
 
The formal interview would involve the same set questions asked to each candidate by the same panel 
member.  This allows the selection committee to evaluate each candidate on a fair and equal field.  These 
questions are agreed upon in advance with Affion and the selection committee.  Affion will be involved 
throughout the entire interview process to facilitate the interviews.  
 
Hiring 

Once it is time for a hiring decision, Affion will provide assistance on final employment matters, such as 
the negotiation process with successful candidates and notification to unsuccessful candidates. 

Any candidate that is presented for consideration will have been pre-qualified on the salary range, 
benefits and relocation package.  Once the finalist has been selected it is our standard practice that the 
client sends a formal offer letter to Affion on behalf of the successful candidate.  Affion will facilitate the 
signature and closing of the process. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

275

Item 14.



 

 

11 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Statement of Diversity 
 
Diversity is one of our core values, as well as part of our heritage. It acknowledges and celebrates the 
richness and value created by the differences among our employees, our customers, our service offerings, 
and our businesses. It is about people, backgrounds, lifestyles, ideas and balance between our work and 
personal lives. It is about maximizing the contributions from all members of our team so that we deliver 
greater value to our customers. It is about valuing differences. It is not a code word for affirmative action. 
It is much larger than that. It is about valuing differences. It is about inclusion. It relies on standards of 
performance and behavior, which lead to mutual respect. Diversity is about effectively using our collective 
talent to create a competitive advantage that leads to success – both for our internal support staff and 
contract workforce. Affion is truly committed to effectively recruiting and maintaining a diverse 
workforce.  
 
Affion maintains an Affirmative Action Program and policy to afford equal employment opportunity to all 
without regards to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, sexual orientation, handicap or disability or 
status as a disabled veteran or a veteran of the Vietnam War era. We take affirmative action to ensure 
applicants for employment and employees are treated without regard to these characteristics. The sole 
basis for decisions regarding employment status has been, and will continue to be, an individual’s 
qualifications, and based only on valid, non-biased job requirements in positions being filled. To carry out 
our policy, the commitment includes, but is not limited to recruitment, hiring, promotions, transfers, 
compensation, benefits, layoffs, terminations, educational tuition assistance and company sponsored 
training and recreational programs. 
 
Affion employs responsible reporting and monitoring procedures to ensure that all personnel actions are 
in strict compliance with the Equal Opportunity Policy and our Affirmative Action program. We are 
further committed to be an Equal Opportunity Employer by various federal, state and city laws on fair 
employment practices.  All of Affion’s advertising reflects these same important standards. 
 
We are proud of our success in ensuring a diverse candidate pool and thrilled to have placed multiple 
women and minority candidates in executive level municipal positions, nationwide. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

276

Item 14.



 

 

12 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Individuals Assigned to Search: 
 
Scott Reilly 
CEO, Affion Public 
reilly@affionpublic.com 
717-576-9847 
 
Scott will be the lead on this search and responsible for quality assurance during the length of your 
project.  During the engagement, he will be responsible for ensuring the success of the process. 
 
Scott, previously the Vice President of Arcus Public, has more than 20 years’ experience in Sales, 
Executive Recruiting and Technology.   His depth of knowledge and experience placing top executives and 
technology professionals enables him to lead the talented group of professionals at Affion Public. 
Throughout his tenure in the public sector, he has been responsible for leading the engagement process 
and successfully placing more than 100 professionals in key roles. He’s worked in the trenches performing 
the searches, as well as in leadership roles guiding his team and building relationships with clients while 
at the helm. He truly understands and appreciates the intricacies of the market, and as CEO for Affion 
Public, he is responsible for the strategic direction and approach of each of the firm’s key service areas. 
 
Scott has been a speaker/presenter on various topics nationally working with leading government 
officials; to help identify opportunities for technology research and share best practices as well as 
executive search forums.  He was named a founding Honorary Alumni to the Harrisburg University of 
Science and Technology first graduating class.  He currently serves as the vice-chairman of the Derry 
Township Municipal Authority and has been an active member on the Hershey Country Club Board of 
Governors.  Scott was also recognized by the Central Penn Business Journal as one of the region’s Top 40 
Under 40. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Marketing from Rider University. 
 
Scott has been directly involved with all executive level searches through Arcus Public and Affion Public 
since 2003. 
 
Gina Sprowls  
Recruiting Manager 
sprowls@affionpublic.com 
717-763-1987 
 
Gina will manage the recruitment efforts of your executive search.  During the engagement, she will 
provide the direction and coordination for the recruitment to ensure the profile of the ideal candidate is 
adhered to, so the best candidate is hired for the job. 
 
Gina will be responsible for identifying, profiling, and screening the candidates.  Her role will include 
qualifying potential candidates and conducting interviews of candidates.  Additionally, she will assist in 
coordinating interviews, soliciting feedback, and conducting professional reference checks.  She may be 
involved in the presentation of the final candidates to the stakeholders for consideration.  
 
Gina brings over ten years of diverse experience in recruitment, sales and management.  She offers a 
strong background in Human Resources with an emphasis on executive level recruitment and training. 
Her recruitment career has crossed over several industries including Public Sector, Technology, Finance, 
Healthcare, Sales and Education.  She has worked on multiple executive level searches for clients across 
the nation and is known for building and maintaining excellent relationships with our clients and 
candidates.  She holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from Capella University 
and an Associate of Arts degree in Human Resources. 
 
Gina has been directly involved with all executive level searches through Arcus Public and Affion Public 
since January 2008. 
 
 

277

Item 14.

mailto:reilly@affionpublic.com
mailto:sprowls@affionpublic.com


 

 

13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Proposed Project Timeline: 
 

Timeframe Activity 

Upon Selection • Affion to negotiate and finalize contract 
 

Day 1 
 
 

• Facilitate a meeting to discuss timelines, recruitment process and 
plan for completing the Position and Candidate Profiles 

• Affion to meet with identified stakeholders to begin the due 
diligence process 

• Conduct Public Forums if needed 

• Simultaneous industry research taking place 
 

Day 10 • Affion presents draft of Profile 
 

Day 15 • Finalize Profile 
 

Day 16 • Search Firm conducts recruitment to include: 
o Journals, personal contacts, Websites, etc. 
o Place advertisements 
o Review resumes 

 

Conducted on a weekly basis • Progress Report—check for quality and diversity of applicants. 
Determine need to target any specific group or area. 

• Review and qualify all potential candidates 
 

Day 46 • Affion concludes the recruitment campaign 
 

Day 65 • Review and finalize candidate selection to be presented 

• References for finalists are contacted 

• Background checks completed 

• Internet and media searches conducted on finalists 
 

Day 75 • Binder Presentation of 6-8 candidates to the Selection Panel 

• Affion will facilitate a review of the final candidates 
 

Day 85 • Conduct first round of candidate interviews with the Search 
Committee and key stakeholders 

• Finalize decision on the candidate of choice and negotiate 
employment agreement with the candidate 

 

Day 90 • Successful Candidate accepts offer of employment 
 

 
 
 

278

Item 14.



 

 

14 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Cost 
 
Full Executive Search: 
Affion executive searches are full-service searches conducted by senior executives within our firm.  The 
fee we have outlined herein is all inclusive of all phases of the search including stakeholder meetings, 
profile development, job postings, sourcing, recruitment, interviewing, reference checking, background 
checks, media checks, and candidate offer negotiation.   
 
Fee for the City Manager position: $28,000 (all inclusive) 
 
Additional expenses, which are not included in the overall fee but are expected to be reimbursed by the 
City of Manor include all candidate travel expenses for the purpose of interviews with the City of Manor.  
This will vary depending on the location of the finalist selected. 
  
While invoice procedures can be adjusted, our typical billing practice is to spread the fee payment over 
three equal installments. (One-third to be billed when the contract is signed, one-third to be billed upon 
presentation of the Final Candidates, and the last one-third to be billed upon the hiring of the desired 
Candidate.) Adjustments to our payment and billing processes are negotiable in order to best 
accommodate our clients’ needs.   
  
Guarantee: 

As with all of our executive searches, we are prepared to offer our standard professional service 
guarantee.  If the hired candidate is asked to leave for reasons of non-performance or leaves of his/her 
own volition in the first 24 months of employment, we will re-launch a search for a new candidate, under 
the original position specifications.  In such a case, we will do so for no additional professional fee, though 
charging expenses that may incur to include all Affion travel, hotel, and re-posting of job advertisements.  
It is our commitment to partner with you from the initial signing of the contract until the candidate 
accepts and offer and begins employment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

279

Item 14.



 

 

15 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Reference List 
 
City of Aurora, CO 
 
Jim Twombly 
City Manager 
15151 E. Alameda Parkway, Third Floor  
Aurora, CO 80012 
303-739-7010 
jtwombly@auroragov.org 
 

 
 
Dianna M. Giordano 
Human Resources Director 
15151 E. Alameda Parkway, Third Floor  
Aurora, CO 80012 
303-739-7225 
dgiordan@auroragov.org 

 
Affion had the pleasure of working with the City of Aurora on their City Manager search in 2018.  We 
worked closely with Dianna throughout the bulk of this search. Jim was the successful candidate for this 
search, and we worked with him on previous searches with the City of Broken Arrow, OK.    
 
 
City of College Station, TX 
 
Alison Pond 
Director of Human Resources and Risk Management 
1101 Texas Ave. 
College Station, TX  77840 
979-764-3518 
apond@cstx.gov 
 
Affion has completed several searches with the City of College Station to include their Assistant Director 
of Planning & Development (2008), Fire Chief (2016), Chief Information Officer (2017), Director of 
Water Services search (2018), and their Director of Planning and Development Services (2018).  We 
recently worked with them on their City Manager search (2018).  We have worked closely with Alison 
on the majority of the searches. 
 
 
City of Taylor, TX 
 
Brandt Rydel 
Mayor 
400 Porter Street 
Taylor, TX 76574 
512-818-7304 cell  
Brandt.rydell@taylortx.gov 
 

Kim Peterson 
Director, Human Resources & Civil Service 
400 Porter Street 
Taylor, TX 76574 
512-352-5993 
Kim.peterson@taylortx.gov 

Affion had the pleasure of working with the City of Taylor on their City Manager search in 2019.  We 
worked closely with Kim throughout the search.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

280

Item 14.

mailto:jtwombly@auroragov.org
mailto:dgiordan@auroragov.org
mailto:apond@cstx.gov
mailto:Brandt.rydell@taylortx.gov
mailto:Kim.peterson@taylortx.gov


 

 16 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Client List  
 
Cities: 
 
Borough of State College, PA 
• Director of Public Works (2016; 2021 – present) 
 
City of Ann Arbor, MI 
• Parks and Recreation Services Manager (2008) 
• Parks and Recreation Services Deputy Manager (2008) 
• City Administrator (2011) 
• Fire Chief (2014) 
• Police Chief (2015) 
• City Administrator (2016) 
 
City of Arlington, TX 
• City Auditor (2014) 
• Director of Community Development and Planning (2015) 

 
City of Asheville, NC 
• Urban Planning and Design Director (2014) 
• Police Chief (2015) 
 
City of Austin, TX 
• City Manager (2008) 
• Fire Chief (2008) 
• Chief Information Officer (2008) 
• Director of Solid Waste Services (2009) 
• Chief Sustainability Officer (2010) 
• Director of Code Compliance (2011) 
• Chief Financial Officer (2012) 
• Austin Water Utility (AWU) Assistant Director, Engineering Services (2013) 
• Austin Water Utility (AWU) Assistant Director, Pipeline Operations and Maintenance (2013) 
• Assistant City Manager (2013) 
• Purchasing Officer (2014) 
• Deputy Director, Economic Development (2015) 
• Redevelopment Division Manager (2015) 
• Assistant Director of Water Res Planning & Analysis (2015) 
• Austin Energy – CTO (2016) 
• Austin Energy – Chief of Staff (2017) 
• Fire Chief (2018) 
• Director of Economic Development (2019) 
• Director of Development Services (2019) 
• Chief Information Security Officer (2020) 
• Assistant Director of Economic Development (2020) 
• Director of Austin Code (2020) 
• Homeless Strategy Officer (2020) 
• Assistant Director of Housing and Planning (2021 – present) 
 
City of Atlanta, GA 
• Chief Information Officer (2003) 
 
 

281

Item 14.



 

 17 

 
 
City of Aurora, CO 
• City Manager (2018) 
 
City of Bellevue, WA 
• Director of Planning and Community Development (2010) 
• Chief Communications Officer (2012) 
• Chief Economic Development Officer (2014) 
• Chief Communications Officer (2016) 
• Director of Planning and Community Development (2016) 
9T 
 
City of Boulder, CO 
• Director of Public Works for Utilities (2011) 
• Deputy Director of Community Planning and Sustainability (2011) 
• Comprehensive Planning Manager (2012) 
• Human Resources Director (2013) 
 
City of Bozeman, MT 
• Human Resources Director (2021) 
 
City of Broken Arrow, OK 
• Fire Chief (2010) 
• Police Chief (2011) 
• City Manager (2012) 
• Assistant City Manager (2013) 
• Director of Engineering/Construction (2014) 
• Fire Chief (2014) 
• City Manager (2015) 
 
City of Burbank, CA 
• Director of Finance (2009) 
• Director of Parks and Recreation (2007) 
 
City of Chandler, AZ 
• Chief Information Officer (2007) 
• Director of Economic Development (2008) 
• Director of Planning and Development (2008) 
• Municipal Utilities Director (2015) 
 
City of Cedar Park, TX 
• Director of Information Services (2018) 
• Police Chief (2021) 
 
City of College Station, TX 
• Assistant Director of Planning & Development (2008) 
• Fire Chief (2016) 
• Chief Information Officer (2017) 
• Director of Water Services (2018) 
• City Manager (2018) 
• Director of Planning and Development Services (2018) 
 
City of Columbia, MO 
• City Manager (2011) 
• CIO (2015) 
 
City of Commerce City, CO 
• City Manager (2021) 
 

282

Item 14.



 

 18 

 
 
City of Corpus Christi, TX 
• City Manager (2008) 
 
City and County of Denver, CO 
• Manager of Community Planning and Development (2012) 
 
City of Dallas, TX 
• Deputy Director CIS (2005) 
• Public Information Officer (2005) 
• Assistant Director Dallas Water Utilities (2005) 
• Assistant Director CIS (2005) 
• Director and Chief Information Officer (2005) 
• Director of Housing (2014) 
• Assistant City Manager (2014) 
• Director of the Department of Trinity Watershed Management (2015) 
• Fire Chief (2016) 
• City Manager (2016) 
 
City of Denton, TX 
• Director of Environmental Services and Sustainability (2020 - present) 
 
City of Dublin, OH 
• CIO (2015) 
• Planning Director (2015) 
 
City of Durango, CO 
• Director of Public Works (2021) 
 
City of East Lansing, MI 
• City Manager (2012) 
 
City of El Paso, TX 
• City Manager (2014) 
• Director of Museums and Cultural Arts (2014) 
• Managing Director of Public Works (2015) 
• Director of Planning and Inspections (2018) 
 
City of Eugene, OR 
• Executive Director of Planning and Development (2010) 
 
City of Fort Collins, CO 
• Chief Sustainability Officer (2014) 
• Light & Power Operations Manager (2015) 
• Chief Human Resources Officer (2016) 
• Cultural Services Director (2016) 
• Transfort & Parking Services General Manager (2018) 
• Director of Cultural Services (2018) 
• Director of Planning, Development and Transportation (2019) 
 
City of Galveston, TX 
• City Manager (2011) 
 
City of Gardner, KS 
• Business and Economic Development Director (2015) 
• Utility Director (2015) 
 
 
 

283

Item 14.

http://www.affionpublic.com/positions/deputy-director-cis-dallas-tx
http://www.affionpublic.com/positions/public-information-officer-dallas-tx
http://www.affionpublic.com/positions/assistant-director-dallas-water-utilities-dallas-tx
http://www.affionpublic.com/positions/assistant-director-cis-dallas-tx
http://www.affionpublic.com/positions/director-and-chief-information-officer-dallas-tx


 

 19 

 
 
City of Greeley, CO 
• Director of Human Resources (2020) 
• City Clerk (2020) 
• Finance Director (2020) 
• Fire Chief (2021) 
• Director of Public Works (2021) 
• Human Resources Deputy Director (2021 – present) 
 
City of Hollywood, FL 
• City Manager (2011) 
 
City of Huntsville, TX 
• City Manager (2008) 
 
City of Irving, TX 
• City Manager (2006) 
• Assistant City Manager (2008) 
• Internal Auditor (2008) 
• Director of Human Resources (2007) 
• Assistant Director of Human Resources (2007) 
• City Attorney (2007) 
• Fire Chief (2006) 
• City Secretary (2010) 
• Capital Improvement Program Director (2019) 
 
City of Kirkwood, MO 
• Chief Administrative Officer (2014) 
• Police Chief (2017) 
 
City of Leander, TX 
City Manager (2011) 
 
City of Los Angeles, CA 
• CIO-Los Angeles World Airport (2007) 
• General Manager, ITA (2002) 
• Information Systems Manager (2002) 
• General Manager Department of Aging (2003) 
• Director, Bureau of Sanitation (2004) 
• Los Angeles Zoo: General Manager (2003) 
• City Engineer (2003) 
 
City of Lynwood, CA 
• Assistant City Manager (2007) 
• Director of Human Resources (2007) 
• Assistant Director of Public Works (2007) 
• Deputy Director of Development (2007) 
 
City of Marshall, TX 
• City Manager (2014) 

 
City of McKinney, TX 
• City Manager (2008) 
• Assistant City Manager (2009) 
• Director of Finance (2011) 
• Director of Water Utilities and Infrastructure (2013) 
• Assistant City Manager (2014) 
• Director of Public Works (2016) 
 

284

Item 14.

http://www.affionpublic.com/positions/ciolos-angeles-world-airport-los-angeles-ca
http://www.affionpublic.com/positions/general-manager,-ita-los-angeles-ca
http://www.affionpublic.com/positions/information-systems-manager-los-angeles-ca
http://www.affionpublic.com/positions/general-manager-department-of-aging-los-angeles-ca
http://www.affionpublic.com/positions/director,-bureau-of-sanitation-los-angeles-ca
http://www.affionpublic.com/positions/los-angeles-zoo:-general-manager-los-angeles-ca
http://www.affionpublic.com/positions/city-engineer-los-angeles-ca


 

 20 

 
 
City of Mesa, AZ 
• Deputy City Manager (2007) 
• Director of Human Resources (2007) 
 
City of Missouri, City, TX 
• Director of Finance (2016) 
• Director of Development Services (2016) 
• Director of Economic Development (2021) 
 
City of Morgantown, WV 
• City Manager (2010) 
 
City of North Richland Hills, TX 
• City Manager (2009) 
• General Manager: NRH2O, Water Park (2014) 

 
City of Phoenix, AZ 
• Human Resources Director (2015, 2017) 
 
City of Plano, TX 
• City Manager (2010) 
• City Attorney (2013) 
 
City of Port Arthur, TX 
• Assistant City Manager (2016) 
• Public Works Director (2016) 
 
City of Round Rock, TX 
• City Manager (2010) 
• Director of Human Resources (2012) 
• Police Chief (2013) 
• Assistant Finance Director (2021 – present) 
 
 City of San Antonio, TX 
• City Manager (2006) 
• Assistant City Manager (2006) 
• Director for the Office of Management and Budget (2020) 
• Transportation Director (2020) 
• Director of Government and Public Affairs (2021 – present) 
 
City of San José, CA 
• Deputy Director of Administration (2006) 
• Deputy Director of Integrated Waste Management (2006) 
 
City of San Marcos, TX 
• City Manager (2008) 
• Human Resources Director (2011) 
• Chief Building Official (2011) 
 
City of Savannah, GA 
• City Manager (2010) 
 
City of Scottsdale, AZ 
• Police Technology Director (2009) 
 
City of Shawnee, OK 
• City Manager (2015) 
 

285

Item 14.



 

 21 

 
 
City of Springfield, MO 
• City Manager (2008) 
 
City of Tacoma, WA 
• Assistant City Manager (2006) 
• Director of Finance (2007) 
• Director of Information Technology (2008) 
• Assistant Director of Finance (2009) 
 
City of Tamarac, FL 
• Fire Chief (2009) 
• Director of Community Development (2013) 
• Assistant City Manager (2017) 
 
City of Taylor, TX 
• City Manager (2019) 
 
City of Thornton, CO 
• City Manager (2017) 
 
Incorporated Village of Garden City, NY 
• Village Administrator (2014) 
 
The Township of Derry, Hershey, PA 
• Township Manager (2018) 
 
Counties:  
 

County of Los Angeles, CA 
• Information Systems Manager (2007) 
• CIO-Los Angeles World Airport (2007) 
 
City and County of Philadelphia, PA 
• Chief Information Officer (2000) 
• CIO-Philadelphia Free Library (2001) 
• CIO- Philadelphia Police Department (2006) 
 
Delaware County, PA 
• Executive Director (2020) 
 
Laramie County, WY 
• Public Works Director (2014) 
 
Milwaukee County, WI 
• Director of Parks, Recreation & Culture (2013) 
 
Washtenaw County, MI 
• Community Development Director (2007) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

286

Item 14.



 

 22 

 
 
States: 
 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania-Office of Administration 
• Chief Information Officer (2008) 
• Chief Technology Officer (2008) 
• Deputy Chief Information Officer (2008) 
 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania-Department of Health 
• Deputy Secretary of Quality Assurance (2008) 
• Deputy Secretary of Health Promotion (2008) 
• Bureau Chief of Drug and Alcohol (2008) 
 
State of Texas, Austin, TX 
• Director of Benefits - Employee Retirement System of Texas (2006) 
• CTO - Employee Retirement System of Texas (2005) 
• Chief Information Officer of DIR (2006) 
 
 
Education:  
 

Harrisburg University, Harrisburg, PA 
• Director of Learning Assessment (2009) 
• E-Business Program Director / Faculty (2008) 
• Learning Technologies Program Director / Faculty (2008) 
• CIS Program Director / Faculty (2007) 
• Biotechnology Professor (2008) 
• VP for Development (2005) 
• Director of Development (2007) 
• Controller (2006) 
• Network Administrator (2006) 
 
 
Other: 
 

Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority (CTRMD) 
• Executive Director (2020) 
 
Clarksville-Montgomery County EDC 
• President/CEO (2021) 
 
E-470 Public Highway Authority, Aurora, CO 
• Executive Director (2015) 
 
Housing Authority of the City of El Paso, TX 
• Chief Operating Officer (2010) 
 
International City/County Management Association (ICMA) 
• Chief Information Officer (2021 - present) 
 
Minneapolis Parks and Recreation Board, MN 
• Assistant Superintendent of Planning (2011) 
• Assistant Superintendent of Recreation (2012) 
• Deputy Superintendent (2012) 
• Assistant Superintendent of Environmental Stewardship (2012) 
• Director of Park Safety and Security (2013) 
• Human Resources Manager (2013) 
 
Roanoke Redevelopment and Housing Authority  
• Executive Director (2006) 
 

287

Item 14.

http://www.affionpublic.com/positions/director-of-benefits-employee-retirement-system-of-texas-austin-tx
http://www.affionpublic.com/positions/chief-information-officer-of-dir-austin-tx
http://www.affionpublic.com/positions/director-of-learning-assessment-harrisburg-pa
http://www.affionpublic.com/positions/ebusiness-program-director-faculty-harrisburg-pa
http://www.affionpublic.com/positions/learning-technologies-program-director-faculty-harrisburg-pa
http://www.affionpublic.com/positions/cis-program-director-faculty-harrisburg-pa
http://www.affionpublic.com/positions/biotechnology-professor-harrisburg-pa
http://www.affionpublic.com/positions/vp-for-development-harrisburg-pa
http://www.affionpublic.com/positions/director-of-development-harrisburg-pa
http://www.affionpublic.com/positions/controller-harrisburg-pa
http://www.affionpublic.com/positions/network-administrator-harrisburg-pa


 

 23 

 
 
Round Rock Chamber of Commerce, TX 
• President/Chief Executive Officer (2014) 
 
San Antonio Water System (SAWS) 
• Chief Information Officer (2016) 
 
Williamson-Burnet County Opportunities, Inc. (WBCO) 
• Executive Director (2013) 
 
North Texas Municipal Water District (NTMWD) 
• Water System Manager (2018) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

288

Item 14.



 

 24 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal.  
We look forward to assisting you with your  

executive search needs! 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

289

Item 14.



 

 

 

 
 

 

PROPOSAL FOR EXECUTIVE RECRUITMENT SERVICES 

CITY MANAGER 
CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS 

 
 
 

May 2021  
 

(This proposal is valid for 90 days) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Strategic Government Resources 

         P.O. Box 1642, Keller, Texas 76244 
                     Office: 817-337-8581 

                                 
 Jennifer Fadden, President of Executive Recruitment  

JenniferFadden@GovernmentResource.com 
      
     
                     

290

Item 14.



PO Box 1642, Keller, TX  76244 817-337-8581 www.GovernmentResource.com 

May 20, 2021 

Hon. Mayor Wallace and City Council 
City of Manor, Texas 

Dear Mayor Wallace and City Council Members: 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal to assist the City of Manor in your 
recruitment for a new City Manager. SGR has the unique ability to provide a personalized and 
comprehensive recruitment to meet your needs.  

I would like to draw your attention to a few key items that distinguish SGR from other recruitment 
firms and allow us to reach the most extensive and diverse pool of applicants: 

• SGR is a recognized thought leader in local government management and is actively
engaged in local government operations, issues, and Best Management Practices.

• SGR’s Servant Leadership e-newsletter, where all recruitments conducted by SGR are
announced, reaches over 50,000 subscribers in all 50 states.

• SGR will send targeted emails to our opt-in Job Alert subscriber database of over 6,200
city management professionals. We also provide a comprehensive social media marketing
campaign that includes distribution on Facebook, LinkedIn, Instagram, and Twitter.

We recognize that the COVID-19 pandemic has created unique operating challenges for local 
governments in a myriad of ways, including recruitment efforts. SGR has invested in a variety of 
technologies that will allow a safe social distancing recruitment process, and we will continue to 
provide alternatives to in-person meetings, to the extent the City desires, during this uncertain 
time.  

We are excited about the prospect of conducting this recruitment for the City of Manor, and we 
are available to visit with you at your convenience. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Ron Holifield, Chief Executive Officer 
Ron@GovernmentResource.com 
Cell: 214-676-1691 

291

Item 14.



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

1 Company Profile 

2 Unique Qualifications 

3 Recruitment Methodology & Projected Schedule 

4 Costs & Service Guarantee 

5 References 

6 City/County Manager Recruitments, 2016 to Date 

7 Executive Recruitment Clients 

8 Sample Position Profile Brochures 

292

Item 14.



	
	

Company Profile 
 
Background 
Strategic Government Resources, Inc. (SGR) exists to help local governments become more 
successful by Recruiting, Assessing, and Developing Innovative, Collaborative, and Authentic 
Leaders. SGR was incorporated in Texas in 2002 with the mission to facilitate innovative 
leadership in local government. SGR is fully owned by former City Manager Ron Holifield, who 
spent two high-profile decades in city management and served as a City Manager in several cities.  
 
SGR’s Core Values are Customer Service, Integrity, Philanthropy, Continuous Improvement, 
Agility, Collaboration, Protecting Relationships, and the Golden Rule. 

 
SGR is a full-service firm, specializing in executive recruitment, interim placements, online 
training, onsite training, leadership development, psychometric assessments, strategic visioning 
retreats, one-on-one employee coaching, and other consulting services designed to promote 
innovation, team building, collaboration, and continuous improvement in local governments. 
SGR has approximately 700 local government clients in 47 states for all of our business lines 
combined. SGR has been, and continues to be, a leader in spurring innovation in local 
government.  
 
SGR has 22 full-time employees, 2 part-time employees, 17 recruiters, and a number of 
consultants who function as subject matter experts on a variety of projects. 
 
SGR’s corporate headquarters is in the Dallas/Fort Worth Metroplex. SGR also has virtual offices 
in California, Colorado, Florida, Minnesota, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon, 
and Pennsylvania. 
 
SGR Executive Leadership – Recruitment 

• Ron Holifield, Chief Executive Officer 

• Jennifer Fadden, President, Chief Operating Officer 

• Melissa Valentine, Managing Director, Recruitment & Human Resources 
 
View all SGR team members and bios at: governmentresource.com/about-us/meet-the-team 

1 293

Item 14.



	
	

SGR’s Unique Qualifications 
 
Extensive Network of Prospects 
SGR is intent on being a leader in executive recruitment, and we believe it is imperative to be 
proactive in our mission to build a workforce that represents the communities we serve. SGR 
reaches an extensive and diverse pool of prospects by utilizing our unequaled network of 
prospects. 

• SGR’s Servant Leadership e-newsletter, where your position will be announced, reaches 
over 50,000 subscribers in all 50 states. 

• We will send targeted emails to over 6,200 opt-in subscribers to SGR’s City Manager Job 
Alerts. 

• Your position will be posted on SGR’s Website, GovernmentResource.com, which has 
more than 36,000 visitors per month. 

• Your position will be posted on SGR’s Job Board, SGRjobs.com, which averages more 
than 16,000 unique visitors per month and has over 1,600 jobs listed at any given time. 

• SGR provides a comprehensive social media marketing campaign that includes custom-
made graphics and distribution on Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, and LinkedIn.  

• SGR frequently partners with local government associations including League of Women 
in Government and the Local Government Hispanic Network. 

• Approximately 65% of semifinalists selected by our clients learned about the open 
recruitment through via our website, servant leadership e-newsletter, job board, social 
media, job alert emails, or personal contact. 

 
Collective Local Government Experience 
Our recruiters have years of experience in local government and both regional and national 
networks of relationships. The entire executive recruitment group works as a team to leverage 
their networks to assist with each recruitment. SGR team members are active on a national basis, 
in both local government organizations and professional associations. Many SGR team members 
frequently speak and write on issues of interest to local government executives. SGR can navigate 
all of the relevant networks as both a peer and insider.  
 
Equal Opportunity Commitment 
SGR strongly believes in equal employment opportunity. SGR does not discriminate and believes 
that equal opportunity is an ethical issue. SGR quite simply will not enter into an engagement 
with an entity or organization that directs, or expects, that bias should or will be demonstrated 
on any basis other than those factors that have a bearing on the ability of the candidate to do 
the job. You can anticipate that SGR will make a serious and sincere effort to encourage qualified 
applicants from underrepresented demographic groups to apply. Although SGR obviously cannot, 
and would not, guarantee the makeup of the semifinalist or finalist groups, SGR does have 
relationships and contacts nationwide to encourage the meaningful participation of 

2 294

Item 14.



	
	

underrepresented minority groups, and we continue to evaluate and improve our processes by 
embedding a lens of equity and inclusion into our recruitment practices. 
 
Listening to Your Unique Needs 
SGR devotes a significant amount of time to actively listening to your organization and helping 
you define and articulate your needs. We work hard to conduct a comprehensive recruitment 
that is unique to you. SGR devotes a tremendous amount of energy to understanding your 
organization’s unique culture, environment, and local issues to ensure a great “fit” from values, 
philosophy, and management style perspectives. 
 
Trust of Candidates 
SGR has a track record of remarkable confidentiality and providing wise counsel to candidates 
and next generation leaders; we have earned their trust. As a result, SGR is often able to get 
exceptional prospects to become candidates, even if they have declined to become involved in 
other recruitment processes. Candidates trust SGR to assess the situation well, communicate 
honestly and bluntly, and maintain their confidentiality to the greatest extent possible. 
 
Accessibility & Communication 
Your executive recruiter is accessible at all times throughout the recruitment process and can be 
reached by candidates or clients, even at night and on weekends, by cell phone or email. In 
addition, the recruiter communicates with active applicants on a weekly basis and sends Google 
alerts articles to keep the applicants informed about the community and opportunity. 
 
Comprehensive Evaluation and Vetting of Candidates 
SGR offers a candidate screening process that prevents surprises and ensures in-depth 
understanding. Our vetting process includes: 

• Prescreening questions and technical review of resumes 

• Cross communication between our recruiters about candidates who have been in 
previous searches for greater understanding of background and skills 

• Comprehensive written questionnaires to gain different insights than typically available 
on a resume 

• Online pre-recorded video interviews that allow search committee members, at their 
convenience, to view candidates in an interview setting prior to the finalist stage of the 
recruitment process 

• Comprehensive media reports that go far beyond automated Google/LexisNexis searches 
and are customized to each candidate based on where they have lived and worked 

• Comprehensive automated and anonymous reference checks that provide deep insights 
on candidates’ soft skills from a well-rounded group of references 

• Psychometric assessments (supplemental cost) 

• Comprehensive background checks completed by a licensed private investigation firm 

• Advanced exercise, customized to the organization, for finalist candidates 

3 295

Item 14.



Recruitment Methodology 
 
A full-service recruitment typically entails the following steps: 
  

1. Organizational Inquiry and Analysis 

• Develop Recruitment Plan and Timeline 

• Individual Interviews with Key Stakeholders 

• Development of Position Profile Brochure 
2. Advertising and Marketing, Communication with Applicants and Prospects 
3. Initial Screening and Review 
4. Search Committee Briefing to Facilitate Selection of Semifinalists 
5. Evaluation of Semifinalist Candidates 

• Written Questionnaires 

• Recorded Online Interviews 

• Media Searches - Stage 1 
6. Search Committee Briefing to Facilitate Selection of Finalists 
7. Evaluation of Finalist Candidates 

• Comprehensive Media Searches - Stage 2 

• Comprehensive Background Investigation Reports 

• DiSC Management Assessments (supplemental service) 

• First Year Game Plan or Other Advanced Exercise 
8. Interview Process 

• Face-to-Face Interviews 

• Stakeholder Engagement (may occur earlier in process) 

• Deliberations 

• Reference Checks (may occur earlier in process) 
9. Negotiations and Hiring Process 

• Determine the Terms of an Offer 

• Negotiate Terms and Conditions of Employment 

• Press Release (if requested) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4 296

Item 14.



Step 1: Organizational Inquiry and Analysis 
 
Develop Recruitment Plan and Timeline 
SGR will meet with the client at the outset of the project to finalize the recruitment plan and 
timeline. At this time, SGR will also request that the client provide us with photos and 
information on the community, organization, and position to assist us in drafting the position 
profile brochure. 
 
Individual Interviews with Key Stakeholders 
SGR devotes tremendous energy to understanding your organization’s unique culture, 
environment, and goals to ensure you get the right match for your particular needs. Fully 
understanding your organizational needs is the most critical part of conducting a successful 
executive recruitment. In consultation with the Search Committee, SGR will develop a list of 
individuals to meet with about the position. Individual interviews may include members of the 
Search Committee, key staff members, peers in other organizations, and/or community leaders 
to find out more about the position, special considerations, and the political environment. 
These interviews last approximately 30-60 minutes each and identify issues that may affect the 
dynamics of the recruitment, as well as develop a composite understanding of the 
organization’s preferences. This process helps with organizational buy-in and will assist us in 
developing the position profile. 
 
Development of Position Profile Brochure 
Following the individual interviews, SGR will develop a draft position profile brochure that is 
reviewed and revised in partnership with your organization until we are in agreement that it 
accurately reflects the sought-after leadership and management characteristics. 
 
Step 2: Advertising and Marketing, Communication with Applicants and Prospects 
 
Advertising and Marketing 
The Executive Recruiter and client work together to determine the best ways to advertise and 
recruit for the position. SGR’s Servant Leadership e-newsletter, where your position will be 
announced, reaches over 50,000 subscribers in all 50 states. We will also send targeted emails 
to over 6,200 opt-in subscribers to SGR’s City Manager Job Alerts. Your position will be posted 
on SGR’s Website, GovernmentResource.com, and on SGR’s Job Board, SGRjobs.com. SGR 
provides a comprehensive social media marketing campaign that includes custom-made 
graphics and distribution on Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, and LinkedIn. Ads are also typically 
placed in various state and national publications, targeting the most effective venues for 
reaching qualified candidates for that particular position. 
 
Communication with Prospects 
SGR communicates with interested prospects on ongoing basis during the recruitment process. 
Outstanding prospects often will not submit a resume until they have done considerable 
homework on the available position. A significant number of inquiries will be made, and it is 
essential that the executive search firm be prepared to answer those questions with fast, 

5 297

Item 14.



accurate, and complete information, and in a warm and personal manner. This is one of the 
first places a prospective candidate will develop an impression about the organization, and it is 
an area in which SGR excels.  
 
Communication with Active Applicants 
Handling the flow of resumes is an ongoing and significant process. On the front end, it involves 
tracking resumes and promptly acknowledging their receipt. It also involves timely and personal 
responses to any questions or inquiries. SGR communicates frequently with applicants to 
ensure they stay enthusiastic and informed about the opportunity. SGR utilizes Google Alerts 
and sends weekly update emails to active applicants regarding the organization and 
community. 
 
Step 3: Initial Screening and Review 
 
SGR uses a triage process to identify high-probability, medium-probability, and low-probability 
candidates. The triage ranking is focused on overall assessment based on interaction with the 
applicant, qualifications, any known issues regarding previous work experience, and evaluation 
of cultural fit with the organization.  
 
In contrast with the triage process described above, which focuses on subjective assessment of 
the resumes and how the candidates present themselves, we also evaluate each candidate to 
make sure that the minimum requirements of the position are met, and which of the preferred 
requirements are met. This sifting process assesses how well candidates’ applications fulfill the 
recruitment criteria outlined in the Position Profile. 
 
Step 4: Search Committee Briefing / Selection of Semifinalist Candidates 
 
At this briefing, SGR will provide a comprehensive progress report and facilitate the selection of 
up to 12 semifinalists. The presentation will include summary information on the process so far, 
the candidate pool overall, and any trends or issues, as well as a briefing on each candidate and 
their credentials. No other firm offers this level of reporting detail and transparency. 
 
Step 5: Evaluation of Semifinalist Candidates  
 
Reviewing resumes is an important and valuable step in the executive recruitment process. 
However, the simple fact is that resumes can be misleading. They tell you nothing about the 
individual’s personal qualities or his/her ability to get along with other people. Resumes can 
also exaggerate or inflate accomplishments or experience. SGR’s responsibility is to go more in-
depth than the resume to ensure that those candidates who continue in the process are truly 
outstanding. SGR’s goal is to have a clear understanding of the person behind the resume and 
what makes him/her an outstanding prospect for you. The evaluation of semifinalist candidates 
includes follow-up when appropriate to ask any questions about underlying issues. 
 

6 298

Item 14.



Written Questionnaires 
SGR will ask semifinalist candidates to complete a comprehensive written exercise designed to 
provide greater insight into candidate thought processes and communication styles. SGR’s 
written instrument is custom designed around the priorities identified by the Search Committee 
and usually includes questions focusing on key areas of particular interest to the client. This 
written instrument will be included in the semifinalist briefing book along with cover letters and 
resumes submitted by the candidates. 
 
Recorded Online Interviews 
SGR will ask semifinalist candidates to complete online interviews. This provides a very 
insightful, efficient and cost-effective way to gain additional insights to utilize in selecting 
finalists you want to invite for an onsite interview. The recorded online interviews allow the 
Search Committee to evaluate technological competence, demeanor, verbal communication 
skills, and on-camera presence. Online interviews also convey to candidates that the 
organization is using leading edge technology in its business processes and provide an 
opportunity for the Search Committee to ask candidates questions on specific topics of special 
interest. Links to view the online interviews are emailed to the Search Committee members for 
viewing at their convenience prior to selection of finalist candidates. 
 
Media Searches - Stage 1 
“Stage 1” of our media search process involves the use of the web-based interface Nexis 
Diligence™. This platform is an aggregated subscription-based platform that allows access to 
global news, business, legal, and regulatory content. These media reports at the semifinalist 
stage have proven helpful by uncovering issues that may not have been previously disclosed by 
prospective candidates. The recruiter will communicate any “red flags” to the Search 
Committee immediately upon discovery. 
 
Step 6: Search Committee Briefing / Selection of Finalist Candidates 
 
Prior to this briefing, SGR will provide each member of the Search Committee with a briefing 
book on the semifinalist candidates. The briefing book includes cover letters, resumes, and 
completed questionnaires. The link to view the online interviews is emailed separately to 
Search Committee members. The purpose of this briefing is to facilitate narrowing the list to up 
to 5 finalists who will be invited for personal interviews.  
 
Step 7: Evaluation of Finalist Candidates 
 
Comprehensive Media Searches - Stage 2 
“Stage 2” of our media search process includes the web-based interface Nexis Diligence™ along 
with Google as a supplementary tool. By utilizing both, we can provide our clients with an 
enhanced due diligence process to help vet potential candidates in an efficient and 
comprehensive manner, which reduces the risk of overlooking important information. 
 

7 299

Item 14.



The Stage 2 media search consists of a more complex search, which also includes social media 
platforms, and has proven helpful in analyzing possible adverse news about the candidate by 
uncovering issues that may not have been previously disclosed by the candidate. The media 
search gives the Search Committee an overview of the type and extent of press coverage that a 
candidate has experienced over the course of their career. View a sample media report at: 
http://bit.ly/SGRSampleMediaReport.  
 
Comprehensive Background Investigation Reports 
Through SGR’s partnership with a licensed private investigation firm, we are able to provide our 
clients with comprehensive background screening reports that include the detailed information 
listed below. View a sample background report at: bit.ly/SGRSampleBackgroundReport. 

• Social Security number trace 
• Address history 
• Driving history/motor vehicle records 
• Credit report  
• Federal criminal search 
• National criminal search 
• County wants and warrants for previous 10 years 
• Global homeland security search 
• Sex offender registry search 
• State criminal search (for current and previous states of residence) 
• County civil and criminal search (for every county in which candidate has lived or 

worked) for previous 10 years 
• Education verification 
• Employment verification (if desired) 
• Military verification (if desired) 

 
DiSC Management Assessments (supplemental service) 
SGR uses a DiSC Management assessment tool, which is among the most validated and reliable 
personal assessment tools available. The DiSC Management assessment analyzes and reports 
comprehensively on the candidate’s preferences in five vital areas: management style, directing 
and delegating, motivation, development of others, and working with his/her own manager. 
View a sample report at: bit.ly/SGRDiscProfileSample. For assessments of more than two 
candidates, a DiSC Management Comparison Report is included, which provides a side-by-side 
view of each candidate's preferred management style. View a sample comparison report at: 
bit.ly/SGRDiscTeamReport. 
 
First Year Game Plan or Other Advanced Exercise  
SGR will work with your organization, if desired, to develop an advanced exercise for the finalist 
candidates. One example of such an exercise is a “First Year Game Plan,” a process where 
finalist candidates are provided with the contact information for elected officials, key staff, and 
community leaders and then given free rein to make contact with all of them in advance and 
use those insights to develop a “first year game plan” based on what they know so far. 

8 300

Item 14.



Feedback is received from the key contacts on their impressions of the finalist candidates from 
the interactions with the candidates prior to the interviews. This exercise provides the 
opportunity to evaluate candidates’ written and interpersonal communication skills, as well as 
critical analysis skills. 
 
Step 8: Interview Process 
 
Face-to-Face Interviews 
SGR will schedule interviews at a date/time convenient to your organization. This process can 
be as simple, or as complex, as your organization desires. SGR will help you determine the 
specifics and assist in developing the interview schedule and timeline. SGR will prepare sample 
interview questions and will participate throughout the process to make it smooth and 
efficient. 
 
Stakeholder Engagement 
At the discretion of the Search Committee, we will work closely with your organization to 
engage stakeholders in the recruitment process. Our recommendation is that we design a 
specific stakeholder engagement process after we learn more about the organization and the 
community. Different approaches work best in different communities. We will collaborate with 
your organization to determine which option, or combination of options, will be the most 
effective for the unique needs of the organization.  

• Stakeholder survey (supplemental service, can be provided at an additional cost) 
• Interviewing community leaders at the outset of the recruitment; 
• Holding a public forum for citizen engagement at the outset of the recruitment; 
• Community leader reception; 
• Meet and greet; 
• Search Committee and key community leader dinner meeting; 
• “Round Robin” forum meetings with various community groups during a multi-day 

interview process. 
 
Deliberations 
SGR will facilitate a discussion about the finalist interviews and assist the Search Committee in 
making a hiring decision or in deciding whether to bring back one or more candidates for a 
second interview. 
 
Reference Checks 
SGR uses a progressive and adaptive automated reference check system to provide insights on 
candidates’ soft skills from a well-rounded group of references. References may include elected 
officials, direct supervisors, direct reports, internal organizational peers, professional peers in 
other organizations, and civic leaders. SGR’s reference check platform is anonymous, which is 
proven to encourage more candid and truthful responses, in turn providing organizations with 
more meaningful and insightful information on candidates. SGR provides a written summary 
report to the organization once all reference checks are completed. The timing of reference 

9 301

Item 14.



checks may vary depending on the specific search process and situation. If the names of the 
finalists are made public prior to interviews, SGR will typically contact references prior to the 
interview process. If the names of the finalists are not made public prior to interviews, SGR will 
typically wait until the organization has selected its top candidate before calling references in 
order to protect candidate confidentiality. 
 
Step 9: Negotiations and Hiring Process 
 
Determine the Terms of an Offer 
Upon request, SGR will provide appropriate employment agreement language and other helpful 
information to assist you in determining an appropriate offer to extend to your candidate of 
choice. 
 
Negotiate Terms and Conditions of Employment 
SGR will assist to whatever degree you deem appropriate in conducting negotiations with the 
chosen candidate. SGR will determine and define any special needs or concerns of the chosen 
candidate, including anything that could be a complicating factor. SGR is experienced and 
prepared to help craft win-win solutions to negotiation “log-jams.” 
 
Press Release (if requested) 
Until you have “sealed the deal,” you need to be cautious in order to avoid the embarrassment 
of a premature announcement that does not work out. You also want to try to notify all senior 
staff and unsuccessful candidates before they read about it in the newspaper. SGR will assist 
with this coordination and with drafting any announcements or press releases. 
 
Satisfaction Surveys 
 
SGR is committed to authentically following the golden rule by providing prompt, professional 
and excellent communication and always treating every client with honor, dignity and respect. 
We ask clients and candidates to complete a brief and confidential survey after the completion 
of their recruitment. This helps us strive to continuously improve our processes and meet the 
changing needs of the workforce. 
 
Supplemental Service: Post-Hire Team Building Workshop 
 
SGR can provide a customized team building workshop after you hire for the position. SGR 
utilizes I-OPT, which is a validated measurement tool that shows how a person perceives and 
processes information. Because people “see” different things when they assess a situation, they 
are motivated to take various courses of action, so understanding you and your colleagues’ I-
OPT Profiles will enable you to work much more effectively as a team. This service can be 
provided at an additional cost. View sample I-OPT reports at: bit.ly/sampleIOPTreports. 

10 302

Item 14.



Projected Schedule 
 
Schedule will be adjusted at the outset of the search to meet the organization’s needs. 
	
Task Weeks 
  

• Contract Executed 
• Develop Recruitment Plan, Timeline 
• Individual Interviews with Key Stakeholders 
  

Week 1 

• Deliverable: Position Profile Brochure 
• Search Committee Reviews and Approves Brochure 
 

Weeks 2-3 

• Advertising and Marketing 
• Accept Applications 
• Communication with Prospects and Applicants 

 

Weeks 4-7 

• Initial Screening and Review 
 

Week 8 

• Search Committee Briefing / Select Semifinalists 
• Questionnaires and Recorded Online Interviews 
• Media Searches - Stage 1 
 

Week 9 

• Deliverable: Semifinalist Briefing Books and Online Interviews 
 

Week 10 

• Search Committee Briefing / Select Finalist Candidates Week 11 

• Comprehensive Media Searches - Stage 2 
• Comprehensive Background Investigation Reports 
• DiSC Management Assessments (supplemental service) 
• First Year Game Plan or Other Advanced Exercise 

 

Weeks 12-13 

• Deliverable: Finalist Briefing Books Week 14 

• Face-to-Face Interviews 
• Stakeholder Engagement (may occur earlier in process) 
• Deliberations 
• Reference Checks (may occur earlier in process) 
• Negotiations and Hiring Process 

Week 15 

 

11 303

Item 14.



Recruitment Costs & Service Guarantee 
 
Not-to-Exceed Price:    $24,900 
 
Not-to-exceed price includes: 

• Professional Service Fee - $18,500 

• Expenses: 

o Position Profile Brochure & Marketing - $1,500 
§ Production of a professional position profile brochure 
§ Custom-designed graphics for social media and email marketing 
§ Announcement in SGR’s 10 in 10 Leadership and Innovation e-newsletter 
§ Two (2) email blasts to SGR’s opt-in Job Alert subscribers for the relevant 

job category 
§ Featured job placement on SGR’s website 
§ Featured ad on SGR’s job board 
§ Promotions on SGR’s social media pages – Facebook, Twitter, LinkedIn, 

and Instagram 
o Semifinalist Recorded Online interviews for up to twelve (12) semifinalists - $225 

each 
o Comprehensive Media Reports for up to five (5) finalists - $500 each 
o Comprehensive Background Investigation Reports for up to five (5) finalists - 

$400 each 
o Comprehensive Reference Checks with individual reports for up to five (5) finalists 

- $225 each 
o Up to Two (2) onsite visits by the Recruiter to the Organization. Meals are billed 

back at a per diem rate of $10 for breakfast, $15 for lunch, and $25 for dinner. 
Mileage will be reimbursed at the current IRS rate. All other travel-related 
expenses are billed back at actual cost, with no markup for overhead. Travel will 
be dependent on COVID restrictions in place at the time and take into 
consideration the health and safety of team members of both SGR and the 
Organization. 

 
Supplemental Services 
The supplemental services listed below are not included in the not-to-exceed price: 

• Ad placements, as approved by the organization, will be billed back at actual cost with 
no markup for overhead.  

• There may be an additional charge for changes made to the Position Profile Brochure after 
the brochure has been approved by the organization and the position has been posted 
online. 

12 304

Item 14.



• Additional online interviews (over and above the twelve (12) included in the not-to-
exceed price above) are offered for $225 per candidate. 

• Additional comprehensive media reports (over and above the five (5) included in the not-
to-exceed price above) are offered for $500 per candidate. 

• Additional background investigation reports (over and above the five (5) included in the 
not-to-exceed price above) are offered for $400 per candidate. 

• Additional reference checks (over and above the five (5) included in the not-to-exceed 
price above) are offered for $225 per candidate. 

• There is a cost of $175 per candidate for the DiSC Management Profile. 

• Semifinalist and finalist briefing materials will be provided to the search committee via an 
electronic link. Should the organization request printing of those materials, the 
reproduction and shipping of briefing materials will be outsourced and be billed back at 
actual cost. 

• Additional in-person visits (over and above the two (2) in-person visits included in the not-
to-exceed price above) by the Recruiter will be billed over and above the not-to-exceed 
price. Meals are billed back at a per diem rate of $10 for breakfast, $15 for lunch, and $25 
for dinner. Mileage will be reimbursed at the current IRS rate. All other travel-related 
expenses are billed back at actual cost, with no markup for overhead. 

• Candidates are reimbursed directly by the organization for travel expenses. 

• SGR will conduct a Stakeholder Survey for $1,000. SGR provides recommended survey 
questions and sets up an online survey. Stakeholders are directed to a web page or invited 
to take the survey by email. A written summary of results is provided to the organization. 

• If desired, the Recruiter will travel to the communities of the finalist candidates to 
conduct onsite visits. Site visits will be charged at a day rate of $1,000 per day, plus travel 
expenses. Meals are billed back at a per diem rate of $10 for breakfast, $15 for lunch, and 
$25 for dinner. Mileage will be reimbursed at the current IRS rate. All other travel-related 
expenses are billed back at actual cost, with no markup for overhead. 

• A half-day onsite post-hire team building workshop is offered for $4,000, plus travel 
expenses and $150 per person for I-OPT reports. 

• In the unexpected event the organization requests that unusual out of pocket expenses 
be incurred, said expenses will be reimbursed at the actual cost with no mark up for 
overhead. 

• If the organization desires any supplemental services not mentioned in this section, an 
estimate of the cost and hours to be committed will be provided at that time, and no work 
shall be done without approval. Supplemental services will be billed out at $250 per hour. 

 
 
 
 
 

13 305

Item 14.



Billing 
The professional service fee for the recruitment is billed in three equal installments during the 
course of the recruitment. The initial installment is billed after the position profile brochure has 
been created. The second installment is billed after semifinalists are selected. The final 
installment is billed at the conclusion of the recruitment. Expenses and supplemental services 
will be billed with each of the three installments, as appropriate. 
 
Service Guarantee 
SGR guarantees that you will be satisfied with the results of the full service recruitment process, 
or we will repeat the entire process one additional time and charge only for expenses. 
Additionally, if you select a candidate (that SGR has fully vetted) who resigns or is released within 
18 months of their hire date, SGR will repeat the process and charge only for expenses. If the 
organization circumvents SGR’s recruitment process and selects a candidate who did not 
participate in the full recruitment process, the service guarantee is null and void. We also 
guarantee that we will not directly solicit a candidate we bring to you for another job. 
 

14 306

Item 14.



References 
 
City of Hutto, Texas 
Population: 30,000 
Peter Gordon, City Council Member 
peter.gordon@huttotx.gov     
Stacy Schmitt, Assistant to the City Manager and Public Information Officer 
stacy.schmitt@huttotx.gov   
512-759-4929 
 
City of Pflugerville, Texas 
Population: 60,000  
Victor Gonzales, Mayor 
victor.gonzales@pflugervlletx.gov  
512-990-6101 
Recruitment: City Manager, 2018 
 
City of Saginaw, Texas 
Population: 21,000 
Todd Flippo, Mayor 
tflippo@saginawtx.org 
817-232-4640 
Recruitment: City Manager, 2017 
 
City of Santa Fe, Texas 
Population: 13,000 
Jason Tabor, Mayor  
mayor@ci.santa-fe.tx.us 
409-925-6412 
City Manager Recruitment, 2020 
 
City of Mineral Wells, Texas  
Population: 15,000 
Tammy Underwood, Council Member  
councilward2@mineralwellstx.gov  
940-325-2727 
City Manager Recruitment, 2019 
 
City of Freeport, Texas 
Population: 12,000 
Troy Brimage, Mayor 
tbrimage@freeport.tx.us 
979-233-3526 
Recruitment: City Manager, 2018 

15 307

Item 14.



Municipal and County Manager/CEO Recruitments, 2016-Present 
 

In Progress 

• Breckenridge, Texas (pop. 5,000) - City Manager 
• Chandler, Arizona (pop. 270,000) - City Manager 
• Chickasha, Oklahoma (pop. 16,000) - City Manager 
• Choctaw, Oklahoma (pop. 12,000) - City Manager 
• Clermont, Florida (pop. 44,000) - City Manager 
• Grove, Oklahoma (pop. 7,000) - City Manager 
• Johnson City, Tennessee (pop. 66,000) - City Manager 
• Kennett Square, Pennsylvania (pop. 6,000) - Borough Manager 
• Lago Vista, Texas (pop. 8,000) - City Manager 
• Lamar, Colorado (pop. 7,500) - City Administrator  
• Monett, Missouri (pop. 9,000) - City Administrator 
• North Port, Florida (pop. 77,000) - City Manager 
• Pecos City, Texas (pop. 10,000) - City Manager 
• Port Chester, New York (pop. 30,000) - Village Manager 
• Sherwood, OR (pop. 20,000) - City Manager 

 
2021 

• Bainbridge Island, Washington (pop. 25,000) - City Manager 
• Chanhassen, Minnesota (pop. 27,000) - City Manager 
• Spokane, Washington (pop. 220,000) - City Administrator 

 
2020 

• Argyle, Texas (pop. 4,000) - Town Administrator 
• Bay City, Texas (pop. 17,000) - City Manager 
• Bedford, Texas (pop. 49,000) - City Manager 
• Boerne, Texas (pop. 16,000) - City Manager 
• Castroville, Texas (pop. 3,000) - City Administrator 
• Clinton, Connecticut (pop. 13,500) - Town Manager 
• Commerce, Texas (pop. 9,000) - City Manager 
• Covington, Georgia (pop. 14,000) - City Manager 
• DeSoto, Texas (pop. 56,000) - City Manager 
• Duncanville, Texas (pop. 40,000) - City Manager 
• Hutchinson, Kansas (pop. 42,000) - City Manager 
• Hutto, Texas (pop. 30,000) - City Manager 

16 308

Item 14.



• Iola, Kansas (pop. 5,500) - City Administrator 
• Johns Creek, Georgia (pop. 84,000) - City Manager 
• Joplin, Missouri (pop. 50,000) - City Manager 
• Miami, Oklahoma (pop. 13,500) - City Manager 
• Mission Hills, Kansas (pop. 3,500) - City Administrator  
• Nacogdoches, Texas (pop. 33,000) - City Manager 
• Santa Fe, Texas (pop. 13,000) - City Manager 
• Tigard, Oregon (pop. 53,000) - City Manager 
• Westworth Village, Texas (pop. 3,000) - City Administrator 

 
2019 

• Blaine, Minnesota (pop. 65,000) - City Manager  
• Bullard, Texas (pop. 4,000) - City Manager  
• Campbell County, Wyoming (pop. 46,000) - Commissioners’ Administrative 

Director/County Administrator 
• Canyon, Texas (pop. 15,000) - City Manager 
• Copperas Cove, Texas (pop. 34,000) - City Manager 
• Killeen, Texas (pop. 145,000) - City Manager  
• Kingsville, Texas (pop. 26,000) - City Manager 
• Lamar, Colorado (pop. 7,500) - City Administrator  
• Lenexa, Kansas (pop. 55,000) - City Manager 
• Mineral Wells, Texas (pop. 15,000) - City Manager  
• Orange, Texas (pop. 19,000) - City Manager  
• Palm Coast, Florida (pop. 86,000) - City Manager 
• South Windsor, Connecticut (pop. 26,000) - Town Manager  
• Springfield, Oregon (pop. 62,000) - City Manager 
• Terrell, Texas (pop. 17,000) - City Manager  
• Tolland, Connecticut (pop. 15,000) - Town Manager  
• Vail, Colorado (pop. 5,000) - Town Manager 
• Venus, Texas (pop. 5,000) - City Administrator 
• Victoria, Texas (pop. 67,000) - City Manager 
• West Lake Hills, Texas (pop. 3,000) - City Administrator  

 
2018 

• Anna, Texas (pop. 14,000) - City Manager  
• Bethany, Oklahoma (pop. 19,000) - City Manager 
• Cameron, Missouri (pop. 10,000) - City Manager  
• Clackamas County, Oregon (pop. 400,000) - County Administrator  

17 309

Item 14.



• Clallam County, Washington (pop. 75,000) - County Administrator  
• Clark County, Washington (pop. 471,000) - County Manager 
• Coffeyville, Kansas (9,500) - City Manager  
• Craig, Colorado (pop. 9,000) - City Manager  
• Erie, Colorado (pop. 26,000) - Town Administrator  
• Forney, Texas (pop. 19,000) - City Manager 
• Freeport, Texas (pop. 12,000) - City Manager  
• Fulshear, Texas (pop. 9,500) - City Manager 
• Green Cove Springs, Florida (pop. 7,500) - City Manager 
• Humble, Texas (pop. 15,000) - City Manager 
• Jacksonville, Texas (pop. 14,000) - City Manager 
• Jupiter, Florida (pop. 60,000) - Town Manager 
• Lawton, Oklahoma (pop. 94,000) - City Manager  
• Lebanon, Missouri (pop. 15,000) - City Administrator 
• Lockhart, Texas (pop. 13,500) - City Manager  
• Marshall, Texas (pop. 24,000) - City Manager  
• Murfreesboro, Tennessee (pop. 130,000) - City Manager 
• Nixa, Missouri (pop. 21,000) - City Administrator  
• Paducah, Kentucky (pop. 25,000) - City Manager  
• Pflugerville, Texas (pop. 60,000) - City Manager  
• Plant City, Florida (pop. 38,000) - City Manager  
• Riverside, Missouri (pop. 3,000) - City Administrator  
• Smithville, Missouri (pop. 10,000) - City Administrator 
• Springfield, Missouri (pop. 167,000) - City Manager 
• Sunnyvale, Texas (pop. 6,500) - Town Manager 
• West University Place, Texas (pop. 14,000) - City Manager 
• Wethersfield, Connecticut (pop. 26,000) - Town Manager  

 
2017 

• Amarillo, Texas (pop. 200,000) - City Manager 
• Bastrop, Texas (pop. 8,000) - City Manager 
• Bedford, Texas (pop. 49,000) - City Manager 
• Bozeman, Montana (pop. 45,000) - City Manager 
• Brenham, Texas (pop. 17,000) - City Manager 
• Choctaw, Oklahoma (pop. 12,000) - City Manager 
• Clute, Texas (pop. 12,000) - City Manager 
• Colleyville, Texas (pop. 23,000) - City Manager 
• Grandview, Missouri (pop. 26,000) - City Administrator 

18 310

Item 14.



• Killeen, Texas (pop. 140,000) - City Manager 
• Midland, Michigan (pop. 42,000) - City Manager 
• Parkville, Missouri (pop. 7,000) - City Administrator 
• Saginaw, Texas (pop. 21,000) - City Manager  
• San Marcos, Texas (pop. 60,000) - City Manager 
• Sealy, Texas (pop. 6,500) - City Manager 
• Stephenville, Texas (pop. 20,000) - City Administrator 
• Temple, Texas (pop. 75,000) - City Manager 
• Topeka, Kansas (pop. 127,000) - City Manager 
• Vail, Colorado (pop. 5,000) - Town Manager 

 
2016 

• Angleton, Texas (pop. 20,000) - City Manager 
• Beavercreek, Ohio (pop. 45,000) - City Manager 
• Bethany, Oklahoma (pop. 19,000) - City Manager 
• Canadian, Texas (pop. 2,600) - City Manager 
• Carrollton, Texas (pop. 130,000) - City Manager 
• Clarksville, Indiana (pop. 20,000) - Town Manager 
• Craig, Colorado (pop. 9,000) - City Manager  
• Davenport, Iowa (pop. 100,000) - City Administrator 
• Des Moines, Washington (pop. 30,000) - City Manager 
• Elgin, Texas (pop. 10,000) - City Manager 
• Gunnison, Colorado (pop. 6,000) - City Manager  
• Hot Springs, Arkansas (35,000) - City Manager 
• Lake Dallas, Texas (pop. 7,000) - City Manager 
• Lake Worth, Texas (pop. 4,500) - City Manager 
• Muskegon Heights, Michigan (pop. 11,000) - City Manager 
• Northglenn, Colorado (pop. 37,000) - City Manager 
• Palestine, Texas (pop. 19,000) - City Manager 
• Piney Point Village, Texas (pop. 3,000) - City Administrator 
• Port Lavaca, Texas (pop. 12,000) - City Manager 
• Spokane Valley, Washington (pop. 95,000) - City Manager 
• St. Charles, Missouri (pop. 67,000) - Director of Administration 
• Stillwater, Oklahoma (pop. 50,000) - City Manager 
• Sweetwater, Texas (pop. 11,000) - City Manager 
• Valley Center, Kansas (pop. 7,000) - City Administrator 
• Williston, North Dakota (pop. 27,000) - City Administrator 

 

Population number is approximate population at the time the recruitment took place. 

19 311

Item 14.



 
	
SGR Executive Recruitment Clients Include: 
	

	

Arizona 
• Chandler 
 
Arkansas 
• Fort Smith 
• Hot Springs 
 
Colorado 
• Arvada 
• Aurora 
• Brighton 
• Combined Regional Communications 

Authority (Fremont County) 
• Commerce City 
• Craig 
• Durango 
• Englewood 
• Erie 
• Golden 
• Gunnison 
• Lamar 
• Mountain View Fire Protection District 
• Northglenn 
• Vail 
• Wheat Ridge 
 
Connecticut 
• Clinton 
• Fairfield 
• Hartford 
• Manchester 
• South Windsor 
• Tolland 
• Wethersfield 
 
 

Florida 
• Boynton Beach 
• Brevard County 
• Clermont 
• DeLand 
• Fernandina Beach 
• Fort Lauderdale 
• Government Services Group, Inc. 
• Green Cove Springs 
• Jupiter 
• Lakeland 
• Lee County 
• Nassau County 
• North Port 
• Ormond Beach 
• Palm Coast 
• Plant City 
• Port St. Lucie 
• Tamarac 
• Winter Haven 
 
Georgia 
• Albany 
• Alpharetta 
• Covington 
• Johns Creek 
 
Indiana 
• Clarksville 
 
Iowa 
• Ames 
• Davenport 
• Des Moines Water Works 
 

20 312

Item 14.



	

Kansas 
• Coffeyville 
• Hutchinson 
• Iola 
• Johnson County 
• Johnson County Park & Recreation 

District 
• Lenexa 
• Mission Hills 
• Olathe 
• Overland Park 
• Shawnee 
• Topeka 
• Wyandotte County/Kansas City, Kansas 
• Valley Center 
 
Kentucky 
• Paducah 
 
Louisiana 
• Shreveport 
 
Michigan 
• Ann Arbor 
• Kalamazoo County Consolidated 

Dispatch Authority 
• Midland 
• Muskegon Heights 
 
Minnesota 
• Blaine 
• Chanhassen 
 
Mississippi 
• Hancock County Port and Harbor 

Commission 
 

Missouri 
• Ballwin 
• Cameron 
• Cape Girardeau 
• Grandview 
• Joplin 
• Lebanon 
• Monett 
• Nevada Housing Authority 
• Nixa 
• Parkville 
• Riverside 
• Sikeston 
• Smithville 
• Springfield 
• St. Charles 
 
Montana 
• Bozeman 
• Great Falls 
 
Nevada 
• Clark County 
• Las Vegas 
• Washoe County 
 
New Mexico 
• Farmington 
• Four Corners Economic Development 

Corp. 
• Lea County 
 
New York 
• Port Chester 
 
 
 

21 313

Item 14.



	

North Dakota 
• Mountrail-Williams Electric Cooperative 
• Williston 
 
Ohio 
• Beavercreek 
• Franklin County 
 
Oklahoma 
• Altus 
• Bethany 
• Broken Arrow 
• Chickasha 
• Choctaw 
• Glenpool 
• Grove 
• Lawton 
• Miami 
• Miami Office of Economic Development  
• Oklahoma Municipal League 
• Owasso 
• Stillwater 
 
Oregon 
• Clackamas County 
• Eugene 
• Eugene-Springfield Fire and EMS 
• Lane Regional Air Protection Agency 
• Sherwood 
• Springfield 
• Tigard 
 
Pennsylvania 
• Kennett Square 
 
 
 

Tennessee 
• Johnson City 
• Murfreesboro 
 
Texas 
• Abilene 
• Addison 
• Alamo Heights 
• Alice 
• Allen 
• Alvin 
• Amarillo 
• Angleton 
• Anna 
• Argyle 
• Arlington 
• Atlanta 
• Austin 
• Azle 
• Bastrop 
• Bastrop Economic Development Corp. 
• Bay City 
• Baytown 
• BCFS Health & Human Services 
• Bedford 
• Bellaire 
• Belton 
• Boerne 
• Breckenridge 
• Brenham 
• Bridgeport 
• Brownsville 
• Brushy Creek Regional Utility Authority 
• Bullard 
• Burkburnett 
• Burleson 
• Canadian 

22 314

Item 14.



	

Texas, continued 
• Canton 
• Canyon 
• Capital Area of Texas Regional Advisory 

Council (CATRAC) 
• Carrollton 
• Castroville 
• Cedar Park 
• Celina 
• Citizens for Progress 
• Clute 
• College Station 
• Colleyville 
• Commerce 
• Copperas Cove 
• Corpus Christi 
• Dallas County 
• Dallas County Park Cities M.U.D. 
• Del Rio 
• Denison 
• Denison Area Chamber of Commerce 
• Denton  
• Denton County Fresh Water Supply 

District 1-A 
• Denton County Transportation 

Authority (DCTA) 
• DeSoto 
• Dickinson 
• Duncanville 
• El Paso  
• El Paso Metropolitan Planning 

Organization 
• Elgin 
• Ennis 
• Euless 
• Fairview 
• Farmers Branch 

Texas, continued 
• Fate 
• Ferris 
• Flower Mound 
• Forney 
• Fort Worth 
• Freeport 
• Fulshear 
• Garland 
• Georgetown 
• Georgetown Chamber of Commerce 
• Gonzales Economic Development Corp. 
• Granbury 
• Grand Prairie 
• Grapevine 
• Green Valley Special Utility District 
• Harris County ESD No. 48 
• Henderson 
• Highland Park 
• Humble 
• Hutto 
• Hutto Community Development Corp. 
• HJV Associates 
• Irving 
• Jacksonville 
• Jacksonville Economic Development 

Corp. 
• Joshua 
• Katy 
• Kaufman 
• Kilgore 
• Killeen 
• Kingsville 
• Kyle 
• Lago Vista 
• Lake Dallas 
• Lake Worth 

23 315

Item 14.



	

Texas, continued 
• Lakeway 
• Lamesa 
• Lancaster 
• League City 
• Leander 
• Levelland 
• Levelland Economic Development Corp. 
• Liberty Hill 
• Lindale 
• Little Elm 
• Lockhart 
• Longview 
• Longview Economic Development Corp. 
• Lubbock 
• Lubbock Power & Light 
• Marble Falls 
• Marshall 
• McKinney  
• McKinney Economic Development Corp. 
• Memorial Villages Police Department 
• Mesquite 
• Messer Rockefeller & Fort 
• Midland 
• Mineral Wells 
• Missouri City 
• Montgomery 
• Mount Pleasant 
• Mount Pleasant Economic Development 

Corp. 
• MPACT CDC 
• Nacogdoches 
• Nederland 
• New Braunfels 
• North Central Texas Council of 

Governments (NCTCOG) 
 

Texas, continued 
• North East Texas Regional Mobility 

Authority  
• North Hays County Emergency Services 

District No. 1 
• North Richland Hills 
• North Texas Emergency 

Communications Center (NTECC) 
• Odessa 
• Orange 
• Palestine 
• Paris 
• Pearland 
• Pecos City 
• Pflugerville 
• Piney Point Village 
• Plainview 
• Plano 
• Port Arthur 
• Port Lavaca 
• Port Neches 
• Portland 
• Princeton 
• Red Oak 
• Reeves County 
• Richardson 
• Riverbend Water District 
• Rockwall Economic Development Corp. 
• Round Rock 
• Round Rock ISD 
• Rowlett 
• Royse City Community Development 

Corp. 
• Saginaw 
• San Angelo 
• San Marcos 
• San Marcos/Hays County EMS 

24 316

Item 14.



	

Texas, continued 
• San Patricio County Economic 

Development Corp. 
• Santa Fe 
• Seagoville 
• Sealy 
• Sherman Economic Development Corp. 
• Snyder 
• Socorro 
• South Padre Island 
• Southlake 
• Stephenville 
• Sunnyvale 
• Sweetwater 
• Tarrant County 9-1-1 District 
• Taylor 
• Temple 
• Terrell 
• TexAmericas Center 
• Texas City 
• The Colony 
• Trophy Club Municipal Utility District 
• Tyler 
• Upper Brushy Creek Water Control & 

Improvement District 
• Venus 
• Victoria 
• Waco 
• Waxahachie 
• Weatherford 
• Webster 
• West Lake Hills 
• West University Place 
• Westworth Village 
• Wichita Falls 
• Willow Park 
• Wills Point 

Texas, continued 
• Wilmer 
 
Virginia 
• Orange County 
 
Washington 
• Bainbridge Island 
• Bellevue 
• Blaine 
• Burien 
• Des Moines 
• Richland 
• Shoreline 
• Snoqualmie 
• Spokane 
• Spokane Regional Transportation 

Council 
• Spokane Valley 
• Whitworth Water District #2 
 
Wyoming 
• Campbell County 
• Casper 

 
 

25 317

Item 14.



EXECUTIVE SEARCH PROVIDED BY STATEGIC GOVERNMENT RESOURCES

CITY MANAGER
C I T Y  O F  H U T T O ,  T E X A S

26 318

Item 14.



HUTTO, TEXAS: CITY MANAGER2

Hutto, Texas, is ideally situated along the SH-130 corridor, just 30 minutes from downtown Austin, 
in Williamson County. Located only 10 miles from Round Rock’s high-tech manufacturing and 
assembly center, Hutto is a vibrant business hub that boasts great connectivity and convenient 

access to the amenities of a large metropolitan area, with a friendly, small-town ambiance. 

While the population in 2000 was just 1,250, roughly 
30,000 people now call the growing community 
home. It is not only one of Austin’s fastest growing 
suburbs, it is also one of the fastest growing 
cities in the nation, and it’s easy to see why—
the people make the difference. People choose 
Hutto for the active neighborhoods, a strong 
sense of community, for the dedicated teachers 
and administrators at the high-performing Hutto 
Independent School District, and the ability to 
enjoy small town living while still being a short 
drive from the heart of the Texas State Capitol. 

Hutto’s astronomical level of growth is expected 
to continue, with its population projected to 
reach 45,000 by the year 2040. Residents enjoy 
a high quality of life in a friendly, welcoming 
atmosphere, and, although the City has grown 
quickly, neighbors know one another and are 
actively engaged in the community. Nearly 85% of 
the community rated Hutto as either “Excellent” 
or “Good” for the overall quality of life in a recent 
citizen survey. 

Hutto has received several honors, including 
being named one of the “Top 100 Places in Major 
Markets to Locate Your Business” by Southern 
Business and Development magazine. The City 
was recently recognized as the “Top Place in Texas 
to Raise a Family,” the “#1 Local City (in the Austin 
area) For Young Couples,” “One of the Top 100 

Places in Major Markets to Locate a Business,” and 
is consistently ranked one of the fastest growing 
and safest cities in the country. 

Hutto offers a wide array of unmatched 
community, recreational, and cultural amenities. 
The City of Hutto has several parks and walking 
trails where families can relax and enjoy a day 
outdoors. The Golf Club at Star Ranch features 
a 15,000 square foot clubhouse, pro shop, and 
tournament pavilion. Just five minutes from the 
heart of Hutto is the Dell Diamond, home stadium 
of the Round Rock Express, the AAA minor 
league baseball affiliate of the Texas Rangers 
major league baseball team. The City is currently 
working on a proposed transformative baseball 
and retail development project in partnership 
with Perfect Game (the world’s largest and most 
comprehensive baseball scouting organization) 
as part of its relocation of their headquarters and 
tournament operations from Cedar Rapids, Iowa, 
to Hutto. 

A variety of local businesses, shops, restaurants, 
and other attractions are located in historic 
Downtown Hutto, providing a unique shopping 
experience for residents and visitors from 
throughout the region. The district is listed on 
the National Register of Historic Places and is 
characterized by charming structures dating back 
to the 1800s. 

THE COMMUNITY

GROWING 
A QUALITY 

COMMUNITY

27 319

Item 14.



HUTTO, TEXAS: CITY MANAGER3

THE COMMUNITY CONTINUED 

Adjacent to Downtown Hutto with direct access to US Highway 79, the new 35-acre, $100 million 
master planned mixed-use lifestyle Co-Op District development will soon become the area’s unique 
entertainment destination. When completed, it will comprise 700,000 square feet of development, 
anchored by the 40,000 square foot City Hall and Library Complex, and includes open piazzas, event 
space, a retention pond and water features. The renovated cotton gin building and original cotton silos 
add to the historic aesthetic of the site. The City’s Bushy Creek Amphitheater, with its live performances, 
spectacular sunsets and some of the best food and drinks in the area, also serves as a family-friendly, 
affordable entertainment destination for Hutto and the surrounding communities. 

Hutto ISD offers quality education to more than 6,600 students across 10 campuses, and enrollment 
continues to grow by nearly 300 students each year. This innovative school district provides a wide range 
of educational opportunities, including Early College and a Career and Technical education program. 
Hutto students also enjoy being part of the award-winning art, band, music, and athletic programs, as 
well as a nationally recognized Family Career and Community Leaders of America (FCCLA) program. The 
district recently became the first school district in the area to offer a full-day Head Start program. Each of 
the six elementary schools, two middle schools, and Hutto High School are all rated either “Recognized” 
or “Exemplary,” and the high school mascot, the Hippo, is proudly displayed throughout town. 

One of Hutto’s greatest assets is the East Williamson County Higher Education Center. This innovative 
multi-institutional teaching center is located on 57 acres adjacent to SH-130. It houses Texas State 
Technical College, Temple College, and Texas A&M University – Central Texas, bringing a distinct blend of 
academic and technical training opportunities to the region. Additional higher education opportunities 
within easy commuting distance include the University of Texas at Austin, the University of Mary Hardin-
Baylor, Southwestern University, St. Edwards University, and Austin Community College. 

Major community employers include the Hutto Independent School District (HISD), Home Depot, Lowe’s 
Home Improvement, and the City of Hutto. The estimated average age of Hutto’s citizens is 31.3 years. 
The City has a median home value of $167,622 and an average household income of $93,000. 

VISION
Hutto is a family-friendly 
community that provides 

superior public safety, 
outstanding fiscal 

responsibility, diversified 
economy, and an 

exceptional quality of life.

28 320

Item 14.



HUTTO, TEXAS: CITY MANAGER4

VALUES
RESPONSIBLE:

We expect those acting on behalf of the organization to consistently show responsibility. Being 
responsible entails being trustworthy to do what is in the best interest of the community and the City 

organization and being accountable for our own individual actions.

SAFE:

We expect those acting on behalf of the organization to consistently have a high regard for the safety 
of all involved, including our residents, visitors, volunteers, employees, and their property. The value 
of safety includes actions taken to promote the safety of the public (i.e., police services, fire services, 
emergency medical services and the like) as well as design of our infrastructure, operational policies, 
and the working conditions provided to our employees. Recognizing that some elements of the work 
of the City of Hutto come with a level of inherent danger, our goal is to mitigate that danger to the 

extent reasonable.

AUTHENTIC:
We expect those acting on behalf of the organization to act with authenticity. Hutto is a unique 
community with a particular history, culture and character, and being authentic entails being 
genuine in both words and deeds to both the individual character and the character of the 

community as a whole.

PROGRESSIVE:
We expect those acting on behalf of the City of Hutto to seek creative solutions to problems. Being 
progressive entails making use of new or different methods, opportunities, and ideas with the 
intention of advancing the practice or outcome farther and faster than it would under the status quo.

STRATEGIC FOCUS AREAS
 ) Well Balanced & Diversified Economy

 ) Public Safety

 ) Fiscal Responsibility

 ) Quality of Life & Services

 ) Infrastructure & Growth

29 321

Item 14.



HUTTO, TEXAS: CITY MANAGER5

GOVERNANCE AND ORGANIZATION
Hutto is a home rule city operating under the council-manager form of government. The City 
Council consists of the Mayor and six Council members, elected at-large, and serving three-year 
terms for a maximum of two consecutive terms. Two Council seats will be up for election in the 
upcoming November election. The City Council appoints both the City Attorney and a professional 
City Manager.

Under administrative direction of the Mayor and City Council, the City Manager leads the operations 
and day-to-day administration of the City. The City Manager performs the duties of Chief Administrative 
Officer in the administration of all services, affairs, and program of the City. The City Manager provides 
administrative direction and guidance to all departments, develops and administers the annual City 
budget, establishes and monitors internal controls and coordination of City programs, and prepares 
long- and short-term strategic plans to meet the organizational and development needs of the City.

The organization is comprised of approximately 135 employees who provide a full complement 
of municipal services. Positions reporting directly to the City Manager include the Assistant City 
Manager, Assistant to the City Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Human Resources Director, and Chief 
Development Officer. Departments within the City include: City Manager, City Secretary, City Attorney, 
Municipal Judge, Finance, Information Technology, Communications & Marketing, Human Resources, 
Development Services (including a Type-B Economic Development Corporation), Convention & Tourism, 
Public Works (including Water & Wastewater Treatment), and Parks, Recreation & Community Services. 
Fire Services is provided by the Hutto Emergency Service District.

The current 2020 Budget (excluding the EDC) totals $27.8 million in operating expenses, approximately 
$43.9 million for new capital projects, (of which more than $39.9 million are paid for by bond proceeds), 
and approximately $11.5 million for debt services associated with past and ongoing capital projects. 

The City’s current total ad valorem tax rate is $ $0.631351 per $100 of valuation including an O&M rate 
of $0.397768 and a Debt rate of $0.233583. Standard & Poors issued Hutto an AA- rating in 2018 for 
$125 million of voter-approved bonds for various streets and drainage, public safety, and parks and 
recreation improvements.

30 322

Item 14.



HUTTO, TEXAS: CITY MANAGER6

CHALLENGES & 
OPPORTUNITIES 

 ) Growth Management: In 2010, Hutto’s population 
was 14,698 and it subsequently grew more than 
50% from 2010-2018, with a current population 
of roughly 30,000, making it one of the fastest 
growing cities in the nation. A candidate that has 
experience in managing fast-growing communities 
and recognizing the impact it has on community 
expectations and associated municipal operations 
is strongly desired.

 ) Council Dynamics & Political Environment: 
The current City Council is not politically aligned, 
resulting in policy disagreements and split votes on a 
regular basis. The City Council recognizes the impact 
that this environment has on the Administration, 
and the governing body looks to achieve consensus 
on the desired skills, experience and management 
style of the successor City Manager, and that the 
appointment can serve as a catalyst for improved 
municipal governance. As such, a candidate that 
is comfortable in successfully navigating day-to-
day operations and helping the Council achieve 
consensus on highly visible policies and direction 
in a charged environment is strongly desired.

 ) Financial Acumen: Due to higher-than-projected 
spending coupled with optimistic revenue 
projections and the financial impact of the COVID-19 
pandemic, the City laid off 48 employees in multiple 
departments in late March. The City Council, 
Interim City Manager, and Senior Staff are working 
through the ensuing financial challenges; however, 
the successor City Manager is expected to continue 
to develop and implement a financial response 
strategy to restore organizational financial stability.

 ) Economic Development: In support of the 
City’s strategic goal to seek a well-balanced and 
diversified economy, the next City Manager should 
possess demonstrated experience in economic 
development, negotiations, cost-benefit analysis 
and leveraging public assets and desired community 
outcomes with private investment opportunities 
in industrial, commercial, retail/restaurant and 
residential development.

31 323

Item 14.



HUTTO, TEXAS: CITY MANAGER7

IDEAL CANDIDATE
The City of Hutto seeks an experienced municipal leader who is highly motivated, energetic, and a skilled 
strategic thinker to serve as its next City Manager. The ideal candidate will be of strong character and 
exhibit a commitment to professionalism and best management practices in municipal government.

The successful candidate will be politically astute and have demonstrated experience in communicating 
effectively with the City Council, and assisting the governing body in finding consensus on key issues and 
working effectively as a team. It will be important for the new City Manager to place a strong emphasis on 
promoting unity within the City Council, organization, and the community.

The organization seeks a candidate that possesses highly 
advanced interpersonal skills and can thrive in an environment 
involving a high level of citizen and business engagement in 
municipal matters. The selected individual will be accessible 
to the public, promote public outreach, and have a desire to 
become part of the fabric of the community. The individual 
should be an effective public speaker and be comfortable when 
communicating with individuals at all socio-economic and 
educational levels.

It will be important for the next City Manager to develop strategic 
partnerships with local, state, and federal intergovernmental 
agencies. The chosen candidate will be pragmatic, flexible, and 
adaptable while dealing with the complexities of managing 
city operations. The Manager will be committed to promoting 
interdepartmental communication and coordination, and 
providing outstanding customer service, both internally and 
externally. The chosen candidate should possess strong 
financial acumen and experience in long-term capital planning 
and budgeting skills. 

The organization seeks an individual with a high level of emotional 
intelligence and a proactive, transparent, and collaborative 
management style. The ideal candidate will promote team 
building and model the highest level of integrity and ethics. A 
skilled delegator who is comfortable in managing the big picture, 
the selected candidate will empower and not micromanage 
employees. The individual should have the ability to motivate 
staff and build a high-performance and results-driven team. 
He or she will be supportive of professional development for 
employees and serve as a coach and mentor to staff. 

The chosen candidate will have strong management and leadership skills and the ability to build a culture 
of trust across the organization. The individual will be approachable, even tempered and maintain a calm 
demeanor, even while simultaneously juggling multiple tasks and numerous high-profile initiatives. An 
advocate for City services and the employees who provide such services, the new City Manager should 
espouse servant leadership principles. The ideal candidate will have a passion for public service but 
maintain a work-life balance and encourage employees to do the same.

The next City Manager will be a skilled problem solver with excellent negotiation skills and a demonstrated 
track record of creative and entrepreneurial solutions. They will be open minded and willing to consider 
“outside the box” strategies to resolve community issues and challenges. The selected individual should 
also be an advocate for technology and understand deployment of new systems.

32 324

Item 14.



HUTTO, TEXAS: CITY MANAGER8

EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE
A master’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, or a related field from an accredited 
institution and a minimum of 10 years of municipal administration experience, including five years in 
a managerial or supervisory role, are required. Preference will be given to applicants who have served 
as City Manager or Assistant City manager in a comparable sized or larger community with similar 
complexities to those in the Hutto municipal organization.

An equivalent combination of education and experience that provides the required knowledge and 
skills may be considered. The selected candidate will be required to establish residency within the City 
limits or its extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ) within six months following appointment. 

COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS
The City of Hutto offers a competitive salary commensurate with qualifications and experience. The City 
participates in the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) at the seven percent employee deposit 
rate with a municipal matching ratio of 2:1 and offers a full range of insurance, leave, and other benefits. 

33 325

Item 14.



APPLICATION PROCESS
Please apply online at: http://bit.ly/SGROpenRecruitments

For more information on this position contact:

Doug Thomas, Senior Vice President 
Strategic Government Resources 
DouglasThomas@GovernmentResource.com
863-860-9314 

To view the status of this position, please visit: http://bit.ly/SGROpenRecruitments

The City of Hutto is an Equal Opportunity Employer and values diversity in its workforce. Applicants 
selected as finalists for this position will be subject to a comprehensive background check. The 
selected candidate must be bondable, pass a pre-employment drug screening and/or post-offer 
physical exam, and secure a valid State of Texas Driver’s License within a reasonable period of time 
following appointment.

City of Hutto
www.huttotx.gov

City of Hutto Organization Chart

Hutto Chamber of Commerce
www.huttochamber.com

Hutto Economic Development Corporation
www.huttoedc.com

Hutto Convention & Visitor’s Bureau
www.visithutto.com

FOLLOW US

RESOURCES

34 326

Item 14.

http://bit.ly/SGROpenRecruitments
mailto:DouglasThomas@GovernmentResource.com
http://bit.ly/SGROpenRecruitments
http://www.huttotx.gov
https://cms.revize.com/revize/huttotx/document_center/government/city%20manager's%20office/City%20Organization%2010.24%201pm.png
http://www.huttochamber.com
http://www.huttoedc.com
http://www.visithutto.com
http://www.facebook.com/HuttoTX
http://www.twitter.com/huttotx 


C I T Y  O F  L A G O  V I S TA ,  T E X A S

C I T Y M ANAG E R

EXECUTIVE SEARCH 
PROVIDED BY

35 327

Item 14.



2 L AGO  V ISTA ,  TX :  C ITY  MANAGER

Lago Vista’s Core Values and Guiding Principles include:

THE  CO M M UN ITY

Ideally situated on the north shore of Lake Travis, the City of Lago Vista is home to over 8,000 residents 
who enjoy the unparalleled natural beauty of a lake resort combined with the world-class amenities 
of a major urban center. Lago Vista, just 30 miles northwest of Austin, covers 15.2 square miles and 
is accessible via FM 1431 off I-35. The City is part of Travis County, population of 1.3 million, and the 
greater Austin metropolitan area, population of 2.2 million.

Lago Vista offers an exceptional quality of life with unlimited recreational and cultural offerings. Enjoy 
the outdoors with plenty of boating, fishing, golfing, and hiking opportunities available at Lake Travis, 
Lago Vista Golf Course, Green Deer Golf Course, Lago Vista Sunset Park, Veterans Memorial Park, 
Bowden Point Park, or the nearby Arkansas Bend Park, or visit the beautiful Flat Creek Winery. 

The City is also known for its burgeoning arts scene, complete with large-scale Broadway productions 
presented by the Lake Travis Music Theatre; performances by Live in Lago Concert Series, and the Hill 
Country Singers; and arts, music, and food festivals. LAGO FEST, Balcones Canyonland, La Primavera 
Bike Race, and the Fourth of July Celebration are all can’t-miss events! 

MISSION, VISION, AND GUIDING PRINCIPLES
Lago Vista’s mission is to provide and maintain a healthy, safe, vibrant 

community ensuring quality of life. Its vision is to be a diverse City of Choice 
for businesses and residents alike as a result of our location, natural 

resources, and business, cultural, and educational opportunities. 

 ) Ensure a secure and safe 
community with focus on police, 
fire, utilities, transportation, EMS, 
and medical care.

 ) Have a vibrant community.
 ) Promote a healthy, fiscally 

responsible, financially stable 
community.

 ) Have an attractive community, with 
a clean appearance. 

 ) Ensure a well-planned community 
with value on managing growth and 
amenities.

 ) Be energetic.
 ) Be caring. 
 ) Be proactive and responsive. 

36 328

Item 14.



3 L AGO  V ISTA ,  TX :  C ITY  MANAGER

THE COMMUNITY— CONTINUED

Lago Vista is a fast-growing community having experienced a 17 percent increase in population 
between 2017 and 2020 as well as sales tax growth of more than 35 percent (2019 to 2020.) The 
median income in the city is $80,658, with an average home value of $309,516. Major employers in 
the area include Lago Vista ISD, Lantz’s Plumbing, Specialty Machine, Lowe’s Market, Vistago 
Print, and Anodamine. Medical facilities in the area include Scott & White Clinic and Cedar 
Park Physician Associates, as well as Lago Dental Center and Lago Vista Family Dentistry.

Lago Vista ISD (LVISD) is one of the top-rated school districts in all of Central Texas, with an “A” 
Accountability Rating from the Texas Education Agency (TEA).  (Ratings are based on standardized test 
performance; graduation rates; and college, career and military readiness outcomes.) Serving students 
in Pre-K through grade 12, the district has four campuses with a total enrollment of 1,597. Higher 
education institutions in the area include the University of Texas at Austin, St. Edwards University, 
Huston-Tillotson University, Concordia University, and Austin Community College.

Lago Vista has won many prestigious awards. These include the 2017 Blue Legacy Award, the 2017 
Texas Environmental Excellence for Innovative Water Supply Award, and a 2019 Gold Certified Scenic 
City recognition, given for its commitment to high-quality scenic standards for public roadways and 
spaces. The City was awarded the Governor’s Community Achievement Award (GCAA) in April 2020. 
This is one of the most coveted annual environmental and community improvement honors in 
Texas. Keep Texas Beautiful, in partnership with the Texas Department of Transportation, also 
recognized Lago Vista as one of 10 winners of the 2020 GCAA for outstanding community 
improvement and awarded Lago Vista with $130,000 for a landscaping project.

Lago Vista actively pursues and receives many grants. The City was recently awarded a $17,632 grant 
from the Lower Colorado River Authority (LCRA) for improvement to its water supply system. 
The City previously received a $43,479 grant from the LCRA in 2018, which was used to modify 
an existing treated effluent line to allow accumulated re-use water to be saved for future 
beneficial use. This project is expected to save about 52 acre-feet of water from the Highland 
Lakes, approximately 17 million gallons annually. The Lago Vista Library was also awarded 
several grants over the last 18 months, including $250 from the Texas Commission of the Arts to 
fund a portion of the Magik Theatre performance for the Children’s Summer Reading Program; 
$10,309 Ladd and Katherine Hancher Grant to purchase three AWE Learning Workstations for 
children; and $1,500 Lago Vista Women’s Club Grant to pay subscription fees to Ancestry Library 
Edition Database.

37 329

Item 14.



4 L AGO  V ISTA ,  TX :  C ITY  MANAGER

Incorporated in 1984, the City of Lago Vista operates with a council-manager form of 
government under a home rule charter. The City Council is comprised of the Mayor and six 
Council Members elected at-large, on a staggered schedule and serving two-year terms with no 
term limit. 

Lago Vista is a full-service City with a workforce of 110 employees organized into departments 
and functional areas including Administration, Aviation, Police, Municipal Court, Development 
Services, Finance, Economic Development, Parks & Recreation, Library, Information Technology, 
Public Works, Utility Administration, Human Resources, and the Lago Vista Golf Course. 

Lago Vista operates two water treatment plants and one wastewater treatment plant. Solid waste 
services are provided to the City through a private contractor. Fire services are provided by 
Travis County Emergency Services District #1 and Emergency Medical Services are contracted through 
Travis County Emergency Services District #7, and Austin Travis County EMS. 

The City’s operating budget is $38.4 million with a CIP fund of $10.4 million.  Major revenue sources 
include an ad valorem tax rate of $0.6475 per $100 valuation, a 1% local sales tax and fees for 
providing water, wastewater and development services.

Major projects and programs in the current fiscal year include Phase 2 of the new Sports Complex at 
Lago Vista Sunset Park, a $3.9 million investment in Water and Wastewater utilities, a $2.8 million re-
pavement project for city streets, Art in Public Spaces, development of Town Square, and expansion of 
City Hall and the Lago Vista Municipal Library.

GOVERNANCE  AND ORGANIZAT IO N

38 330

Item 14.



5 L AGO  V ISTA ,  TX :  C ITY  MANAGER

ABOUT  TH E  POS IT IO N

Appointed by and reporting to the Mayor and City Council, the City Manager serves as the chief 
administrative and executive officer for the City. This position is responsible for overseeing day-to-
day operations, ensuring policy and priorities set by the Council are carried out, and ensuring City 
services are effectively, efficiently, and equitably provided. Direct reports include 14 department heads. 
Residence within the city limits is required within six months of appointment.

Key responsibilities of the City Manager include:

 ) Executing Council directives, priorities, and policies to support the advancement of the City’s mission, 
vision, values, and goals.

 ) Preparing accurate, timely information and appropriate recommendations on policy matters to aid 
the City Council in the decision-making process.

 ) Planning, coordinating, and directing the operation of City departments, programs, and services, 
including ongoing evaluation to ensure maximum efficiency and effectiveness.

 ) Overseeing the development and implementation of strategies and performance metrics to expand 
and improve service to residents, visitors, and business owners.

 ) Ensuring financial integrity and accountability through resource management, cost efficiencies, and 
other strategies.

 ) Developing strategies to enhance community engagement and communication among a variety of 
stakeholders.

 ) Fostering a culture of learning, empowerment, accountability, and growth for all members of the 
Lago Vista team.

39 331

Item 14.



6 L AGO  V ISTA ,  TX :  C ITY  MANAGER

The ideal candidate for this position will bring proven expertise in municipal operations, fiscal 
accountability, strategic planning, and project management. He/She will be highly ethical, confident, 
and approachable with a people-focused leadership style.

Candidates considered most suitable for this role will:

 ) Understand the changing needs and dynamics of a growing community; and have demonstrated 
success engaging in productive conversation to build consensus, and execute on the Council’s vision.

 ) Communicate in a proactive, open, and transparent manner employing multiple methods of 
communication to routinely update the Council, City team, and community regarding the status of 
goals, projects, and initiatives.

 ) Exhibit an inclusive leadership style, empowering employees and supporting continuous growth and 
professional development.

 ) Be a positive and highly visible presence in the community, genuinely excited about serving the 
citizens of Lago Vista!

IDEAL  CANDIDATE

LEADERSHIP  &  IN NOVAT ION

Key priorities for the incoming City Manager include: 

 ) Responsible Growth Management – Lead the development and implementation of a coordinated 
growth management program that integrates long-term financial planning with land use, 
transportation, and infrastructure policies to balance quality of life with responsible development.

 ) Strategic Planning – Work with the Mayor, City Council, members of the community, City staff, 
and consulting partner to complete the strategic planning process initiated before the pandemic. 
Once completed, link the goals and strategies to operations throughout the City, ensuring effective 
implementation of identified priorities and projects.

 ) Economic Vitality – Partner with internal and external stakeholders to build a supportive economic 
ecosystem that creates reliable pathways for entrepreneurs to successfully start and grow their 
businesses in Lago Vista.

 ) Focus on Communication – Collaborate within and outside the organization to inform, educate, 
and facilitate discussions among competing interests while fostering a culture that advances the 
mission of Lago Vista and values the contributions of all.

40 332

Item 14.



The selected candidate should hold a bachelor’s or higher 
degree in public administration, business administration, or a 
related field. A master’s degree, ICMA-CM, and/or CPM is highly 
desirable.  At least seven years of experience as a City Manager, 
Deputy City Manager, or Assistant City Manager in a full-service 
city of similar or larger size and complexity to Lago Vista is 
required, or a combination within local government senior 
leadership positions.

EDUCAT ION &  EXPERIENCE

COMPENSAT ION &  BENEF ITS

The salary range for this position is $140,000-$160,000, dependent 
on qualifications and experience. Current benefits include medical, 
dental, and vision coverage; generous paid leave; and enrollment 
in the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) at a 6% 
employee deposit rate with a municipal matching ratio of 2:1 and 
five-year vesting.

7 L AGO  V ISTA ,  TX :  C ITY  MANAGER
41 333

Item 14.



City of Lago Vista
www.lagovistatexas.org

North Lake Travis Chamber of Commerce
northlaketravischamber.org

FOLLOW US

RESOURCES

Please apply online: http://bit.ly/SGROpenRecruitments 

For more information on this position contact:

Lynn Barboza, Senior Vice President 
SGR
LynnBarboza@GovernmentResource.com  
702-423-2905

The City of Lago Vista is an Equal Opportunity Employer and values diversity in its workforce. Applicants 
selected as finalists for this position will be subject to a comprehensive background check. 

APPL ICAT ION PROCE SS

8 L AGO  V ISTA ,  TX :  C ITY  MANAGER
42 334

Item 14.

http://www.lagovistatexas.org
http://northlaketravischamber.org
http://bit.ly/SGROpenRecruitments
mailto:LynnBarboza@GovernmentResource.com
https://www.facebook.com/CityOfLagoVistaTexas
https://twitter.com/CityofLagoVista?ref_src=twsrc%5Egoogle%7Ctwcamp%5Eserp%7Ctwgr%5Eauthor


 

  

 

 
 
 

 
May 24, 2021 

 
CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS 

 

 
 

Recruitment for City Manager 
 
 

 
 

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS

335

Item 14.



 

 

 
 

 

May 24, 2021 

 

 

 

 

Dr. Larry Wallace, Jr., Mayor and City Council Members 

City of Manor 

105 E. Eggleston St. 

Manor, TX 78653 

 

 

 

Dear Mayor Wallace and Council Members: 

 

It is a pleasure for Chris Hartung Consulting, LLC to submit to you this proposed work plan and supporting 

information outlining our approach to assisting the City of Manor in the recruitment and selection of a new City 

Manager. We are excited about the opportunity to be a part of the process of finding a truly outstanding 

professional who can participate as a member of the City's leadership team in partnership with the City Council. 

This work plan has been prepared based upon our conversation with the City Manager, our understanding of the 

search process specifically involving city executives, our experience in similar searches and Chris Hartung’s 

over twenty years of experience in city management. We fully understand the importance of this decision to the 

City of Manor. 

 

Chris Hartung has over twenty-five years’ experience as the owner of a firm or lead consultant engaged in a wide 

variety of public sector executive search assignments for cities in Texas and the Southwest.  Chris Hartung 

Consulting, LLC was founded in July 2009 as a sole proprietorship owned by G. Chris Hartung. The firm is a 

successor to Hartung and Associates, a firm which Chris Hartung operated from January 1988 until October 

1997. From 1997 until July of 2009, Chris Hartung was a lead consultant for a national executive search firm.  

Chris Hartung Consulting was transitioned to an LLC in December 2012. The purpose of Chris Hartung 

Consulting, LLC is to strengthen local government through the provision of effective training, organizational 

development, executive recruitment and selection, and cost-effective consulting services. 

 

This work plan involves a partnership between the consultant and the City Council in an effort to take advantage 

of the skills and abilities of both, while keeping the cost as low as possible. Chris Hartung has experience 

recruiting for a wide variety of positions in local governments. A list of client references for similar City 

Manager recruitments is attached to this proposal. 

 

Chris Hartung is the authorized representative of the firm and will be the lead consultant for this project.  He will 

handle all the client contact, candidate solicitation and reference calls involved in completing the recruitment. 

We have sufficient resources in personnel, equipment and time to conduct this project and are prepared to begin 

the recruitment immediately after notification to begin. Since August of 2009, Chris Hartung Consulting, LLC 

has established a record of successful completion of similar projects for a variety of clients. We welcome the 

City to contact any of the clients listed in this proposal. 

 

336

Item 14.



 

City of Manor, Texas  

City Manager 

Recruitment Proposal 

Page 2 

 

 

The philosophy of Chris Hartung Consulting, LLC regarding filling key executive positions in local government 

is based upon the belief that the best (and maybe only) predictor of success in a position is past success in the 

same or a similar position.  With this principle in mind, our approach to an executive search assignment is to 

begin the process by developing a current and accurate description of the background, qualifications, personal 

characteristics and initial priorities for the position.  The balance of the assignment is focused on developing a 

pool of candidates meeting the profile through an aggressive solicitation and screening process that is intended to 

result in a final group of highly qualified candidates meeting the profile for the client to interview.  During the 

engagement, Chris Hartung Consulting, LLC will guide the City Council with advice at key decision points and 

by providing logistical support through the handling of applicant communications. 

 

Chris Hartung Consulting, LLC is dedicated to conducting executive search assignments in accordance with the 

spirit and the intent of equal opportunity laws and regulations.  We are proud of the record we have established 

in being able to recruit and refer candidates from protected classes including women and minority applicants.   

 

I will be happy to discuss this work plan and answer any questions at your convenience. Please call me at 469-

321-2180 or e-mail at chris@chcpublicsectorsolutions.com. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 
G. Chris Hartung 

Owner/President

337

Item 14.

mailto:chris@chcpublicsectorsolutions.com


 

 

 

PROPOSED WORK PLAN 
Recruitment and Selection of a New City Manager  

for the City of Manor, Texas 

 

 
SCOPE OF THE PROJECT 
The City of Manor is situated approximately 12 miles east of Austin on U.S. Highway 290, which links much of 

Central Texas to Houston.  Over the next decade, Manor is poised to see explosive growth as its proximity to 

Austin, its affordable land, and its location at an interchange of the SH130 toll-road set the stage for this growth.  

The City is governed by a City Council composed of a Mayor and six City Councilmembers. The Mayor and the 

Council Members are elected at-large, by Place.  The City Council operates under a Home Rule Charter which 

established the Council/Manager form of government.  The Council appoints a City Manager to be the Chief 

Executive Officer for the City. The City Council is currently considering contracting with an executive recruiting 

firm to assist the City in the recruitment and section of the next City Manager. We understand the City will be 

seeking an experienced public management professional who can assist the City Council achieve the City’s 

vision for the community. This work plan has been developed to utilize the expertise and background of the 

consultant in partnership with the City Council. The goal of Chris Hartung Consulting, LLC is a search 

engagement which will give the City Council ‘Peace of Mind’ throughout the process. 

 

TASK ONE:  DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROFILE AND ADVERTISING STRATEGY 
Chris Hartung Consulting, LLC conducts executive search assignments based upon the belief that the best 

predictor of success in a position is past success in the same or a similar position.  Therefore, the process that 

follows is intended to describe the requirements of the position accurately and then to generate a pool of 

candidates who have accomplishments and experiences in areas of interest to the City Council.   

 

When authorized to begin this project, the Consultant will coordinate with the City Council to schedule meetings 

with the Council Members and others as directed by the City Council, to discuss the background, qualifications 

and personal characteristics which would make someone a truly outstanding candidate for this position. The 

Consultant will gather information about immediate issues that will confront the new City Manager during the 

first twelve to twenty-four months of employment. If desired by the City Council, the Consultant will interview 

other key stakeholders including city personnel and/or members of the community to gather additional 

perspectives on the position. During the initial discussions regarding this engagement, the Consultant will also 

gather information from the City staff to be used in the development of a community profile to be included with 

the advertising piece to be developed for this recruitment.  

 

We realize that often the decision to apply for a municipal executive position is a family decision as much as it is 

a career decision. For that reason, we will promote the Manor position as not only a good career opportunity, but 

also promote the area as a great place to live. Because of our previous experience with the City of Manor, we 

believe we are in a good position to be a strong advocate for this position.  

 

The Consultant will ask the City to designate one person to be the Project Coordinator and the primary contact 

for this recruitment. In addition, the Consultant will present an updated schedule for this assignment and will get 

concurrence from the City Council for the schedule. 

 

Following the initial stakeholder interviews, the Consultant will develop a profile describing the ideal candidate 

background as well as the priority issues which will face the new executive during the first twelve to twenty-four 

months of employment. This profile will be submitted to the Mayor and City Council for review and approval 

before its use in Task Two. Once the City has approved a profile, the Consultant will prepare a brochure based 

upon the profile to be used as an advertising piece during Task Two. The completed brochure will include 

instructions to interested parties indicating that they should forward their resume and other information directly 

to the Consultant. A sample brochure from the Bastrop recruitment is attached to this proposal. 

338

Item 14.



Page 2 

 

 

As part of Task One, the consultant will also advise the City Council regarding the placement of ads in various 

professional organization job posting web sites and/or journals as mutually agreed to by the Consultant and the 

City. This assistance will include the development and placement of ad copy for this position. Typical ad 

placements for the position of City Manager include the job boards of various professional organizations such as 

the Texas Municipal League and the International City/County Management Association.   

 

TASK TWO:  RECRUITMENT OF OUTSTANDING CANDIDATES FOR THE POSITION 
Following completion of Task One and placement of the advertising, the Consultant will undertake a process of 

contacting, directly by telephone and electronically, individuals in city management as well as local government 

officials, consultants, and others with knowledge of local government to identify potential candidates for the 

position. Our experience in similar searches of this kind has shown us that often the best qualified candidates are 

not in the active job market and may not respond to traditional advertising approaches or to spam e-mails. The 

Consultant will focus his efforts on personal outreach and extensively circulating the brochure developed during 

Task One. Throughout this effort, the Consultant will actively promote this position as a good career and family 

opportunity.  

 

The Consultant will acknowledge receipt of all resumes to the applicants and will prepare a master list of 

applicants for this position. It is recommended that the position be posted by the City as “Open until filled”, so 

that resumes which come in after the first review date can be considered. 

 

TASK THREE:  INITIAL SCREENING OF THE APPLICANT POOL 
Following the first review date, the Consultant will begin the screening process. Initially, applicant information 

will be reviewed to allow the Consultant to eliminate candidates whose information does not indicate the 

background and qualifications desired by the City as described in the profile developed in Task One. The 

Consultant will identify candidates who appear to meet the minimum qualifications and experience desired by 

the City. A questionnaire will be submitted to these candidates seeking additional information about the 

applicant's background and accomplishments in several specific areas of importance to the City of Manor as 

described in the profile developed in Task One.  

 

Once the questionnaires have been completed and returned to CHC, it is anticipated that the Consultant will meet 

with the City Council to discuss the pool of candidates for the position. The objective of this discussion will be 

to identify a group of six to ten candidates for the Consultant to invite to participate in a video interview and a 

telephone interview with the Consultant. Chris Hartung Consulting, LLC is proud to be able to make available 

video interviewing through Interviewstream.  (See information on page 3.) The video interviews will be 

designed to provide the Consultant and the Client with additional information about these applicants’ 

experiences and accomplishments as well as provide an opportunity to see and hear their responses to the 

questions.  The City Council will be provided with a link to the Interviewstream website which will provide 

access to the video interviews at the convenience of the reviewer. 

 

The Consultant telephone interviews are intended to provide the Consultant with additional information about 

the candidates to allow the development of a recommendation to the City Council for a group of four to six 

candidates to be designated as finalists who will be scheduled for interviews with the City Council in Manor. 

During this Task, the Consultant will conduct an Internet search for information published about any of the 

potential finalists. 

 

As a final step in this Task, the Consultant will meet with the City Council to discuss the results of the initial 

screening of the candidates and the video interviews. The objectives of this meeting will be to identify the 

finalists to be interviewed by the City Council and to develop a schedule for the final interview process. With 

concurrence of the City, the Consultant will move forward to Task Four, Gathering of Reference Information. 

339

Item 14.



Page 3 

 

 

 

 

 

Chris Hartung Consulting - InterviewStream Partnership 

Client Situation 

The City of Manor recognizes the importance of recruiting high-caliber professionals who are 

committed to quality work and ethical values.  The Chris Hartung 

Consulting/InterviewStream proposed solutions will help you in your recruitment efforts 

while providing significant cost savings.  

  

Overview 

InterviewStream, Inc. is the original provider of pre-recorded and live video interviewing 

solutions. The firm’s product suite of proprietary online technology provides video interview 

solutions to hundreds of businesses, colleges and universities, executive search firms, staffing 

firms, and the world's leading global career transition firm. 
  
InterviewStream offers a range of 100% web-based solutions that can help your organization 

be more efficient in saving time and resources while quickly realizing a return on investment. 

Organizations can realize significant value in using pre-recorded, live and the internal 

mobility video interviewing platform. Use of these tools can assist organizations currently 

exploring opportunities to increase efficiencies and effectiveness within their hiring and 

related recruiting functions.   
  

Partner with the Best 

InterviewStream offers unmatched flexibility with pre-recorded and live video interviewing 

suite of tools and a proven track record with over 5,000,000 accessible users in 120 countries 

and eight (8) languages. An adaptable mobile app strategy truly affords InterviewStream 

clients with flexibility to react quickly and interview select candidates anytime, anywhere. 
  
The bottom line? There is no competing provider that can match the flexibility, simplicity, 

and level of scalability that our system can offer. InterviewStream is the only provider to 

cover the entire interview cycle – from practice to employment. 
  

Interview Anytime, Anywhere 

No matter where your applicants are in the world or what browser or operating system you or 

they use - InterviewStream's expansive product suite will work for you! Our systems function 

independently or with other applicant tracking, recruiting, and career management systems. 

Above all, it's 100% web-based and can be accessed from any internet-connected computer 

and tablet. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

340

Item 14.



Page 4 

 

TASK FOUR:  GATHERING OF REFERENCE INFORMATION 
Upon completion of Task Three, the Consultant will obtain a release from this group of finalists, allowing him to 

contact references and to gather information about his/her background including education verification in 

accordance with the federal Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA). The candidates will also be given information 

about the schedule for interviews in Manor. The main effort in Task Four will be to contact named and unnamed 

references to gather information about what others think about the work experience and accomplishments of the 

potential finalists. The Consultant will request at least ten named references from the candidates and will contact 

at least seven of them. We will also contact other individuals familiar with the candidates’ work experience but 

not named as references as well. Because we consider the reference calls a vital part of the screening process, 

Chris Hartung will personally contact these individuals. This task will not be delegated to support personnel.  

 

In addition, if authorized by the City, the Consultant will investigate social media, court records, driver license, 

and educational clearinghouses to determine if there are any problems in these areas of a candidate's background 

that the City Council should be aware of. If negative information is discovered during this Task, the City Council 

will be informed as soon as possible. 

 

TASK FIVE:  FINAL INTERVIEW PROCESS AND COMPLETION OF SEARCH 
As part of the base fee, the Consultant will be available to assist the City Council as needed in the preparation 

and conduct of the final interviews for this position in Manor. The Consultant will notify finalists about the 

schedule and other details of the interview process. Candidate travel expenses are the responsibility of the City.  

 

The Consultant will prepare a binder containing information on the finalists for this position for the City 

Councilmembers. This information will be sent to the City several days prior to the interviews. The information 

included in the Final Book will include the resumes and other information provided by the candidates, the 

questionnaire completed by the finalists, the interview notes from the Consultant's interview with the finalists as 

well as the written reference notes. (Reference notes are typically only provided to the hiring authority and those 

in the hiring chain, but not to potential peers, subordinates or outside panel members.)  The Final Books will also 

include a set of suggested interview questions for the City Council. The Consultant will be available to attend the 

final interviews, not to participate in the questioning of candidates, but to assist the City Council and facilitate 

discussion if desired. 

 

Following completion of the interviews for a position, the Consultant will also be available to assist in 

negotiations of a salary and benefit offer and/or employment agreement with the selected candidate. 

 

GUARANTEE 
CHC is offering a three-way guarantee to the City of Manor if selected to conduct the search as outlined in this 

work plan. (1) If for some reason, the City is not able to appoint a candidate following the initial group of 

interviews for a position, the Consultant will work to develop an additional group of finalists for the position for 

the City Council to consider. CHC will stay with the process until an appointment is made for the basic fee 

outlined in the proposal dated May 24, 2021. (2) CHC also commits to not solicit any selected candidate for 

other search assignments during his/her tenure with the City of Manor. (3) If the candidate selected as a result of 

this contract is terminated or resigns within twelve months of appointment, CHC will conduct a new search to 

fill the position for no additional fee, but only with the reimbursement of out-of pocket expenses.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

341

Item 14.



Page 5 

 

PROPOSED FEE AND EXPENSES 
 
The fee for professional services to conduct the recruitment engagement as described in this proposal is $18,000, 

plus reimbursement for out-of-pocket expenses.  Reimbursement for out-of-pocket expenses typically includes 

the direct cost for advertising, printing, postage/shipping, consultant mileage and travel expenses, and third-party 

background research, but does not include costs for candidate travel which are handled directly by the City.  The 

fee includes up to six trips to Manor during the search process including the final interview sessions.  If 

additional trips or additional services beyond the scope of this proposal are requested by the City, an additional 

fee may be requested.  The fee for professional services is due and payable according to the following schedule:  

$4000 due at completion of Task One, $3000 at completion of Task Two, $2000 at completion of questionnaires 

in Task Three, $2000 at completion of Task Three, $3000 at Completion of Task Four, $2000 at submission of 

the finalist binders prior to the interviews in Task Five, and $2000 when the search is finalized, and the 

appointment is made.  Expenses will be billed as incurred.  Payments should be sent to Chris Hartung 

Consulting, LLC, P.O. Box 434, Bedford, Texas 76095. We will be happy to contract for a total cost of fees and 

expenses not to exceed $22,000.00 for the scope outlined in this proposal. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

342

Item 14.



Page 6 
 

 

G. CHRIS HARTUNG 

Owner/President of Chris Hartung Consulting, LLC 

 

Chris Hartung is the Owner and President of Chris Hartung Consulting, LLC. Chris has over twenty-five years 

of public sector consulting experience in the areas of executive search, compensation, classification and other 

management consulting projects. He also has 20 years of experience as a manager in city government, including 

service as Director of Finance, Assistant City Manager, and City Manager in full-service municipalities with 

populations ranging from 15,000 to 160,000. He served for eight (8) years as City Manager of Denton, TX and 

for seven (7) years as Assistant City Manager for the City of Garland, Texas. Chris is proud of the fact that both 

Garland and Denton developed reputations for being able to recruit and maintain highly qualified professional 

staff members. 

 

Chris has conducted management-consulting assignments in a number of areas including compensation planning 

and implementation, strategic planning, organizational staffing, total quality management, and executive 

recruitment. His executive recruitment assignments have included chief executive officer, city manager, city 

attorney, assistant city manager, fire chief, director of parks and recreation, director of public works, and other 

key executive positions. He has written and presented training in a number of subject areas including recruitment 

and selection of key employees, effective performance evaluation, leadership and management skills, and 

customer relations in a public-sector environment. Chris authored an article on local government budgeting in 

hard times which was published by the Texas Municipal League in the May 2010 issue of its magazine Texas 

Town & City and an article on the job interview which was published in the November 2011 issue of Public 

Management, the magazine of the International City/County Management Association.  In 2013, he authored an 

article on the history of Zero-Base Budgeting in Garland, Texas which was published by the Government 

Finance Officers Association. 

 

PROFESSIONAL ACCOMPLISHMENTS AND EDUCATION 

Chris received his bachelor’s degree in government from Southern Methodist University in Dallas and his 

master’s degree in public administration from the University of North Texas in Denton. He has conducted 

lectures and seminars for Texas A&M University, the University of Texas at Austin, the University of Texas at 

Arlington, and the University of North Texas. Chris is on the faculties of the Bill Blackwood Law Enforcement 

Management Institute of Texas (LEMIT) hosted by Texas Woman’s University and the Certified Public Manager 

Program (CPM) sponsored by Texas State University. He has also served as a graduate adjunct in Public 

Administration at the University of North Texas. 

 

343

Item 14.



Page 7 
 

 

CLIENT REFERENCES 

 

Client and Contact Search Engagements 

City of Hillsboro, Texas 

Andrew Smith, Mayor 

(254) 205-0800 

City Manager  

 

City of Woodway, Texas  

Bob Howard, Mayor 

(254) 717-3069 

 

City Manager  

 

City of Del Rio, Texas  

Bruno “Ralphy” Lozano, Mayor 

(830) 765-6880 

 

City Manager  

City of Bastrop, Texas 

Connie Schroeder, Mayor 

(512) 718-7843 

 

City Manager  

344

Item 14.



Page 8 
 

 

Chris Hartung Partial List Recruitments-City Manager/Administrators  
(Proprietary and Confidential) 

(* indicates current incumbent resulted from CH recruitment) 

Abilene, TX City Manager  

 

Aransas Pass, TX City Manager (2) * 

Athens, TX City Administrator * 

Bastrop, TX City Manager * 

Bee Cave, TX City Manager 

Bridgeport, TX City Administrator (2) 

Brownsville, TX City Manager  

Brownwood, TX City Manager 

Canton, TX City Manager  

Chickasha, OK City Manager (2) * 

Corinth, TX City Manager 

Dodge City, KS City Manager 

Ennis, TX City Manager (2) 

Fair Oaks Ranch, TX City Administrator * 

Fate, TX City Manager  

Flower Mound, TX City Manager  

Friendswood, TX City Manager (3) 

Gatesville, TX City Manager 

Highland Park, TX Town Administrator * 

Hillsboro, TX City Manager (3) *   

Hobbs, NM City Manager 

Ingleside, TX City Manager 

345

Item 14.



Page 9 
 

 

Jasper, TX City Manager  

Juneau, AK Borough Manager 

Keene, TX City Manager  

Kerrville, TX City Manager (5) * 

Kilgore, TX City Manager 

La Porte, TX City Manager  

Lago Vista, TX City Manager  

Madisonville, TX City Manager 

Midlothian, TX City Manager 

Missouri City, TX City Manager (2) 

Mount Pleasant, TX City Manager (3)  

Paris, TX City Manager 

Pearland, TX City Manager  

Prosper, TX Town Manager * 

Richwood, TX City Manager * 

Sachse, TX City Manager 

San Angelo, TX City Manager  

Sanger, TX City Manager (2) 

Sealy, TX City Manager  

Seguin, TX City Manager 

Taylor, TX City Manager  

Vernon, TX City Manager * 

Weatherford, TX City Manager 

Wimberley, TX City Administrator  

Woodway, TX City Manager * 

346

Item 14.



Page 10 
 

 

 

City of Manor, Texas 
Tentative Project Schedule  

 
City Manager 

 
 
The following tentative schedule for the completion of the City Manager search is based on the estimated start date 
in early June.  The schedule allows for an orderly recruitment conducted during the Summer/Fall holiday period. 
While this represents a reasonable time frame for the project, CHC will work with the City Council to develop a 
schedule which meets the City’s needs.  This schedule would allow for the new City Manager to commence work in a 
October/November 2021 timeframe.   
 
 

Activity Due Date 
 

• Preliminary Interviews with Manor City Council and other 
Stakeholders 

 

Week of June 7, 2021 

• Draft of Profile to Manor June 14, 2021  
 

• Consensus on profile June 18, 2021  
 

• Commencement of Recruitment Activities/Materials Published June 21, 2021 
 

• First Review of Resumes by CHC July 23, 2021 
 

• Semi-Final Candidates Questionnaire complete and Discussions 
with the City Council 

 

Week of August 2, 2021 
 

• Semi-Final Candidate Video Interviews Completed by CHC August 13, 2021 
 

• Recommendations of Finalists to the City Council Week of August 16, 2021 
 

• Completion of Background Investigation by CHC September 3, 2021 
 

• Candidate Interview Materials to the City September 3, 2021 (Tentative) 
 

• Final Interviews in Manor Week of September 13, 2021 
(Tentative) 

 

• Offer Extended to Finalist 
 

• New City Manager Appointed and Reports to work * 

September 18, 2021 
 
October/November 2021?? 

 
This schedule considers holidays taking place during the recruitment schedule (e.g., July 4th, Labor Day etc.), which 
potentially could affect various tasks.  Discussions with the City Council during this project are requested to be in 
private sessions due to confidentiality concerns.   
 
*Date of employment may vary depending upon separation negotiations with Candidate’s current employer and 
desires of the City Council.  

347

Item 14.



 

© Chris Hartung Consulting, LLC  2020 1 

The City Council of  Bastrop Texas is seeking an  

experienced local government manager  

to be the next…... 

City Manager 

Welcome to Bastrop, Texas - an original Texas town with a fresh approach to life. A genuine destination where  

all-inclusive means everyone's invited. From the moment you cross our iconic Old Iron Bridge and step foot on our 

charming downtown streets, you'll feel welcomed - welcome to it all! It all starts with a stroll down Main Street,  

followed by an epic outdoor adventure, then mix in some live music and top it off with a mouthwatering meal. And 

that's just the half of it. We welcome you to make yourself at home, create your next story and enjoy our special 

brand of Texas hospitality. 

The City of Bastrop, the county seat of Bastrop County, is strategically and centrally located at the crossroads of State Highway 71, SH 

95, & SH 21 in close proximity to three major metropolitan areas of Texas.  Austin is 30 miles west, Houston is two hours southeast 

and San Antonio is just one-and a-half hours south.   And with the Austin-Bergstrom International Airport (ABIA) less than 30 minutes 

away, Bastrop is in a premier position for cultural and economic development   

Bastrop’s historical roots run deep with the number of buildings listed in the National Register of Historic Places earning Bastrop the 

title “Most Historic Small Town in Texas.” A rich harvest of  classic Texas folklore and architecture exists today. Originally the site 

served as a meeting ground for the Tonkawa and other Southwestern Indians before providing a vital Colorado River crossing on the El 

Camino Real de los Tejas (The King’s Highway) the crucial path of commerce between the United States and Mexico at the time. 

The City of Bastrop is among the oldest towns in Texas. First settled in 1804 and officially established on June 8, 1832, Bastrop founder 

Stephen F. Austin named the city for his longtime friend and collaborator, Felipe Enrique Neri, the Baron de Bastrop.  The Town 

played an integral part in the Texas Revolution with three Bastropians  signing the Texas Declaration of Independence, several  losing 

their lives at the Alamo, and the town evacuated and was destroyed during the ‘Runaway Scrape’, when the army of Mexican dictator, 

Santa Anna, swept through Bastrop. 

348

Item 14.

https://www.visitbastrop.com/things-to-do/downtown-bastrop/
https://www.visitbastrop.com/things-to-do/outdoor-activities/


 

© Chris Hartung Consulting, LLC  2020 2 

Nestled on the tranquil banks of the Colorado River, Bastrop's extensive river frontage creates abundant recreational opportunities, per-

fect for kayaking and canoeing (and a great place to fish!). The El Camino Real Paddling Trail is about six miles long and runs from Fish-

erman's Park to a take-out point near Tahitian Village. Kayaks, canoes, paddle boards, and tubes can be rented at several local businesses. 

The Colorado River is host to several events throughout the year, including the Colorado River 100 and the SUP Cup.  

One of the State’s most beautiful parks, Bastrop State Park, is set among the "Lost Pines", and is great for camping, fishing, biking, hik-

ing, and wildlife viewing. The Park has RV and primitive camping sites and is home to a cluster of rental cabins, built by the Civilian 

Conservation Corps during the Great Depression and recognized by the U. S. Department of the Interior for their tremendous architec-

tural significance. Canoes and barbeque pits can also be rented. Bastrop’s YMCA operates the Park’s swimming pool , open from  May 

through September. 

There are three golf courses in the Bastrop area: ColoVista Golf Club, Pine Forest Golf Club and the Wolfdancer Golf Club at the Hyatt 

Lost Pines Resort & Spa.  McKinney Roughs Nature Preserve and the Cotton Bowl Speedway are all in the Bastrop area.  Circuit of the 

Americas, a world-class motorsport and entertainment facility that hosts racing, action sports and music, is only a 20-minute drive from 

Bastrop.  The Lower Colorado River Authority (LCRA) owns Lake Bastrop, perfect for swimming, fishing, and boating In the two sec-

tions of the lake park, North Shore and South 

Shore, cabins, tent and RV camping sites are 

available.  Bastrop's proximity to Austin 

makes it easy to take advantage of the abun-

dant recreational and leisure activities offered 

there, including the new NLand Surf Park -- 

North America's first surf and wave park -- 

Formula 1 racing, Austin City Limits, and 

SXSW. 

The Texas Education Agency shows the 

Bastrop Independent School District (BISD) 

as Accredited, Met Standard.  The Bastrop 

ISD is rated as average by both Niche and 

Great Schools.  Colorado River Collegiate 

Academy (CRCA) in Bastrop ISD was one of 

only 400 that earned all possible Academic 

Distinctions in 2016.  Bastrop High School 

earned distinctions in social studies and post-

secondary readiness while Cedar Creek High 

School earned distinctions in science and postsecondary readiness.  Bluebonnet Elementary earned distinctions in math and postsecond-

ary readiness, and Cedar Creek Elementary earned distinctions in math and top 25% student progress.    

Private schools in the area include Calvary Episcopal School, Lost Pines Renaissance, and Bastrop Montessori. Higher education is avail-

able to residents through a number of institutions including Austin Community College (Austin, Round Rock, and Elgin Campuses), The 

University of Texas-Austin, St. Edward's University, Concordia University, and Huston-Tillotson University in Austin and Texas State 

University-San Marcos. In addition, Bastrop will soon 

be home to the Art Institute, opening in late summer, 

providing a quality, collaborative academic environ-

ment for individuals seeking creative careers through 

higher education.  Brought to the “table” by Bastrop’s 

Economic Development Corporation, the Institute 

provides educational opportunities without increased 

property taxes. 

Medical facilities available to residents include Ascen-

sion Seton Hospital, a 40,000 square foot medical 

facility containing an emergency room, imaging ser-

vices, eight (8) inpatient beds, 12 treatment rooms, 

and medical office space for primary and specialty 

care services; St. David's Emergency Center; Lone 

Star Circle of Care; Lost Pines Center for Cancer 

Care; Seton-Smithville Regional Hospital; and Urgent 

Care. 

Bastrop Independent School District 
349

Item 14.



 

© Chris Hartung Consulting, LLC  2020 3 

Today, this dynamic city is growing. Bastrop proudly 

preserves its historic past while embracing the challeng-

es of modern-day growth and economic needs. The 

2010 census showed the City of Bastrop’s population 

increased 30.93% from the previous census in 2000. It 

is estimated the City will have grown an additional 30% 

since 2010 with the projected population for 2020 at 

9,383. Austin was named the Number 1 place to live in 

2017 by the U.S. News and World Report, which will 

have a direct impact on the growth that Bastrop will 

experience throughout the next decade. 

Bastrop’s economic picture is bright and continues to 

be a priority for the City.  In this regard, Bastrop’s hard-

working EDC is vital to the City’s future by actively 

promoting and supporting development in the commu-

nity that offers the people of Bastrop sustainable, mean-

ingful and rewarding employment opportunities, and 

greater access to desirable goods and services.  Recog-

nizing that travel and tourism are one of the fastest-growing economic sectors on the globe, in 2017 the City created Visit Bastrop, a des-

tination marketing organization, to capture some of that business by formulating campaigns to attract conventions, meetings, and events.  

Visit Bastrop works closely with Hyatt’s award-winning Lost Pines Resort toward this goal.   

Construction continues on several residential and multi-family developments. Pecan Park is a 222-lot residential development offering 

new residential homes by David Weekly Homes, Scott Felder Homes, and Pacesetter Homes. Piney Creek Bend is a 244-lot development 

by KB Homes.  Additionally, The Preserve at Hunters Crossing, with 140 units of multi-family development and The Villages at Hunters 

Crossing, 182 units of multi-family development,  have recently opened. 

City is proud to be award winning.  Bastrop won a Texas Downtown Award in 2018 in recognition of its Small Business Revolution cam-

paign where it came in second in the nation.   In 2019, Bastrop received a design award for the “Best New Construction” for a  project in 

a city under 50,000 population and an achievement award for “Best Promotional Event” for the Pop-Up Street Project which provided a pre

-construction opportunity to experience the “new” Main Street after its renovation is completed. 

GOVERNANCE: 

The City of Bastrop operates under a Home Rule Charter adopt-

ed by the citizens in 2001 and last amended in 2016, which estab-

lishes a Council/Manager form of government. The City is gov-

erned by a City Council composed of a Mayor and five Council 

Members elected at large. The Mayor and Council Members 

serve three (3) year terms and are limited to six (6) consecutive 

years. The City Council appoints the City Manager, Municipal 

Court Judge and City Attorney. The current City Council Mem-

bers are: 

Mayor - Connie Schroeder is serving in the third year of her first 

term and will begin her second term in May. 

Council Member Place 1 - Willie Lewis "Bill" Peterson is cur-

rently serving in his first year of his second term.  He previously 

served on the Council in the past 

Council Member Place 2 -  Drusilla Rogers is serving the second year of her first term on the Council. 

Council Member Place 3 and Mayor Pro-Tem - Lyle Nelson is serving in the third year of his first term and will begin his second 

term in May. 

Council Member Place 4 - Bill Ennis has served on the Council for three years, having completed a year of a vacated unexpired term 

and two years of his second term. 

Council Member Place 5-Dock Jackson is currently serving in the first year of his first term on the City Council after previously serving 

on the Council  in the past. 

Council members are active in the Texas Municipal League, actively pursuing the League’s educational opportunities with the intention of 

increasing their value to the City as its leaders.  Currently the Mayor and Mayor Pro-Tem have achieved the annual Certified Municipal 

Official designation.  The Mayor and Councilman Jackson (through his past TML presidency) serve on the TML Board of Directors. 

Main Street’s new, wider sidewalks 

350

Item 14.



 

© Chris Hartung Consulting, LLC  2020 4 

GOVERNANCE: (Cont’d.) 

The City Council of Bastrop has made a major commitment to preparing the City for anticipated growth through the adoption of a new 

Comprehensive Plan, the Building Bastrop Initiative and the adoption of a Five-Year Operational Plan. 

In 2016, the Bastrop City Council adopted a Comprehensive Plan that outlines a strategic blueprint for addressing the physical and eco-

nomic needs of the community. It provides a framework for a managed growth approach to development, while protecting the historic 

character and natural features unique to Bastrop. The Building Bastrop Initiative is based on the vision set forth in this Comprehensive 

Plan and was initiated by the most recent Council to prepare the City for future growth. A complete plan document can be found on the 

City’s website at www.cityofbastrop.org.  

The City Council from the start of this process was committed to complete transparency and provided a variety of means for the com-

munity to be involved in the Building Bastrop Initiative. These efforts have won awards from the Texas Chapter of the American Plan-

ning Association. It is important to note that the new development code is based upon form-based code principles. 

The Five Year Operational Workplan is organized around nine focus areas which are as follows: 

Authentic Bastrop-Maintain and enhance our historic community feel by leveraging the combination of community, cultural, and recre-

ational assets that make Bastrop a special place to live and work. 

Communication-Support and enhance open two-way communication between the City and its residents and businesses. 

Community Safety-Keep citizens, businesses, and visitors safe. 

Economic Vitality-Create sustainability by leveraging infrastructure renewals and investment, enhancing public/private partnerships, 

and fostering an inclusive and diverse environment that encourages entrepreneurial ventures and tourism. 

Fiscal Responsibility-Prepare and manage budget; fiduciary responsibility. 

Manage Growth-Plan for and manage growth, develop-

ment, and redevelopment to maintain Bastrop’s au-

thentic feel and character. 

Multi-Modal Mobility-Improved mobility for all modes 

of transit to integrate the community through connec-

tivity. 

Organized Excellence-Organize governance; progres-

sive operational policies and procedures; employee 

and citizen volunteer recognition.  

Unique Environment-Continue beautification of natu-

ral areas, parks, river, and landscape. 

The City Council is very committed to these focus areas 

which have been designated to help prepare the City for 

the anticipated growth and will be seeking a City Manager 

who is able to learn the community and manage this ef-

fort successfully. 

City of Bastrop Vision Statement 

"The Vision of the City of Bastrop is to be a welcoming community 

with a compassion for our diversity, a tapestry of people, arts, and 

structures; preserving our history and character while embracing 

progress around our unique environment." 

City of Bastrop Mission Statement 

“The Mission of the City of Bastrop is to continuously strive to  

provide innovative and proactive services that enhance our  

authentic way of life to achieve our vision.” 

351

Item 14.

http://www.cityofbastrop.org


 

© Chris Hartung Consulting, LLC  2020 5 

THE POSITION: 

Under the administrative direction of the City Council, the City Manager per-

forms the duties of Chief Administrative Officer in the administration of all 

services, affairs and programs of the City.  He/She provides administrative 

direction and guidance to City departments; ensures the financial integrity of 

the City; establishes and monitors internal controls and coordination of City 

programs; prepares long and short-term strategic plans to meet organizational 

and developmental needs of the City; and performs duties specified in the 

City Charter and/or required by City Council.   

The City Manager oversees the operations of an organization with a Fiscal 

2019-2020 Operating Budget of $54,781,078.  The Hotel-Motel Tax Fund, 

which accounts for revenues generated by the hotel occupancy tax, has 

$3,236,312 in annual revenues which meets the designated expenditures plus 

debt payments on the Convention and Event Center and related facilities.  

The City has 150 full time employees, organized into several departments: 

General Government including Legislative, Organizational, City Manager, 

City Secretary, Finance, Human Resource, Information Technology, Public 

Works and Building Maintenance; Public Safety including Police, Fire and 

Court; Development Services including Planning, Engineering/Building In-

spection and Building Inspection; Community Services including Parks and 

Library; Bastrop Power & Light; Water; and Wastewater. Aqua Water Supply 

Corporation supplies drinking water to the unincorporated areas around Bastrop and the City has recently reached an agreement with 

Aqua for reciprocal emergency connections. Solid waste collection and disposal is provided by a contractor. The City has adopted a ½ 

cent Type B economic development sales tax. 

The City of Bastrop is in a very strong financial position, with a bond rating for GO Bonds at AA.  The bond rating for Revenue bonds 

is AA-. For the past seven years the City has prepared a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) meeting Governmental Ac-

counting Standards Board (GASB) requirements. The City has also received the Distinguished Budget Award from GFOA and a Trans-

parency Star from the Texas State Comptroller. Bastrop is an active partner with Elgin and Smithville in the BEST regional organization. 

PERSONAL QUALITIES: 

In discussing their desired qualities for the next City Manager, City Council Members indicate an interest in a person with strong leader-

ship and interpersonal skills who can assist the Council in maintaining the quality services the City’s residents have grown accustomed to, 

as well as preparing the City for the anticipated growth in the area.  He or she should have the ability to build coalitions to accomplish 

the vision of the City Council, taking care to encourage a consensus that is derived by consideration of all input.  The next City Manager 

should also have the following additional knowledge, skills or abilities: 

• An ability to recruit, select, develop, and motivate the City staff to achieve high performance while encouraging and creating a 
“customer friendly” environment. 

• A record of evaluating the effectiveness of municipal 
operations and personnel while demonstrating effective 
delegation skills and holding people accountable for 
results.  

• A proven record as a team player who applies personal 
ethics that reflect honesty and integrity in all relation-
ships to establish an example to staff and citizens.  

• A history of being fiscally conservative, with a working 
knowledge of municipal financial management and ex-
perience in preparing a budget of similar size and com-
plexity to the City of Bastrop. 

• Knowledge of recent legislative changes that provide 
challenges to circumstances surrounding municipal 
budgeting.  A proven ability to manage the complexities 
brought on through issues like Senate Bill 2 is prefera-
ble.   

• A demonstrated ability to implement ideas by recogniz-
ing and involving stakeholders in decision-making.  

 352

Item 14.



 

© Chris Hartung Consulting, LLC  2020 6 

PERSONAL QUALITIES: (Cont’d.) 

• Familiarity with successful economic developmental practices, 
particularly familiarity with economic development tools author-
ized for Texas cities including the Type B economic development 
sales tax.  The ability and willingness to develop a solid, collabora-
tive working relationship with the director of the EDC. 

• A reputation for being a good listener who is approachable and 
has an ability to communicate successfully with employees at all 
levels of the organization. 

• An “out of the box” thinker who looks for creative solutions to 
challenges with collaborative coordination. 

• The ability to see the “big picture” and anticipate the future im-
pact of decisions. 

• Knowledge of and/or experience with form-based codes is a big 
plus. 

 
The City Council is seeking candidates who would see the City of Bastrop 

City Manager position as a great long-term career opportunity and the City 

as an exceptional place to live, someone who would look forward to be-

coming an active member of the community. 

Council Priorities:  

The City Council will expect the new City Manager to give priority to the 

following issues: 

Focus Areas - The City Council’s Five Year Operational Workplan is or-

ganized around nine focus areas as described above. Their recent evalua-

tion indicated much progress had been made in six of the focus areas - 

Managed Growth, Community Safety, Economic Vitality, Multi-Modal 

Mobility, Uniquely Bastrop and Unique Environment. The City Council will expect that the new City Manager become familiar with the 

Building Bastrop process and the Operational Workplan.  They will want the new City Manager to give priority attention to the Commu-

nication, Fiscal Responsibility and Organizational Excellence areas. The City Manager should develop a strategy for addressing these areas 

as well as for continuing the City staff efforts in the other six areas and for reporting progress to the Council through quarterly meetings. 

Water and Wastewater System Capital Improvement Program - The City has embarked on a major capital program to bring its water 

and wastewater systems up to date. This $60 million capital program will add four new wells and new water treatment and wastewater 

treatment plants to meet the City’s current and future needs.  The City Council will expect the new City Manager to become familiar with 

this program and ensure the projects are completed on time and within budget. 

Main Street Improvements - The Main Street Rehabilitation Project is the first Capital Improvement Project to be built under the 

Building Bastrop name. This project encompasses sidewalk improvements or additions from Farm to Water Street, along with roadway 

resurfacing from Spring to Water Street. The upgrades will include the installation of street trees, widening of the walkways, installing new 

streetlights, and providing a planting strip. The project is underway with project completion set for late summer with landscaping installa-

tion occurring in the early fall. Again, the City Council will expect the new City Manager to become familiar with this project and ensure 

its completion on schedule and budget. 

353

Item 14.



 

© Chris Hartung Consulting, LLC  2020 7 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university with major coursework in Government, Public Administration, Business, or 

related field.  Ten years of progressively responsible management and administrative experience in a municipal government.  Five years of 

the required experience must have been at a senior executive management level in a full-service city.  Master’s degree in public administra-

tion, business administration or a related field, preferred.  

Possession of a valid Class C Texas Driver License with a satisfactory driving record. 

Certified Public Manager preferred. 

The City Charter requires the City Manager to reside in the City during his/her term in office. If the successful applicant is not a resident 

of Bastrop at the time of appointment, he/she will need to relocate within a reasonable time. 

COMPENSATION: 

The competitive compensation package is negotiable depending upon the background and qualifications of the person selected.  The City 

has a generous benefits program including Texas Municipal Retirement System (6% 2:1 match), health and life insurance, paid vacation, 

education pay, sick leave and holidays. 

TO APPLY: 

Send an electronic version of your current resume, salary history and a list of ten work-related references with phone numbers to G. Chris 

Hartung at jobsearch@chcpublicsectorsolutions.com.   The first review of candidates will be May 1, 2020.  It is anticipated that finalists 

will be referred to the City Council in late June for interviews in Bastrop.   

Applicants for this position selected as finalists will be subject to a background review prior to interview.  Under the Texas Public Infor-

mation Act, information from your resume may be subject to release to the public. 

354

Item 14.



 

A  T r a d i t i o n  o f  E x c e l l e n c e  S i n c e  1 9 7 2  
 

5800 Stanford Ranch Road, Suite 410, Rocklin, California 95765 Phone: 916/630-4900 Fax: 916/630-4911 Website: www.ralphandersen.com 

May 20, 2021 

Ms. Tracey A. Vasquez 
Human Resources Coordinator 
City of Manor 
105 E. Eggleston Street 
P.O. box 387 
Manor, Texas 78653 

Via Email: tvasquez@cityofmanor.org  

Dear Ms. Vasquez: 
Thank you for the opportunity to respond to the City’s request to provide executive search 
services for the position of City Manager. We regret to advise you that, due to our current client 
commitments and recent contract awards for executive search, we will not submit a proposal at 
this time. 
Ralph Andersen & Associates is pleased to have received your request and look forward to 
receiving others in the future. 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Heather Renschler 
President/CEO 
 
 
 

355

Item 14.

mailto:tvasquez@cityofmanor.org


 City Manager Searches (Central Texas) 2018-2021 

 

City Manager 
Searches 

Search Firm Cost 

(fees + expenses) 

Time  

 

Austin Russell Reynolds 
Associates 

$ 153,365   12 months 

Bee Caves In-house N/A 2 months 

Georgetown SGR $ 27,000 not to 
exceed   

5 months 

Lockhart SGR N/A 8 months 

Marble Falls In house N/A 2 months 

Hutto SGR N/A 10 months 

Pflugerville SGR N/A 7 months 

Round Rock 

Lakeway                          

Promoted within 

Promoted within 

 

N/A 

N/A 

 

N/A 

N/A 

Taylor Executive 
Searches 

   

Taylor Public Works 
Director 

Hartung & Assoc $ 14,883   9 months 

Taylor Parks & Rec 
Director 

SGR $ 11,034   4 months 

Taylor Assistant City 
Manager 

SGR $ 19,169   3 months 

 

 

 

356

Item 14.



City Manager Executive Search Firms - Summary

  

CRITERIA Affion Public
Chris Hartung 

Consulting

Strategic Government 

Resources
In House

Qualifications 

of firm

Since 2000, has provided 

executive search services for 

government. Experience in 

Texas includes City 

Manager/ ACM searches for 

Austin, Corpus Christi, 

Dallas, El Paso, Galveston, 

Leander, Round Rock, etc.

Since 2009, has provided 

executive search.  

Experience in Texas City 

Manager / ACM searches 

includes: Taylor, Bee 

Cave, Lago Vista, Seguin, 

etc. Several Director 

searches in Taylor.

Since 1999 has provided 

executive searches. 

Experience with Texas City 

Manager/ ACM searches: 

Taylor,  Leander, Lockhart, 

Pflugerville, Bastrop, Hutto, 

etc. Several Director 

searches for Taylor.

Employed with the City of 

Manor since 2013

Qualifications 

of assigned 

personnel

Mr. Reilly, CEO: 20+ years' 

experience in Sales, 

Executive Recruiting and 

Technology; BA, Marketing. 

Ms. Sprowls, Recruiting 

Manager: 10+ years 

experience, BS, Business 

Administration.

Mr. Hartung, owner: 25+ 

years experience with 

executive searches 

including for Taylor and 8 

years as City Manager. 

MA, Public Administration.

Mr. Tanner, Senior VP: 31 

years, Texas city manager; 

MA, Public Administration, 

Ms. Barker, Senior VP: 5+ 

years corporate recruiter; BS, 

Biomedical Science.  

Conducted searches for 

Taylor.

23 years human resources 

experience and finance.

Estimated 

timeline

90 days 14 weeks (98 days) 15 weeks (105 days) 30-90 days

Cost $28,000 Not to exceed $24,900 Budgeted

Contact Scott Reilly & Gina Sprowls Chris Hartung Mike Tanner & Lissa Barker Tracey Vasquez

Develop 

Profile and 

Advertising 

Strategy

One hour individual 

interviews to develop position 

and candidate profile. Get to 

know organization style and 

culture.

Meet with Council and 

others, as requested. 

Develop profile and 

brochure for recruiting.  

Individual interviews with 

Council and others to 

develop position profile.

Meet with Council to 

establish job profile and 

description for recruiting 

purposes.

Approach to the search process

Summary - City Manager Executive Search Firms 

Page 1
357

Item 14.



City Manager Executive Search Firms - Summary

  
Recruit 

Candidates

Use "extensive" internal 

database, personal / 

professional connections, 

targeted recruiting and other 

tools.

Advertising with TML, 

ICMA & outreach by phone 

to identify potential 

candidates.

Ad placements, social media, 

email position profile to key 

leaders and prospects, 

phone calls, email, Linked In, 

etc.

Advertise with TML, ICMA, 

LinkedIn, City's website, local 

newspaper, and City's social 

media resources.

Screen 

Applicants

Conduct interviews, 

extensive background check.  

Conducts internet searches, 

conduct interviews with 

candidates. Present a field of 

6-8 qualified candidates to 

client with comprehensive 

book of information.

Screen based on resumes, 

questionnaires. Meet with 

Council, identify 6-10 

candidates for review 

(video and Consultant 

phone interview). Meet  

Council to identify 4-6 

candidates for interviews. 

Screen/ rank candidates, 

present to Council to select 8-

12 semi-finalists. Screen 

semi-finalists with written 

questionnaires, online video 

interviews, media search. 

Briefing book for Council on 

semi-finalists to decide on 

candidates for interviews.

Screen/rank candidates 

present to Council to select 

qualified finalists. Conduct 

Law enforcement 

background investigation.

References Screen for organizational fit, 

background checks (criminal, 

education, financial), and 

media search. References 

completed prior to selecting 

final candidates for interview.

Contact named & 

unnamed references to 

gather information. On 

request, conduct social 

media check. Pinkerton 

Investigations (court, 

driving, education).

Comprehensive media 

search, comprehensive 

background checks (Credit, 

crime, driving, education, 

etc.). Conduct reference 

checks, up to 20 contacts for 

a candidate.

Interview and 

complete 

search

Consultant  involved in 

interview process to facilitate 

interviews. Consultant will 

assist on final employment 

matters such as negotiation 

process and notification of 

unsuccessful candidates.

Available for interviews, 

prepares binder with 

suggested interview 

questions. Available to 

assist with salary / benefits 

negotiations. Commits to 

no soliciting of candidates 

for other current searches.

Schedule interviews, provide 

interview questions, assist in 

process. Can provide data on 

employment agreements, 

assist in negotiations. 

Additional post-hire support, 

as requested.

Schdedule interviews, 

provide interview questions 

prepared by current City 

Manager,complete previous 

employment  and referal 

investigation

Guarantee: 24 month guarantee 24 month guarantee + 

continue search if no one 

hired from initial pool.  

18 months guarantee

Summary - City Manager Executive Search Firms 

Page 2
358

Item 14.



AGENDA ITEM NO. 15 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 2, 2021 
PREPARED BY: Tracey Vasquez, HR Manager 
DEPARTMENT: Human Resources 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the transition plan for City Manager’s position. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 
A transitional management plan is a necessary component of a change management plan and presumes that the 
underlying is being well managed. Obvious goals need to be aligned to achieve the ultimate success of the success 
of the City of Manor. 

Suggested interview questions/responses will be provided by City Manager to City Council. 

LEGAL REVIEW:   No 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No 
PRESENTATION: No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• Left/Right Transition Plan

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve the transition plan for the City Manager’s 
position. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Recommend Approval Disapproval None 

359

Item 15.



 

   Left/Right Replacement Transitional Plan 

Purpose: 

Transitional management plans are a necessary component of a change management plan and presume 

the underlying is being well managed. The goals of a transitional plan need to be aligned to achieve the 

ultimate success for the City of Manor. This plan outlines the “hand-off” process that instills the goals, 

priorities, and strategies in one place for a successful “shift”, while ensuring that all tasks and duties are 

documented and passed on. 

This transitional plan’s goal is to familiarize the new City Manager with City of Manor operations. The 

four (4) key components of the left/right replacement plan are: Introduction, Communication, Hand-Off, 

and Goal/Expectations these will assist in a smooth conversion for the City staff, City Council, Mayor, 

new City Manager as well as the current City Manager. 

 

Transition Details: 

Understanding the value of the role as City Manager is the first step in making a successful transition. 

• Current City Manager 

• Successor 

• Start Date 

• Mayor/Council 

1) Introduction-  

Throughout the first week (Days 1-5) the newly selected City Manager will “shadow” the current City 

Manager in all day-to-day activities. 

(Day 1-5) 

The incoming City Manager will schedule a time frame to meet with each department director/manager 

individually. They will discuss current obligations, projects, goals, and limitations within each specified 

department.  Meetings with the Mayor and Council will be done individually as well for introduction 

purposes only, expectations and goals are set at another time regarding the evaluation process. 

He/she will be attending all schedule City Manager’s meetings including but not limited to staff, PID’s, 

MUD’s, ManorISD, parks committee, Chamber luncheons and board meetings, CIVStart, WW Treatment 

360

Item 15.



Plant, as well as meeting with local businesses to establish a partnership within the community. Outside 

contacts shall be established at this time as well to integrate the succeeding City Manager as quickly and 

effectively as possible. 

The current City Manager shall establish a measurable on-the-job checklist that offers guidelines for key 

activities that must be completed by certain dates to facilitate the progress. Knowledge of both explicit 

skills as well as implicit knowledge during the changeover is paramount for the left/right transition plan 

to prevail. 

(Day 1-10) 

2) Communication- 

Both the successor and current City Manager will share the leadership qualities and skills of the 

department directors/managers for future expectations and goals. The current City Manager will assist 

with feedback, ideas, and processes to further assist the succeeding City Manager in establishing 

effective communication with staff. 

The successor will meet with local, state, and other government agencies such as CAPCO, the 

Empowerment Academy, ManorISD, Texas Economic Development Council, etc., to ensure open 

communication and establish prosperous business associations. 

(Day 6-10) 

3) Hand Off-  

Throughout the second week (days 6-10) the current City Manager will now “hand-off” leadership to the 

incoming City Manager. The new City Manager will lead the City on day-to-day operations, at the 

guidance of the current City Manager. 

Feedback and consultation will occur between both Managers to assess the successors knowledge and 

capabilities. Both Managers will meet with the Mayor and City Council to update the progress on the 

left/right transition. 

(Day 11-15) 

4) Goals and Expectations- 

 By assessing management skills through evaluating their capabilities, propensities, and potential, the 

City Manager will meet with each director/manager on current and new goals for the City of Manor. 

The successor will have in place a set of goals, expectations, and/or projects for his/herself to be 

attained within the next 60 days that will be presented to the Mayor and Council. 

Completion of the transitional plan checklist will be signed by the current Manager, successor, and the 

Mayor. 

 

361

Item 15.


	Top
	Item A.	Presentation: Foster Community Central Texas
	Foster Community PPT June 2020

	Item A.	Proclamation: National Gun Violence Awareness Day - June 2021
	a. Proclamation - National Gun Violence Awareness Day

	Item B.	Proclamation: LGBTQ+ Month - June 2021
	b. Proclamation - LGBTQ+ Month

	Item C.	Proclamation: National PTSD Awareness Month - June 2021
	c. Proclamation - National PTSD Month

	Item 1.	Minutes: May 19, 2021 City Council Regular Meeting
	a. Summary Form
	b. 2021 05 19 CC Draft Minutes

	Item 2.	Lagos PID Reallocation of Bond Proceeds - Narrative
	a. Summary Form
	b. Lagos Manor PID - Major Improvement Area True-up Narrative

	Item 3.	Butler Tract IN-1 Rezoning Regular - 2021-P-1323-ZO
	a. Summary Form
	b. Ordinance
	c. Letter of Intent
	d. Rezoning Map
	e. Area Image
	f. Thoroughfare Plan Area
	g. IN-1 Land Uses

	Item 4.	Resolution No. 2021-15 Rose Hill PID Reimbursement Agreement
	a. Summary Form
	b. Resolution No. 2021-15 Rose Hill PID -  Reimbursement Agreement
	c. Rose Hill PID Reimbursement_Agreement

	Item 5.	Rose Hill PID Assessments Travis County Agreement
	a. Summary Form
	b. Rose Hill PID Billing and Collections Agreement - Travis County

	Item 6.	Manor Heights PID Assessments Travis County Agreement
	a. Summary Form
	b. Manor Heights PID Collections Agreement with Travis County

	Item 7.	Community Impact Fee Advisory Committee
	a. Summary Form
	b. WW CIP Map
	c. WW CIP Master Plan

	Item 8.	Cottonwood Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Project - Excel Construction Services, LLC
	a. Summary Form
	b. Change Order No. 1

	Item 9.	Amended Annual Budget FY20-21
	a. Summary Form
	b. Ordinance 612 -  FY 2020-21 Amended Annual Budget
	c. Exhibit A - Amended Budget FY20-21

	Item 10.	Annual Audit Financial Statements 2020
	a. Summary Form
	b. 2019-2020 Audit Report

	Item 11.	P&Z Commissioner Jacob Hammersmith Resignation
	a. Summary Form
	b. Hammersmith resignation email

	Item 12.	The Knight Law Firm, LLP
	a. Summary Form
	b. Barney Knight Services - 1999
	c. Knight &amp; Partners Service Letter Agreement - Feb 2011 (current fees)
	d. The Knight Law Firm Transition Letter - Oct. 2016

	Item 13.	Retirement Announcement - Thomas Bolt, City Manager
	a. Summary Form
	b. Retirement Announcement - Thomas Bolt CM

	Item 14.	Consulting Firm for City Manager's Position
	a. Summary Form
	b. Affion Public Consulting
	c. SGR Proposal
	d. Hartung City Manager Work Plan
	e. Hartung Bastrop City Manager Brochure (sample)
	f. Ralph Andersen Proposal (declined)
	g. City Manager Recent Recruitments central Texas
	h. City Manager Executive Search Firms summary

	Item 15.	Transition Plan for City Manager's Position
	a. Summary Form
	b. Left.Right Transition Plan

	Bottom

